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Mr. CASSEL. We were satisfied, and snpposed the majority 

of the committee would be. 
Mr. SBJRAS. I am simply asking for fair play in this matter. 

I say that unJ= you show whose votes those 200 were, they ought 
not to be thrown out. It seems to me this is only ordinary fair 
plaf. 

Mr. DRISCOLL. Will the gentleman aliow me to ask one more 
question-that is nll? 

Mr. SHIRAS. Certainly. 
Mr. DRISCOLL. If tbose three districts-the Second and 

Tllird wards of Winton and the first district of Old Forge-are 
thrown out, how does that leave the vote? 

Mr. SffiRAS. It leaves the ,·ote 8 in fa,.or of Mr. Howell. 
Mr. DRISCOLL. Now, is it not true that Mr. Howell did not 

try to pro,·e alh1u1le any of the votes c.'\St for him or any of the 
illegal ,.otes alleged to havo been rest for Mr. Connell? That is 
true. is it not? 

Mr. SB'.IRAS. I will make a practical answer to that question 
in this wa;: It was competent, perhaps, for Mr. Ho,,.ell to prove by 
aliumle testimony the whole 2,000 votes, and it would lm,e cost 
hin1 $10,-000 or $15,000. 'l'hat sort of proceeding on the other side 
cost the conre;tant probably s;;<).000. Sn~h a contest of " nliunde-
ism" would be a fa1-ce. and the prize would go to tho biggest purse. 

Mr. DRISCOLL. If you have read the e,·idence, have yon any 
doubt that at lenst, ,ve will say, 10 illegal ,.otes, bec.~nse t hat 
num~r would be sufficient, were shown by evidence alinncle but 
compet<;nt to have been cast for Mr. Howell? Have yon any 
doubt about that? 

Mr. SHIRAS. l did not quite catch the purport of the gentle-
m:ln ·s question. 

Mr. DRISCOLL. ls there not aliunde evidence sufficient to 
show that at least 10 of these illegal ,,otes were cast for .Mr . 
Howell?· 

Mr. SHIRAS. l do not think so. upon theendence. 
Mr. DRISCOLL. Have you examined it? 
Mr. Sl:llRAS. 1 have examined the testimony on which the 

81lpporters of the contestant rely. 
Mr. DRISCOLL. Yon havo not read it fnlly; ;on have not 

read the whole of it. 
,Jr. SHIRAS. But yon have not identified the voters. That 

Is the reason I say that this ,widence should haYe beEn barred 
out. 

)Ir. FOSTER of Illinois. Has the gentleman nny doubt that 
at least 20 of tboso votes were cast for Mr. Howell? 

Mr. SIDRAS. Not the least. 
Now. I want to call attention to another point. In these dis· 

puted district,; only 32 votes ha,.e boon pro,.ed !or Mr. Connell, 
where 17!l are returned. Were the rest of the vooos returned for 
Mr. Connell legal or illegal? Unless this question is determined. 
i t seems to me yon hMe not pro,•ed nnytbing. The danger that 
arises in a case of this kind is clearly shovm in re,,poot to these 
200 \'Otes. 

Xow, )Ir. Speaker. l ha\'e taken more time than I expected. 
This is si,nplv a question of asking for fair play. I do not belie,.e 
it right to delegate our consciences in a close case like tllis to the 
committee aucl allow them to determine the ''"hole question of 
law and of fact . I have no hesitation in coming to tho concln• 
sion that it is unfair to the sitting Member, unfair to tho Tenth 
Coni:ressionnl <listrict. unfair to the Staui of Penn.sylYania. and 
unfair to the Republican party to unseat Mr. Howell. [Loud 
aprJ~t~w=l~ ..... ". ¥ 

/' 
record a little app."\lled at the amount of work that the committee 
t ught was before it. and when Mr. Balentine. representing the 
co te.,too, arose to talk I inquired of him ,,hether or not OCl"tain 
nd issions could not be agreed upon by eoun • so "'I to short.ei, 
t ho abor of the committee, calling his attention direct.Ir to the 
clai of tho contestant to the great number of votes in these three 
wa cast by men whose nnmes wero not on the regtstl'ation list. 
That as at the beginning of the bearing. an,1 he said that the 
figure presented by the attorney for the contestant w"fc inaC¢U-
rate in bis regard. , 

l for t what tho e:,:act figures were with reference to the Sec-
ond_ W of Winton, butj~was something like 83 \'Otes th.at the 
conoost.~n cLmned had oo,il cast in this way, the names of those 
who c.-.st em not appeafing upon tho registry list. Mr. Balen-
tine said t at there were 50 in that ward, t hat the balance of the 
83 names o that list were not names that did not ap~ar on the 
registry lis but that they were substitutions. 

Nov, I". t to calN.be attention of the House to what substi• 
tntions mea t under all £?re circumstances of this case. 'l'ho way 
in which t · election was conituoted in these throe precincts-
and the met! was the same throughout thus whole day of in-
iquity in those three J,>recincts-w:is this: '£hey P<jflllitted eYery-
body to ..-ote. hoc,idence is abundant and nncontradicted upon 
that subject. en camo in during the early pm·tof that clny. and 
their names wcr written down on the poll book, whatever name 
a man ~a,·e bein nt down. 

Ju Old Forge th first two names of the men )"ho,.oted on that 
day were names th did not appear upoµ the registry list. Early 
in the day they star cd in that way, but as the day progressed it 
occurred to some on in that conspiracy that !hat was not a slick 
manner of doing this bing. 

Toward the close of o day the method had changed. In rlace 
of writing new names t <lid not appear upon the re~try list 
UJlOD the poll books th picke<l put names on tho registry list, 
and they had the ,·ouir,. in lien of some man who was ,lead or 
SO',UO one who had mo'"ed nt 0£ that district. These fact,; are 
sustained by tho record. ere is no room for question. In sub-
stituting the names of ,.ot;o who presented themselves first, for 
names appearing on the regi list, it ehnnced in a great many 
cases that the election office and those doing this iniquitous act 
hnd somo man ..-ote in lieu of, man who was not then present, 
but the man himself coming in nd voting afterwards under tho 
same name. Proof is abnru!nn in this record of the witnestes 
who testified that they vote4 bn once, whose names appear twice. 
M'i. Holgat.o, the attorney Jor co cstant, put in this list of names 
a grut number of names of me whose names appeared in that 

"'~ow. tho argument aroso early, nnd it was fiercely conwste<l 
before our committee a!l to what was the probative effect of these 
two cliJiorent kinds of illegal \'Otes.I Tho contention uJ)On one 
side ",as that where a,roan·s namedi~ot nppear at all upon the 
registry list that was an c,idence of ud that could not be~x-
plained-that it demonstrated corrup n and fraud. Upon /The 
other side it was said that where a man•;· ply came in and substi-
tuted or votod as a snbstituto for some o e whose Dt\UIO was upon 
the re~y list. whilo the wte would be illegal jost the sanu~ 
there w<>A n1> contention abQnt that and no denial of it.-\'ct th~re 
was a contention that it cild not tend to show corruption u ron 
the p~rt o( the judges thelilaeh-es, and thnt \11\S the issuo that we 
were trying before that cjfmmittoo. I want Members to ,mnem-
ber that. So they sepal'\lted th""" illegal votcs into two cll\sscs. 

- .. • • • ·' ,# •- &-.:-.- ,.- +h~+ ~..,.'"1n»nt, in the .1,·av I 

The Roll Call And The 4fterma th 

4 few moments after ~r.Lanning and l!Qlself.on the 
Republican side.had concluded our remarks the speaker directed 

that the ro~l be called on the motion to award the seat to the 
contestant.Kr.Connell. 

4 s the members voted,it soon became apparent 
that the large ~epubiican ma.J'ority -ould b 

w e greatly reduced or 
wiped out. 
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"(/ those districts? Did he not have the same opportunity to prove 
them if he wanted to? 

Mr. SHffiA.S. Now, gentlemen, I am trying to talk about the 
equities in this c.J68. 

Mr. NORRIS. May I ask the genUeman a question? 
Mr. SHIRAS. Certainly. 
Mr. NORRIS. In your judgment, was the committee justified 

in throwing out the three precincts? Do you agree with them in 
that? J\ Mr. SHIR.AS. I do not agree with them on that point. I do V\. not criticise them very harshly, but I do not agree with them. 

1 What I think they ought to ha'<'o done is, having found about 125 
\: irregular votes, some technically irregular and some absolutely 

fraudulent. they should have deducted those votes, even if they 'i..,' deducted them all from Howell. That would have been bad 
enongh, bat to throw them all out was unfair, in my judgment. 

Mr. CASSEL. In tho report of the Second Ward of Winton. 
184 votes were cast for Howell and 178 votes were declared and 
proved fraudulent. 

Mr. SHffiA.S. Who found them fraudulent? 
Mr. CASSEL. They were shown to be fraudulent by the evi-

dence. 
Mr. SHIR.AS. Now, we find the case stands in this way. That 

when they took the disputed districts this great numbet of votes, 
amounting to nearly 800, wore thrown out of tho three precincts. 
making a unanimous vote for Connell of 32 to nothing. That, if 
sustained. would elect Connell by 24 majority. Now. that does 
not look like much of a plurality to come into the Honse 'ate 
with, with thousands of pages of testimony at an expense of 
thousands of dollars, showing only a plurality of 24. Well, what 
does the committee do? They had a taste of "aliundeism," and 
they then did what. to my mind, is the one illegal proposition 
that bars out most of this testimony. The testimony was taken 
showing that 1,700 illegal votes were cast; yes, upward of 2,000. 
If I am incorrect I wish the chairman would correct me--

Mr. DRISCOLL. Two thousand and two. 
Mr. SHIR.AS. Two thousand and two; and when the commit-

tee came to consider these votes they were of the opinion that 
there were a number of fraudulent votes, and under aliunde 
proof they attempted to show that a great number had been cast 
for Mr. Howell, and tbom•rrls cad thousands of pages of testi-
mony were taken upon that branch of the case. I do not say it 
was wrong to take the testimony upon that point, but I say that 
when the committ.eo came to make tho report they really barred 
out the testimony and have prevented its consideration by the 
Honse. They found, I repeat, that there were 1,700 illegal votes; 
and what did they do? They file a report in which they say that 
"at least 200 votes "-that is the la~ge of the report-" at 
least 200" of these votes were cast for Howell. 

When they came to make the report, you find that in round 
numberstheydeduct200 from Howell. Let me show you what that 
means. Upon an investigation of the attitude of the members of 
the committee we find that they can not tell who the various parties 
were, what their names were, or where they were located. Is this 
not most extraordinary? In my mind it is the turning point in this 
case. ~ot only we as Republicans can not know, but the oppo-
sitiol\..~ powerless to pass upon the two questions that arise in 
eaclr'oT'these 200 cases: Was the vote illegal, and was it cast for 
Mr.. Howell? It is the introduction of this bad precedent that 
arouses in the main my opposition. 

Thus, havi~ agreed that there were 1,700 illegal votes, and 
believing that 'at least 200" of them were cast for Mr. Howell, 
they promptly charge them up and take from his count 200 votes 
that are not identified by name or voting precinct. 

Mr. KENNEDY. Why, they were passed upon by the major-
ity of the committee. 

Mr. SHIR.AS. I would like to ask the gentleman a question. 
Does the gentleman mean to say that bis committee passed upon 
these 200 votes and has got them entered on the record, in the 
minutes, as 200 voters from certain precincts? And by a vote of 
the committee determined that they were illegal? 

Mr. KENNEDY. The committee passed upon 200. In my 
judgment there are a thousand. 

Mr. SHIRA$. Now. I want to ask the gentleman how be 
passed on those 200. Where are they? What are their names? 
Why does the committee not have them in its report? 

Mr. KENNEDY. I did not draw the report. 
Mr. RANDELL of Texas. The committee did not pass on the 

200. 
Mr. SHIRA.$. I am not saying there were not 200 illegal votes 

there. I am not saying that theyonght not to bedednct.ed, if yon 
can prove them, but I say you have to do it in a legal way. Let 
me say to the members of the majority of this committee that 
when they had a vote that they wanted to deduct from Mr. 
Howell's count, one of the gentlemen should have said, "Mr. 
Chairman, I move you that the vote of John Smith, illegal by 

false registration or nonpayment of taxes, 'l<'bich vote the evi-
dence shows has been cast for Mr. Howell, shall be deducted 
from bis count." That should have boon put to a vote of the en-
tire committee, and if the committee affirmatively by its major-
ity struck that out. the Republicans and Democrats voting upon 
it, then that vote should have been taken from the count of Mr. 
Howell. 

But what have you done? Yon have simply come to the con-
clusion-all of you,as individnals--thattherewere "at least200" 
illegal votes out of 1,700 that ~-ere cast for Mr. Howell. and you 
have deducted them without identifying them by the name of the 
voter or voting precinct, a thing I never heard of, e.-en in the 
"solid South." Now, unless the members of this committee can 
deny what I say her-ihat they have taken 200 votes that they 
can not identify-it seems to me that it shows the dangerous 
character of the aliunde evidence, and it is upon that that this 
gentleman roointing] relies for obtaining his seat. 

Mr. CASSEL. Mr. Speaker, let me answer that just here. First, 
the members of the minority say that these questions were not dis• 
cussed by the majority who signed this report.. The majority 
report was signed by the majority members of this coml)litt.ee, and 
it was not submitted to the minority. We passed a resolution by 
vote of the committee stating that we thought that Mr. Connell 
was entitled to bis seat. The majority then prepared this report 
and signed it. 

Mr. SHmAS. Let me ask the gentleman a qnestion-
Mr. JOHNSON. Mr. Spe:aker, will the gentleman let me make 

a statement right here? I do not want to take any of his time. 
Mr. SBIRAS. I ,vill yield to the gentleman. 
Mr. JOHNSON . The majority oi the committee furnished the 

minority of the committee the names of the thirty-two voterJ 
whose testimony was established by alinnde evidence. We are 
able to e:s:amine them and see for ourselves whether there is any-
thing upon which to base it. They do not furnish us any of the 
list of the 200 men that they say illegally voted for Mr. Howell, 
and we can not e:s:amine that, and the House can not. 

Mr. DRISCOLL. Mr. Speaker. I would like to ask right here 
the gentleman from South Carolina a question. Is it .true that 
the majority furnished the minority those thirty-two names? Is 
it not true that I asked one member to furnish the' names that 
he had examined to the rest of us, and also to th(l members of the 
minority? 

Mr. JOHNSON. May I make another statement? 
Mr. SHIRAS. Mr. §!2eaker, I have not yielded to the gentle-

man from New York LMr. DRISCOLL]. 
Mr. JOHNSON. May I answer the gentleman's question? 
The SPEAKER. Does the gentleman yield? 
Mr. SHIRAS. Yes; I will yield to the gentleman from South 

Carolina. 
.Mr. JOHNSON. The majority of tho committee divided up 

this work. That is the reason they do not Jmo,v any more about 
it. One man e:xamined one J)!\rt of the record and another man 
another. I e:xamined all of 1t. That is the di.fference. fLaugh-
ter.1 One member of the committee who made up the list of the 
3"2 alinnde votes handed that list to the ranking member of tho 
minority of the committee, and the majority of the committee 
adopted his work. 

Mr. FOSTER of Illinois. Let me ask this question. Is there any 
evidence in the record showing that the 200 votes thus thrown 
out were cast for Mr. Howell? 

Mr. JOHNSON. We do not know whose votes those 200 were; 
the names are not_given. 

Mr. SHIRAS. Now, I shonld like to make this reply to the 
gentleman from Pennsylvania [Mr. CASSEL]. He having ad-
mitted that he and his five colleagues on the committee pas.'led 
upon these 200 votes; suppose that on the question of charging 
up those votes for Mr. Rowell or takin~ them away from him 
there had been a division among those six members of the com-
mittee; suppose tho vote had been 4 to 2, then, if the Democratic 
members had come in and voted on thatquestion, that vote would 
not have been thrown ont. 

In other words, there was only a majority of a majority voting 
u pon that question of striking ont these .-otes. The result is that 
tho committee itself does not know what those 200 votes rel?re-
sent. They could not agree and have not agreed on that pomt. 
Those votes are simply floating in the air, without name or habi-
tation. No one can identify those voters. No member of the 
committee or anyone else can do so. 

Mr. CASSEL. I believe that I speak trnthfulJy when I say 
that at least four of the su: members of the majority of tho com-
mittee, after having gone over the testimony in tho case name by 
name and man by man, comparing the testimony o . .. · one side 
and on the other, were in favor of putting into tbill report any-
where from 500 to 1,000 of those people. 

Mr. SHIR.AS. It would not have been any worse if yon had 
done so. 
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Tbey are also to be credited with the fact that they had to deal J6d owing t.o the failure to connect it np witn the vot.es thrown 
I ., With one of the most difficult cases in point of extent of t.estimony out; and when yon come to consider the matter, therefore, it will 
U J and number of witnesses of any case thathas 1-n presented here be fOUDd that .... ~honsand pages of this t.estimony can 

for years. • not properly be considered: 
Now, I do. not question their sincerity; and, under ordinary Now, let us look at another featnre of this case. The Tenth dis-

.,flrcwnstall~. I take it, i t is the duty of :Members of this Honse trict of Pennsylvania in 1902 was Democratic. The Democratic 
to follow tho suggestions and recommendations made by the ma- candidate for goyernor carried it by some five or su: thousand ma--

l"---? jority of the committee that has examined a case o£ this kind. jority; and before the election every Republican who knew any• 
While, therefore, I do not qnestion the sincerity of my fellow- thing about the state of the case in that district knew that there 

" members who wrote t~ majority report, neither do I question 'l'ras very little question that the Democratic Congressionalcandi-
.. '\ very serionsly their judgment up to a certain point. When you date would carry that district, although ordinarily a Repnblican V' come to eumine ilhe majority report do'l\"11 to a certain point. it di.strict. 

\ L will be fonn<1 - substantially right. but when they be- Consequently, the Democrats knowing this, and knowing that 
come impregnated with the gemls of ·' aliundeism" they seem to they had more than a fighting chance, there was every reason in 
act, as it appear!j to me, with utter disregard io the law that the world why they shonld pnt forward a representative Demo-

t should control in a case of this kind. crat to lead-them to the victory which would surely come to them 
In a few moments I sh:ill Tefer briefl:y to the question of aliunde in that district when the -i-otes were cast in 1002. 

evidence; bnt before touching upon that point I v,,ant to say t-0 Mr. GILBERT. What were the changed conditions that led 
my Republican colleagues that this is admittooly a close case from people to think it would go Democrutic? . 
the standpoint of the majority. There are 6,500 ,vitnesses and Mr. SHIRA$. There was.a series of labor strikes growing out 
2.500 pa~es of testimony, and doubtless thOllSJ1._!Lds and tens of of .the coal business there, and Mr. Connell was oue of the lead-
thou.sanas of dollars were spent

0
itl"pc;,miu~ ·:v ;IJ!iW Ibis ing coal operators, and it was natmal under thoso conditions to 

And what was the result? The majority find expect reprissls. a plnralify of 223 votes in favor of the contestant ont of a total The county of Lackawanna gave the Democratic canilidi.te for 
of 28,000 votes cast in that district. They have taken the posi- governor bet-ween Jive and six thousand majority. Now, the 
tion, necessarily, that if there had 1-n a change of 112 votes in Democrats, knowing that this "°as coming, saw their duty, nnd 
that district Mr. Connell-the contestant-would ha'l"e been d&- theyiJlerefore expected to nominate a Democratic candidate, be-
feated. cau&e ·rihllit-P :1·naril1Bepu:blican diMrtM they expected t-0elect 

Now, gentlemen, yon must remember that while that is con- their candidat.e. 
ceded by the majority of the commit'-<'96 representing this side of Now, what )lappened? The kind friends of the contestant went 
the House, the.Democrats do not .concede that the result was so into a Democratic convention. disrupted it, and, with a very small 
close. Yon must take the situation as it.existed there; and there minority of tbe convention apparently, got the Democratic nonp.-
are equities in theocase tMt -seem to me to throw a great deal of nation. Although he is coming here to-day charging fraud 
light on the situation. In the first place, wo are told that we against tho Democracy, be received and filed a Democratic certifi. 
ought to follow the majority of the committee because of the cate of nomination in Dauphin County. Yr. Howell, who bnd 
great volume of testimony taken. Now, ,gentlemen. let me tell the majority of the convention. also recei-i-ed a Democratic nomi• 
you those are wooden guns piled "llPilhBFe, If you have listened nation, and tllat was filed in Dauphin Connty. A contest arose, 
to the debate up to tho present time you must ha-i-e been satis- and the courts of Pennsylvania decidecl that the nomination gh'en 
tied of the fact that the case rests upon a very few pages-of testi- to Mr. Connell was illegal and threw him off the Democratic 
mony and se'l"eral 'l"ery simple propositions of law. ticket. 

The testimony relied upon here is substantially quoted in the ll!r. SW ANSON. Do yon 'Illean he cl..'Ullled to be the Demo-
minority report. If any ~ember -will take the two reports and cratic nominee? 
go off quieUy by himself for an hour and anal.yze this case, he Mx. SHIRA$. Yes. 
will come to a conclusion withont the necessity of looking into Mr. GILB:ElRT. What proportion of that con,ention voted for 
the testimony further-; or if be has list.ened to the debate of yes- Mr. Connell? 
terday, he must in the same way have-reached a conclusion as to Mr. OLMSTED. Will my colleague permit a question! 
how he should vote. Mr. SBIRAS. Yes. 

Now, the idea of any Republican here trying to hide behind that Mr. GiLBERT. What proportion ot the Democrats in that 
mass of testimony, and sa~, "I am unable to delve int.o all the convention-
depths of this case and come to a conclusion, and I can satisfy my Mr. SHIRAS. I have yielded to my colleague, M.r. OLl!STED. 
conscience by following the lead of this committee," is, it seems Mr. OLMSTED. I understood yont.o find fault with the Demo-
to me, fallacious. Some gentlemen on this side undertake to cratic convention for nominating or attempting to nominate a 
throw the responsibility on the ·committee in that way. They Republican. 
&'\f: "I believe the members of the committee to be honest, con- Mr. GlliBERT. As a Democrat. 
scientious men. They have gone through this mass of testimony, Mr. SRIRAS. I say Mr. Connell went to a Democratic conven-
and we can not do better, under .the -circumstances, than follow tion ana was nominated. 
their conclusion." OLMSTED. Let me ask my colleague if he himself was 

On th:lt 1~int I wish yonr .attention. The determination-Of this not nominated by a Democratic organization? 
case does not require the consideration of the testimony to any M-r. SHIRAs. Yes, and the three other Republican ·Congress-
great extent! The testimony upon which the issue here turns has men in Allegheny County also recei-i-ed Citizens' nominations. 
been re~y read and referred to on both sides of the Honse. Mr. DALZ!lL1' himseli received a Citizens' nomination, although 

Mr. D COLL. noes the gentleman mean to say that all the he did not receive a Democratic nomination. 
t,,:iia eridcnce has been read? Mr. OLMSTED. Did yonrecciveDemocraticsnpportand 'l'rere 

.Mr. SHIR.AS. All the material evidence, the evidence that yon yon elected in that way against the regular Republican nominee? 
rely upon. has been mentioned, lts character analyzed and pre, Is not that the fact? , 
sented to the Honse. Mr. SHIRA$. Thatis»ottheiact, sir, as stated. I ran as an 

Mr. DltISCOLL. We could not do that in a week. avowed Republican, and, as is .often the case, recei,ed several 
Mr. SHIRAS. When yon come t.oconsider the questions of law party nominations. 

invohed here, if yon are inclined to give due weight to those- Mr. KLUTTZ. The Democrats dia not Tote !or yon, did they? 
questions, nine-tenths of this testimony must be ruled out a'bso- Mr. OLMSTED. A good many of them did. [Laughter-.] 
lntely. M.r. SH:IRAS. As this matt.er is becoming a little personal, 

Mr. CASSEL. Bas the i;entleman read the briefs of the con- perhaps I had betterTefer briefly to the political situation in All&-
testant and contestee in this case? • gheny County. We have not any Democratic party in Allegheny 

Mr. SHIRAs. I have read the report Tery carefully three or County practically, for they ha'l"e j oined in the fight for good gov-
four times and have consulted with practically eYery member of ernment; we have two Repnblican parties there. If the Demo-
the majority of the committee es:cept Mr. DRISCOU., whom I crats had run a Democratic candidate in my district against two 
tried to see several times. I sa.y the report-- Reyublicans, he would not recei,e probably more than 4,000 votes 

Mr. CASSEL. 1~m speaking of the briefs which set forth the out:of the 80.000 votes cast. • L-... 
case as presented by the two committees. Mt CONNE:t,t. To which party do yon belong? 

Mr. $Bl.RAS. As I have already said, I have not attempt.ed to MrJj!IlR.Af'll"Wllen the vote was taken there I had 14,500 
read all the .testimony in the case, because I have taken the word votiis;~e other Republican had about 14,500 '\"Otes, so there was 
of the majority 1lS • •ell a.s the minority of the committee that the bul .a 'l"ery small di.Jference between the two, but the -i-ote that 
material eviden on which they rely bas been presented. was caef.' there for me represented the untrammeled, Donoffice-

1 think it can shown that the great mass of this testimony hold~ vote in my district. I think I got practically every fair-_.... 
must be ruled -ou not only because it comes under the head o£ minded, ll!tll!'llmmeled Repnblican ,ote in that district in tbat 

~-~-a.li_ ·nn_ de~ proo but oocanss this aliunde evidence can not ·be ap- particular contest. [Laagatei:J . I will tell you why I think so. 
------------
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~) Jllr. OLMSTED. Then thereare14,500trammeledRepnblicans 
_Jin that district? [Laughter.] · 

Mr. SHIRAS. 'N'o; bnt there are • -IGd~t, officeholders in 
that district. Federal, State. and comlty(laugli ], and two or 
three thonS.'.lnd relatives. Now, I got few of those votes. :S!o::~--:~~:=.e~~--i~ 

Mr. CASSEL. What has become of the parties that nomi-
nated you at that time? Have not they gone back into the Repub-
lican party? 

Mr. SHIRAS. I am not going back into the pedigreo of Alle-
gheny County politics. No ono can understand them, and I can 
not expect the gentleman to understand them. 

Jllr. GILBERT. There is no contest about your seat. 
Mr. SHIRA.S. The gentleman ~ 

indicatiig that I did not represent the Republicans in 
my al.strict, intimating that if I did I would have had a larger 
majority. 

Mr. OLMSTED. No; I think it simply shows that yon have 
become one the...-0 officeholders. ~~R;gll..._. 

Mr. SHIRAS. You look at it from a different point of view. 
Now let me tell yongentlemenabont that district. My Republican 
opponent ran on the "organization" Republican ticket, on the 
same ticket as Governor Pennypacker, on the so-calle<l " straight 
Repnblican ticket." Governor Pennypacker carried the Twenty-
ninth Congressional district by 20,000 majority, and my Repub-
lican opponent was not elected. Did the Democrats do that? My 
opponent ran 20,000 votes behind the Republican State ticket in 
this Congressional district. Could be h:we been more badly de-
feated? 

Mr. KENNEDY. The same thing occurred over in Lacka-
wanna, did it not? 

Mr. SHIRA$. I am being diverted from what I was saying. 
Mr. GILBERT. Now will the gentleman answer my question? 

What proportion of the Democrats in the convention in this Con-
gressional district were in favor of the nomination of Mr. Connell 
as the Democratic nominee? 

Mr. THAYER. Thirty-two out of 192. 
Mr. SIIIRAS. Now, gentlemen, you do not want to hear me 

on what the Democrats of Allegheny County could, would, or 
should have done, or my political J>edigt-ee, but it is simply a ques-
tion of fact, "Who was elected?'' ana yon can not see who has 
been elected, for the Committee on Elections ha6 oo limited the 
inquiry that not over fifteen of the witnesses whose testimony 
was taken is material to this issue. 

Mr. SIBLEY. Let me call your attention--
Mr. SHIR.AS. Let me give the reason, because I do not want 

to make a statement-and then have to analyze it before I go on. 
I started to say that the result of this Democratic convention was 
that not only was Mr. Connell's nomination thrown off the Dem-
ocratic ticket, bnt Mr. Howell, the admitted Democrat, who posi-
tively was a ,Democrat and whom the Democrats knew had a 
chance of election, was also thrown off the Democratic ticket. 

The SPEAKER. The time of the gentleman has expired. 
Mr. McLAIN. I will yield tho gentleman ten minutes more if 

be desires it. • 
Mr. SHIRAS. The controversy that arose in this Democratic 

convention, 1n which the contest.ant desired to carry off the prize, 
is not material, or o~ht not to be, except for one phase. Every-
one here who is candid will admit that if Jl!r. Howell had been 
before his district on the straight Democratic ticket, it would 
have given him four to five thousand Democratic majority, and 
he would have certainly gotten it but for the e:rtraordi.nary and 
peculiar methods of proce<lure of that Democratic convention. 

Therefore I say. gentlemen, the question in this controversy is 
as to the alleged Democratic convention, with a Republican can-
didate, and an actual Democratic candidate. I take it that all 
Republican Members here who are in favor of fair play well know 
that Mr. Howell got 461 majority, instead of the 4,000 or 5,000 
he ordinarily would have had. It is difficult for this committee 
to show that all these votes were intentionally fraudulent. I take 
the position that in the consideration of this case there is no 
doubt that the committee bas failed to fully understand the sub-
sequent effect of this Democratic convention when figuring upon 
the m:i.jority that Howell would have had. 

Mr. CASSEL. Do you mean to say that the committee, which 
bas given two weeks' continuous work in going over this evid~ce 
and testimony, fonr weeks almost, commencing at 10 o'clock in 
the morning and continuin~ until 5 o'clock, and giving ~ ough 
their report their conclusions that they have arrived a t, that 
they do not know more of it than you, when yon say that you 
have not been able even to re:i.d it? ' 

Mr. SHIRAS. I have been trying to get to the very proposi-
tion, because the bulk, perhaps, of this testimony, showing what 
yon did, is what has led up to my general proposition, viz, whether 

yon have established the fact of Mr. Connell being entitled to a 
seat nnder this evidence. Now, what do yon do? You find 461 y 1 plurality in favor of the Democratic candidate, and you change 
that to 22-3 in favor of the contestant. How do ~n do that? Up 
to a certain point the committee did not go astray. .tt showed, I 
think, good 3ndgment when i.t took up the case of th9 three pre-
cincts, which they charged to have been, on their face, full of frand.,. 
To take these up and with careful judgment proceed to deter-
mine how they would get at the fraud and what effect tho fraud 
had on the general result. · 

But they did not treat it fairly. In the first place, they found i50 
illegal votes of persons who had not paid their taxes, 00 illegal 
votes of persons who had not registered, and those. to some 
extent, were technically illegal votes, bnt instead of taking those 
votes out of Old For~e and the Second and Third wards of Win-
ton, and even charging all against Mr. Howell, what did they 
do? They threw out the entire 797 votes, though Mr. Howell had 
454 majority .• 

Mr. McLAIN. Jl!ay the gentleman allow me to interrupt him 
for a moment just to say I will allow him as much time as be 
wants and he can proceed as he desires. 

Jl!r. SHIRA$. Now, that, gentlemen, is the starting point of 
this case. Here are districts that cast 797 votes. that ga;,e Jl!r. 
Howell 625 votes and 172 to the contestant, and an admi$sion that 
J)art of these were t~hnically illegal ballots and not fraudulent in 
the worst sense. They threw out those 797 votes, and they do not ~ 
show in the evidence taken in Old Forge and in the Second and - '-> 
Third wards of Winton that any single one-mark me-that a sin- _.:,, 
gle one of those fraudulent votes had boon cast for Mr. Howell, 
but, on the contrary, the only evidence of illegal votes cast was 
that they were cast for the contestant. ls that not correct, I ask 
the gentleman from New York? 

Mr. SW ANSON. Yon mean that there was no fraud on the 
ballot box? 

Mr. SHIRAS. I say in the proof they did not attempt to prove 
any of those illegal votes bad been cast for Mr. Howell. 

Mr. SW ANSON.' They were simply people who voted not being 
properly registere<l. 

Mr. SHIRAS. There may have been false impersonations, 
t~e1-n..~ ,2{ e_fp:eme uauds, but I am n<>t de-
fending that; I am analyzfngnow they got at the question of the 
separate fraudulent votes or assumed illegal votes-'-

Mr. GILBERT. They cast that vote to Jl!r. Howell without 
anyproof-

Mr. SHIRAS. They found nothing, in my j udgment, which 
should lead to the throwing out of the entire precincts. The re-
sult of that was that Mr. Howell still had 8 majority and then 
they went back and by alinnde proof-here is the dangerous point 
in their process, by aliunde proof-they found that32 of those 797 
votes had been cast for Mr. Connell. Now, what was the result, 
gentlemen, of that finding? It was this: Here were three pre-
cincts with 797 votes and with the larg~ majority of 454 for Mr. 
Howell which were :i.bsolutely thrown out'. They destroyed this 
entire vote, yet fonnd Mr. Howell elected by 8 majority. They 
then go back and ~o over the embers, yon might say, of the de-
stroyed votes and ~d 32 for Mr. Connell, and turn that Demo-
cratic district, which gave 454 majority for Jl!r. Howell, over to 
Mr. Connell by a unanimous vote-32 for Connell, nothing for 
Howell. It seems incredible. 

Mr. SW ANSON. Which gave that majority? 
Mr. SHIRAS. Yes. 
Mr. DRISCOLL. Will the gentleman yield for a question? 
Mr. SHIRAS. Certainly. ' --
Mr. DRISCOLL. ls not that the ordinary practice, ttat when 

a district or poll is thrown out for fraud. to go back md prove 
votes cast for both parties by evidence aliunde? WM that not 
done in the Fifty-fifth Congress in the case of Wise 11. Young and 
in many other cases? 

Mr. SHIRA.S. I do not think it was ever don~ t>nder condi-
tions as they existed in this case. 

Mr. DRISCOLL. No two conditions in election~ .are exactly 
alike, but where we throw out votes of certain di~',ricts because 
of fraud, the practice for both parties is to g!> bacl; and prove the 
votes cast for their candidates aliundo. 

Mr. SHIRAS. Now, I want to ask a question in return. Is i t 
not a fact that those three districts cast 797 votes, which gave 
Mr. Howell a majority of 454 votes, and by throwing out those 
precincts it still left a majority of 8, and that the action of the 
committee in finding those 32 votes put the result in fa;,or of Mr. 
Connell? 

Mr. DRISCOLL. Why, yes, but- [Ap;,lause on the Demo-
cratic side.1 Oh, there is nothin~ to cheer .,bout -this; we are 
dealing in facts here. We stated 1t yesterd,.y olrselves, and it is 
not necessary for a Mugwump from Pennsy1vrJJia to state it over 
again. I simply say, is it not the invariable, nle? Did not Mr. 
Howell have the same chance to go back end n rove his votes in 
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, The vote was as follows: Connell 156; Rowell 148. y ~ ta cbange of four votes would have permitted the sitting 

member to retain his seat. 

~efore the roll call a number of Republicans 

absented themselves,while a half dozen more sat in their seats and 

merely answered •present• when their names were called • .11.a.d a 

small fraction or those who refused to vote,as evidence of their 

dissatisfaction,given their support to Kr.Howel l he would not have 

been ousted. 

During the confusion following the announcement 

of the result,Judge walter I. Smith of Council Bluffs.Iowa,came 

to me and said.•I have been in Congress a number of years.but t his 

is the first time I bad reason to be ashamed of my vote. Had you 

opened the attack at the beginning of the proceedinge,instead of 

at the end,it would have given many of us a cnance to get our bear-

ings. l had definitely pledged my vote to Mr.Connell and had not 

courage enough to shift at the last moment.• There were other 

~epublicans who did not feel this way,for General Grosvenor,the 
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dough1¥ old war horse from Ohio,purposely pa.ssed my seat t.nat he 

might shout out.•some day you will regret having voted for that 
t, 

Democra.t1• I ansYered that I was not voting for a Democrat but for 
JUS~e. II 

It ma.y be sta.teo. that my attitude in this contest was 

approved by pr,cticaJ.ly all my constituents and the other voters 

in the a(1Jo1ning aistricts.~ ceived a~eurance or a renomination 

by the parties that had previously supp~ e,while a message came 

rrom the nepubiican organization ~hat~ it understood l was not 

a candidate for r•lection.it seemed certain that if 1 were .....an-

a~ i wouia receive the support or the Hepublican leaders 

w '" did not wish to see me succeeded by my former opponen~\ whose asso-

ciation witn uo~enor $tone naa oroll3ht him into popular disfavor. 

On the other hand General Grosvenor.by reason 01 a ractionaJ. row 

nad. l.ater been refused a renomination,and in his reatment t ried to 

get the Democratic no11Unat1on 1or 1,;ongress,1n wmc.ll he railed, tnus 

showing that his party fealty was only skin deep. 

Jly ,-o distinguished colleagues who had been elected 

on the ~ itizens' ticke' at the time I was,roted for Connell,eaying 

to me ;.n explanation, that they hoped to receive the regular Repub-

lican nomination next time,which might be jeopardized if they -roted 

for a Democrat. These hopes,however,were blasted,for havi ng become 

•regular• they were cast aside by the political b•sses as ones no 

longe.r to be feared. I cite these instances as indicating that cn-

aJ,,l 8·umee-te- a pQlUisca.1 art,y ~ued 411 bl.ind partisa.nship,or 

~d11u4 •• political timidity,does not appeal to the electorate at 

home. 

As a. sequel to this part of the narrative,it may be 

stated that when I declined to be a candidate,my personal friend 
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and pol itical. aseocia.te, Stephen G. Porter ,leader in the ~ tizena• 

party movement,ua s given t he r egular Republi can nomination for 

Congreee,over my old rival w. H.Graham, and was elected by ,..u- 20,000 

l!laJority. Kr. Porter has been succeseively re- elected,until he has 

now served some t wenty- five yea-rs,attai ni ng t he hi gh position of 

Chairman of the Committee on For e1~ ,%el ~}i ons. This result i ndicatm 

ho\1 t he temporary r efo1'111 movement tl96 brok• the political shackles 
""-

of near ly fifty years, and ~ o the voters the opportunity t o 

select candidates WlO- stanA\.agh i n t he popul a r est eem. 
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COJST~tO-ELl'-OTION C.lSE-<:O:S'N~-~;. BOWl!I,L, 
• Mr. D!lISCOLL. Mr. Speaker, by direction of the Committee 
on Elections No. 3, and in pursu.anco of a notice · las 
I no"'. call n&,for present consideration the contee~~ecti~:eek,1 

~lo~!:::::~:~;:::~l~:o:t~:er:::o:~=--
The Clerk road as follows: t B oQ&O reBOlution No. ms. 

Fi!R~~~b•'-TConbatHon. Goorge Bowell wa., JlOtelccted A Repre56nta.tive In tb6 
t;~ '-" from th~ Tenth d.istrict o! tbe $to.to of Pennsylvania 

,- in Wi.Wam Connell was doly elected a. Repr080ntatfr0 
q varu!, ud ts ootitlod t!~~~or'o1t:.TeDtb district ot tho St.ate ot Penusrl• 

Mr. DRISOOLL. The time. t.o be equally divided and to be con-
tro1,ned by_ the gentleman from Mississiopi on his side and by my se on Ui.1.s side. • • 

Cf-/->H~i\~irijjf:tt;1lfr.~: i;-
r:r.1 -','l,.,~-
1""""l • ,(.) ~·) ¥NJ • 

Mr. McLAIN. Mr. Spe..uer, I yieldfiftoo,;~ut";;•to the gen-
tleman from Pennsylvania [Mr. SUIRA.S) . 

Mr. SH.IRA.S. Mr. Speaker. I have ex.~mined the majority and 
minority reports in this case. I have also looked over the evidence 
that was considered material, and I consulted at a considerable 
length of time with the majority of the members that composed 
the Repnblican majority in this committee. Notwithstanding 
the consideration given to the report of the majority. I find I am 
n.nable to agree in the recommendations made by my party col-
leagues. In the first place, permit me to say that I do not ques-
tion for an instant the sincerity of the gentlemen who compose 
tho majority of this committee. Anyone who listened to the re-
marks of the gentleman from Iowa [Mr. BmDSA.LL) and the chair-
man of this committee, the gentleman from New York [Mr. 
DRISCOLL], must be impressed with the fact that these men 
believe they are right. 

/ 
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V 
.. \ 

PART I 

College Daya, Eorly Polit ical Exper i flncea. then and therea.t'ter. 
18 77 - 1887 

PART II 

?!ominaticn, Electi on and £ervioi:, 1n the Pennsylvania Legislat ure. 
1888 - 1890 

PART III 

A. Cezldi dacy at two success i ve ~r imari ea tor t he Re~ublicon nami nat i on f or Congreaa. 

B. 'Iho a.t'terr.lat h ot t ho above C811JP&igns. 

PART IV 

Na:unation, Election and ~ rvice i n t he 58t h Congress . 
1902 - 1905 

PART V 

Preperation of conogra~hs on Nat i onal ~olice .Power, the Conet i t uti onali ty ot 
Federal 1a•• protect.iJl6 Migratory birds/ and lligratory tiah, t he Conat1 t ut1onal1ty 
of Gbe Protective 'i'nritt, t he Unconatitutionallty ot t he Canadi an Reciprocity Agree-
ment, the Charac ter ot the Federal J urilldiction owr Public Heol th, the need ot a 
&e""81'8te League ot Nat i ons i n Ar.lerica l1Jld Europe, the !listory ot t he or i gi nal IUgra-
tory Brid Bill. 
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PART I 
College Daya, Early Pol1Ucal E:qer1encea, then end thereat"ter. 
1877 - 1887 

1. College Daya 
J.. Cornell 

, Greek letter tratern1t1ea. 
-#" ..,.-2. 1bea1a on the u.s. Conat1tut1on. 

3. Pol1t1cal Act1v1t1ea at Cornell. 
,. First end lest ceet1nga 111 th 1beodore noosevelt 

B. Yale Law School 
1. Claas -te• (neapal)8r ort1cle on Col. Houae. ) 
2 . Debates. 
3. 1beaia on the Protiot1ve Tar11't. 
, . Academic rating. 
~. Decline election to the Presidency ot Kent Club. 

::,( - ~ /4.(__, 

2 . Begin the Practice ot Law. 1.. Star'ting out as a la17Y,er. 
B. 'nle case or tho forgef 111 - circumstantial end direct ev1donee. 

3. ·A Pig Iron State and a Pi ~ State811!8Jl" 
A. 1be elootion or Se t.a tor -bu1y. 
B. Circulat ion or the pm:!l)hlet entitled "A Pig Iron State, otc. " 
c . Cctments or t he publlo and a.n attomot to bring Senat or .;;uay to trial 1n a 

libel ou1t against the outhor. 
t . P.wspe:por cl1pp1nga. 

PART II 
Nl:Dination, Election and !.lerv1ce i n t ho Pannaylvania Legislature. 
1888 - 1890. 

I. CawpeSg tor the Legislature. 
A.Be00111ea a Candidate tor t l,e Legislature. 
B, 8-lpesa Carda and liternture. ,, 

/ c. A political s t ory - "A Beer Bot tle and e.~UI#". ~ 
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5. The Legislature as a pol1 t1cal training school. 
A. ?eraonnel ot tho Leg!slaturo. 
B. 'lbe Leg1slatl.ll'G as a poli t 1oal training s obool . 

6 . Bllllk legislation and its strange ae .. uela. 
Sane bank l ~ i slation. 

B. A deudlool!::, detoat ot the Bill, consequences. 

7 . Uiacolls.neous legislative record . 
A. Gets a sur;irtae ( i nitiation to tbe Legislature) . 
B. Tho Legislature convenea. 

l . '!he Pennsyl vania R.R. Pass. 
2 . C011!1111 ttee uaignments. 
3 . Fri cnd.cy treatment by tho leaders. 

c. A lfl'Opoeed i llegal act and its f i nal enactzoont 1n that form (the Di stilleries Bill) 
U. 'lbe Grade Crossi lJ8 Bill. 
E. Cl11>pinga on the Grade Croaaine Bill. 
F. Bill tor better treatment ot i neane f'anales. 
C. Picture of' St ate ca.,itol , Ha..-rlsburg. 
H. Exyre8111ons or good wi ll f'roc colleegqes P,P th°AJ~ici ary Ccmni ttee. i J, ~t. .,. ........ I tt- r ..... ,-r ;. ..... V ,-,,,. ..J.,,u -,.... .. ,d.•r 11-

':.ile cmape18,11 tel' Gensre1111 oge1nat Col, Stomr. _ f ;.. MClllllnation Stone. 
-~ C¢utcstod eloot1on ar delegat es. ---y----r flf-

-1:. Had t o g i-.e up his stolen •• 
:;). Cl osing days of' the C31'lpa18Jl• 
E. l:omtnated i n another convention. 
F. ltewspaper clippines. 
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10. A succes.sf'ul re1'om covement and the conV1ct 1on and ~r1sonr:ont or L'ayor Wyman 
A. A aucceastul ref orm eovcment. 
B. Report or the aud1 tors . 

1 . '1he Jtayor brought to trial. 
2 . 'ihe ~ r conv1ctc4. 

c. A NYeali ng 1nterriew and itc consequancoe. 
1 . Tile ~ or•• relation to the Bayne and Stone C81llp8181ls• a. l!ayor geta workhouee instead 01' ponn1tentiaey sentence . 

D. BeglDnlngs or a no,:, reglce. 
l . Kennedy bec01:10s J!ayor. 
2 . Father appoi nted to Sunreme Court . 
3 . Retire t'rom poll tics t o ,ror k 1n law 1'irm. 

E. C1rculare ot the Citizens Coall1t tee. 

ll. Attel!l1>ted icpeachment 01' .Tudge 'lth1ta. 
A. D1&-:u.J.etiDG ruz:x,re. 
B. Preparntion or Impeachr.lent Resoluti on. 
c . Resolution temporarily s i de t racked. 
D. Preparati one 1'or consi derati on ot the Resolution. 
E. Interriew Grah1111 ond get oorres,ondenoe 11'1 th rlh1 to. 
Y . sa:ie eubsequent d i scover i es. 
G. Notarized atat ee,ent 01' Carles v. Robi son. 
B. Letters to ~ . Shi ras on t he White Case. 
I . Let ters 1'r= ~1r. Sh i ras on the IThi te cas.t. 
1. Newspaper clippings. 

12. Redeer:llng l'leet Vi rgi nia 
A. Hunt ing deer and votes in l'leat Virginia. 
B. Let ter 1'l'0el Fi nenoe CClll:11 ttee to rai ae ti.Inds to rede81!1 'll'es t Virg i ni a . 
c . Leiter t:rom v . B. Strftl()Ur (1896) aeldll8 help i n r aisi ng momy. 

13. Friendahip a or the "Xnisllts or t he Rolll'ld Tabla" 

PART IY 
mr.mfATIO?rl £LLCT!ON AND S!l'RVICB m 58th 
1902 - 190IS 

14. 'lbe Ci tizens Party. 
A. Or81!1J11zat1on to cwerthlltJw the Republican ring. 
B. Accepts nmination for Co1181'888 {.Tune 18, 1902) . 
c. Md.N.ss by nr . Sh1ras on "Ring Rule" (Sapte!!lber , 1902) . 
D. Electi on to Congress (1902). () 
B. Some Campalgr. Literat ure. u r. _. {r'h.-- J ...,/,fl~ '.~-.-..--.. 
F. Newspaper oli ppi ugs. /"' V""" "I T '· 
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15. The :!Enh Cougreu . 
A. Unique h1etoey ot the 58th Congress (incmplete.) 
B. Fint S-ion ot t he 58"11 Congress {i ncomplate.) 
c. Ol der -bera ot the 58th Congress. 
D. New l!IC!bers in the 58th Coil8Nl&a• 
E. Prca1Dent leaders who eened i n the ::i8th Congress. 

l . ( Contains do tailed •~count of' Sheppard. ) 
P. Saa ot the diatinguiahed ~ena.tora &erTing duri ng the 58th Congress. 
o. Vice Presi dential Candidotea in the 58th CoDgl"eas. 

l .(Q\rner aho .ld be added t;o thi s list. ) 
R. '1h, daily routine in Congress. 
I . Special and general l egislation. 
J. Cloak rOOlll 1.nti.lllacies. 
K. Wits ot the :eouae. 
L. First 11:tproHiona often valuable. 
u. HMd ot ne• standing omm1 tteea. 
N. ?18w'apa1,)8r clippi ngs. 
o. Letter - "Sol"l'J' I was not a Candidate f or Re-El tion."_. . J-:--

·c-.,,., -J-1 a~ .. J.A-;l-~ --;.. 

16. 58th Collg1"9H - CCDlliUN on Publ1o Lends. 
A. Appointeraont ot Rouae COlll!litteea. 
13. 1!.enbora of CUIIDi t"tee on :?ulll1o Landa. 
c. Repeal ot the Tint)er and S... .t.ot. 
D. National Parle in aahington. 
». H.R. t l.CM,43 or F.;lJt Hetional Parle. 
F. Record ot ?ie1u.-inga on Ho:iostttado in South Dekota end Colora(!o. 
o. Relief o aettlera i n Oreeon. 
H. l '.eaaage f rco. the Presi dent to the Public Landa Oom:!1ss1on. 
I . li'.1acellaneou11. 

17. Contested election case of Connel Ts. Howell. 
A. ETenta leading Ill) t o the contest. 
B. Congressional itecord on the co.ae. 
c. 'lhe vote llJld eventual results. 
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GREll LB'l"l'ER FRATERNrrn:s 

As I look back to my college days, it seems to r.ie that the outstandi ng 

i nf'luence to which I was subjected was my four years of associ ation with the 

Alpha Delta Phi fraternity. The members were housed i n an adequate building, wi th 

a ccmnodious livi ng ro= and library, lodge roan on the third floor , and ample 

sui tes of bed rooms. '!hei r contacts were of necessity, and indeed from choice, 

i ntimate. 

l!ost of the Ameri can colleges and universi t i es have fran ten to twenty 

Greek letter fraternities. Princeton, which has ieveloped the college club , 

bas none. Harvard looks upon them as social clubs. Yale has a one year system 

tor junior soci eties. They have a hundred or more members and are looked on 

as steppi ng stones to the more exclusive seni or soci eties. In the other i nsti-

tutions, as a rule, fraterni ty membershi p is open to members of all classes. 

The close personal. contact wi th t.aternity associates tor so many years 

results , as a matter of course, in the closest i ntimacy and lays the foundati on, 

at the very time when fri endship is most easily cultinted and mai ntained, tor 

lifelong friendshi ps. 'lhe fraternity membershi ps, representi ng wi dely separated 

parts or the ~ country, are a cross section of American lite. 'nle associ ati ons 

i n them, thus, thend to give the indivi dual a D111ch more underst andi ng vi ew of 

his own people than can be obtained in the class room or as a snectator on 

the athletic f i el d. I found the debates nnd discussi ons duri ng the weekly 

meeting in the lodge of great i nterest and benefi t. 11hi le I beli eve it is 

quite true that the social. lite withi n the chapter detracted somewhat from the 

quali ty of the work withi n the class room, yet e.l.l learni ng i s not to be f ound 

withi n the text books. I am convi nced that i n most cases what is gai ned from 

fraternity life goes tar to make up tor what may be lost because of i t i n the 

class room. 
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DUCK SHOOIING ON CAYU~ LAD 

lf;y particular diversion away trcm the campus during my colle~ Ute na 

duck shooting on Cayuga lske. I had killed many deer on my annual v i sits to the 

Lale& Superior country and had got my tull. share ot wild pij.geona and geese, 

but Lake Superior, I. large, deep, and cold, harbored tew, i t any,~~. 

U,- shooting canpanions on Lake Cayuga were tallow collegians and,on occasion, 

sportsmen i n the town. I haTa always felt that these out1nge contributed greatly 

to my good health, and they gaTa me an impetua to take that i nterest i n wild Uta 

which was to be so i ntensified i n future years. 
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THF.SIS ON '!HE U. S . CONSTI'ruTION 

Duri ng t he seni or year, the classmen were asked to prepare a paper on 

soDJB s i gni f icant subject i n which they were particularly i nterested. With 

youthflll temerity, I sel ected as my theme, "The Origin and Objects of the United 

States Consti tution" . That it was a crude and superfi cial endeavor was quite 

inferable from the polite apprai sement made by the professor i nto whose hands 

it went: "Please read your paper tJ88i n after you have been out of college 

four years. You will then realize more clearly what I have i n mind than if I 

were to wri te a criticism now." In later years I well understood what he 

meant, but I was pleased to find some paragraphs that seemed to possess some 

merit in my more matured judgement. I quote one: 

"The Consti tution of the Uni ted States is not an iron hand 1rpon the body 
corporate and constrictive of future growth, but l ike t he bark of a tree, 
it expands to meet new and unforeseen necessities . While supposedly consisting 
only of enumerated powers , all others being reserved to the states oT"the 
peopl e , tnere are many other po~ers which can be implied from the general 
purposes of the central government or which are inherent as the necessary 
attributes of sovereignty. Conse~uently, i t is not a lways necessary to 
amend the fJonstitution 'llhen some additional powers are needed, but these can 
CO!l8 by judi ci al i nterpretation or by acts of Congress." 

In the light of the fifty years t hat have passed since t hese sentences 

were written , I find considereble verification of t~eir estimate . The jud icial 

construction or legi sl ati on by Co~ss on the clause 1n the Consituti on 

authorizing the regulation of coDnerce with foreign notions or between the states 

is an i ndication of the soundness of t hi s early vi ew. Thi s power was ori giaally 

exercised only i n preventing the several states from putting a ban, or restriction, 

on conmerce between the states. But later, it become the greatest posi t ive 

force in regulati ng) or even prohibiting, many forms of foreign and interstate 

Coll!ll8rce. 

In comparatively recent years the Federal government as=ed oontrol of 

navi gable waters, even to the extent of becoming a propr ietor. This has occurred 

although the word ' navi gation• or any of its synonyms is not to be f ound in the 

U1$;1.,IIJ.i Conlil.tution. Likewise, the Federal quarantine has been establi shed 

and greatly expanded so as to protect public health and to protect and promote 
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the agricultural ihdustry. '!be vord ' quarantine' i s not to bo f ound in the 

Constitution, but the function , being an accepted power i nherent i n the sovereignty 

or all progressi ve nati ons, cocas as a matt er or ounrse wi t hi n the scope of the 

Federa! goverI1J11ent. 

The extension of public works to i nclude i rrigation, reclamati on and water 

poser would have been frowned on f ifty yenrs ago. Taxation has been used to 

wi pe out the c~rrency or stete ganks and to control t he sale of oleoroargarine 

i n i nterstate ccmnerce. Restrictive immigration laws have been expanded far 

beyond the enumerated purposes of the Constitution as viewed by its makers . 

'Iha constitutional provisi on regulating •controversies between states ' which 

was originally conceived t o relate to boundary di sputes, or like di sputes i nvolvi ng 

the sovereignty or two or more states , has now been constru.'ed to mmmx:r cover 

disputes over excessive water polluti on and the equitable dis tribution or water 

for irrigati on or reclamation purposes. 

Al though the f irst deci s ion on thi s group of questi ons was reachei by a 

'lote of f ive to four , subsequent decisions in whi ch the same points have been 

1.Jrrolved were unanimous. In one of the l ast of these cases, it was held that 

no state could unreasonably pollute or poi son t he atmosphere , to the the detri-

1111nt of an adjoini ng state . 

tlan;y other examples might be cited, but thoae gi ven , suUice to give 

authoritative support to t he author• early vi ews. 
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POLITICAL IN'IBRESTS AND :S. ':7 . HOUSE 

Before going to college , ! had only a casual i nterest i r noli tical 

affai~s. I enter~d Cornell University in the fall of 1877, but i t nas until 

the fa:1 of 1880, during t he concluding days of the pres i dential ca.'!lpai JD between 

Garfield and Hancock that I became interes ted i n the outcooie of a national 

election. Among my i ntimate claa50ates and a menber of the sa'!le fr'lterni ty 

was Edward w. !louse, who i n later'yeara beca~e a leader of the Democra ts in 

his native state of Texas and during Presi dent Wi lson' s terms of off ice became 

his close friend and adviser. House is still well- rerae"lbered for his frequent 

representing of t he President abroad during t he World War and t hereafter, i n 

the capacity of spokeB?llan or special envoy. 

As I recall i t , House and I were the only nembers of t he fraternity 

suffici ently i nterested in the ca:npaijl'} to visi t the newatand every eveni ng 

to get without delay o cony of the day's i ssue of the !'ew York Tri bune and World, 

t he leading organs of our respect ive parties. I ventured to ~.ske a few 

addresses in some of t he country sbhool houses where callow utterencea would 

be endured. But House, never given to public speaking, hel9ed with his 

advice and f inances, t he cause of the l ocal Democrati c organizations. At that 

t i me, I discovered thosc.eleClents i n Col. House which afterwards made hi m one of 

the outstandi ng f i gures i n American public l i fe . He was qui et and suave i n 

mnnner with a remarkable apti tu4e for understanding almost any s i tuati on 

whether it be political or relati ng t o the social l i fe of bi s college mates. 

He frequently became the peac8Dl8.lcer i n the many l ittle controversies aris i ng 

among us. Hi s UilrUf'fled demeanor di d not mean that he lack~d spiri t or 

courage, for deep wi thi n him was a t ouch of southern temper that became mani fest 

on several occasi ons. 

\ 
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YALE U 'i/ SCHOOL 

THE H'ICTECTIVE TARIFF 

In the fall of 1881 I entered the Yale Law School, i ntent upon giving 

=re serious attention to rry studi es than they had heretofore received. In 

t his IP.as fairly successful, though the Long Island Sotmd, with its ~i~ter 

duck shootill8, proved a temptation to whi ch I frequentJy yiel ded. 

'Ihe Law School ottered at that time a two years course, which was later 

i ncrea11ed to three. In the classes, .Tunior and Senior, were en average of 

forty members. The school had a well deserved reputation, due to its excellent 

faculty and the condUion that the small s i ze of the classes made practicable 

tb3 recitation syst8Dl which bad been given up i n the larger schools . In raost 

of the latter type, the l ecture system, with its O!)portunities for shi rki ng 

work, prevailed. 

I snall pass over i n these pages the routine work of the !lass room and 

refer to matters of greater interest to those planni ng to follow the profession 

of l aw. The Kent Club concerned itself pri nci pally with mock tri als, the 

argument of the legal princip~es i n certai n cases and debates on questions 

of national i nterest. A presi dential election was pending, with the pri nci~le 

isl'Ue as the protective tari ff . During the f i rst debate, I was s \lr'lrised 

to f i nd thattwo-thi rds of the students "ere free traders. '."11th thltee exceptions, 

the remai nder were unfamiliar with the subject , so et the outset the tree 

traders had things pretty much their own way. 

'!hei r relative strength i n the Club bed a simple explanation. In each 

class were from ei ghteen to twenty stud nts who had entered t he !.aw School 

after ha-ri ng been graduated trom the academic departi:ient of Yale where they 

had been subjected to the i nfluence of Willi81ll Sumner , one of the l eading 

political economi sts of the country. It baa been often sai d that practically 

all the students ~to heard Professor Sumner's lectures were, at gradunt1on, 

Sl'dent free whereas ten years later most of them had accented t he 

' octrine of the the protecti-re tariff. 
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I-happened to be one of the three students who had gi ven some attention 

to t he subject and had CO!ll8 to believe i n protection. As I came fran the 

great industri al city or Pittsburgh this was not surprising. Naturally enough 

my free trade associ ates contended that the selfish local i nt erests of MY home 

to'dJI accounted for my views and for rrry willingness and desi r e to subject the 

entire country t o a policy thnt particularly benefi tted the industrial centers. 

Among my classmates was Dani el w. Lawler of St. Paul , accepted by t he 

students or the Law School and by the College ftt large as the most poli shed 

and trenchant debater among the undergraduates. A si ncere Democrat , he 

accepted and advocated the principles of free trade. When, however , he f ound 

the three lone protectionists overwhelmed by the skillful and fervent at tacks 

of the Sumneri tes, hi e sympathy went out to us. While he di d not came out for 

protectiolj hi s searchi ng crit i ci e:m of the arguments of our opponents proved 

of great help t o us in winni ng recrui ts. 

I realized fr<X!l the beginning that t o make progress we had effectively 

to meet that charge that i n Pittsburgh 8lld other i ndustrial cities favored by 

the tariff only the favored few were i ts benefici ari es and that such advantages 

as the syste1111 had were more than offset by the burden i t im,iosed on the comnunity 

at large. The state of Connecti cut, i n which we were temporarily residing, and 

the other Hew Engl.and states contained many manufacturing establishments. 'lhe 

wellfare at t he carmunities 1n which they were located depended almost wholly 

on protective tari ff barriers. 

To clinch my Joi nt I finally ottered an examnle of t he dependence of a 

C<Blllllli ty upon the presence and prosperity of its manufacturing establi shments. 
()_, 

'lhe r.illimantic Thread Mills had r e cently been built upon the banks of/fiver 

of that name, whence i t had abundant water power t hat permitted of low oper-

ating costs. Up to that t ime, t he American market was supplied wi th t hread 

tram Great Britain and Europe. 'lhe cost was so hi gh t hat the home producer was 

assured a good market i f he could be s ecure agai.nst t he likelihood that, 

ttuoaa ,itth daause=-
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taoed with domestic compet ion, the toreign manutacturers would reduce their 

prices 50 percent, and the turther probabil i ty that, 1t t hi s di d not sutti ce to 

destroy the new Ameri can i ndustry, they would sell below cost to ~~complish 

their purpose. 

The Willimantic mi lls were, in effect, the creati on ot the protective 

tariff. Congress was memorialized on the subject, and assured that with protec-

tion for a hane thread i ndustry, capi tal for domesti c mills coul d be secured 

and the ho.ne market developed, wi th ultimatel y lower pr i ces for thread. The 

argument was impressi vely urged, and followi ng enaction of the tari ff , the 

barren hillsi des that wore the si te ot the Willimantic mills became the loca tion 

ot a busy ar,d prosperous coJll:luni ty i n which the nearby rarmers found a prorit-

able market for their products. 

In order t o bring bane to my fellow students the benefits of the tariff, 

direct a.'ld i ndi rect , and also i ts benefits to the consUJl'i ng publi c , I arranged 

wi th an executiTe or the mills tor a vi s i t to Willimantic by all the students 

ot the alw school. ~e were assured of a cordial recepti on e.nd promi sed a 

l unch on the day designe.ted. 

The t rip to Villimanti c was made 1n a special trai n whi ch waited to take 

us back. ~e uere shown thoroughly through the large factories f illed wi th 

hundreds of operatives, mostly young womsn from New England farm11 or menbers 

at househol ds wi thin the recently constructed town. These employees had found 

a ready and sati s f actory income wi thin bui ldings where sani tray surroundi ngs 

had been carefully provided. 

A glance at t his little sottlElllent t old the simple s~ory of t he direct 

and collateral benefits ot the protecti ve tariff. This was understood mu~h 

more easily than i n tt.e case of large i ndustr i al centres. It was apparer.t 

that thi s once barren hi llside and unused water power had been brought i nt o 

occupati on am use by a s i ngle i tem i n the tari ff law. l!.'very busi ness house 

and every dwelli ng, ove:::-y office bui ldi ng and every -oe- mb--er_ o_f_ t_he _ _ v_ar_ i_ed _____ / 
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professions owed their presence to the successful operation of a s i ngle plant. 

Of equal importance was the fact that the cost of thread had been reduced 

tar below the prices ortg1nally paid on forei gn imports. Th.us the little town 

was a nsible unit or the tariff system, and the conswu1ng publi c t hroughout 

the country shared equally in the comnon benefits. 

In concl usi on, I have reason to beli eve that the detemined f i ght made 

by the 11 ttle band or protecti oni sts at the beginni ng bed won the respect of 

the opposil4.,,, and their action wa s taken as a gro.cet'ul compliment t o thi s 

element. Under the circumstances, i t was perhaps natural that the subject or 
m:, thes1s was ,.The Legali ty and Benefits or the Protective Tariff". !ore than 

twenty-five years later, am After reti r1llg from CongreSB, I wrote a monograph 

on the same subject where I clarify, and, I think, render more effective 

posU 1ons which i n the beginning were necessarily crude and und91;eloped. 
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DECLINXS I-RESIDENCY OF fflE KENT CLUB 

It was the custan at the begi nning of the oenior year to elect a president 

ot th& Kent Club, t he ott1ce usually going to a ~omber who had been active 

1n debate or in pl"OlllOt1ng the club's i nterest. Greatly to my 81lll pri se, I 

was unanimously nominated and elected to t he offi ce. 

A1'ter expressing 1l1Y appreciation of the honor, I , i n my turn, gave the 

manbers a surpri se by respecttully decli ni ng to fill the office . I told t h8ll 

that I pl"eterred the 1':'eedan or the floor to the di gni ty of the presiding 

officer's chair. 

Neither did I have any liking for t he printipal honor attached to the office, 

Ilal!lel y presiding and introducing to the faoul ty and the undergraduate body of 

the Universit y , the helf dozen distingui shed jurists and stat9smen who delivered 

each year these addresses. Formali t i es of t hi s kind did not appeal to me. 

i 
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GETS RANK OF srxm rn CLASS 

The ranki ng of the f irst five i n the class at the Law School was based 

on the exarn1nation papers of t he precedill8 year - and the honor s tudents 

were gi ven£!!!!.~ degrees. I •as enti rely satisfied with being r ated si x 

but •as chided by one of my friends for too much devotion to duck hunting. 

Thi s , he sai d, was the reason I was not rated hi gher . I went duck hunti ng 

every Saturday, which necessitated my missi ng the r ecitation i n cr1.minel 

law. Ao few ot the otudents were i nterested i n criminal l aw and as Saturday 

was, naturally, not a ponular day for class r oom work, t he nr ofessor who had 

the course had t o bse a little coJLerci on to prevent the class r01111 from being 

empty. Accordingly , he was the on)y member of t he f aculty who took attendance 

i nto consi deration i n determining hi s ra~i ngs . The r esult for me was not a 

happy one. But I told my protesti ng friend t hat he should not overl ook the 

pleasure am exerci se I had had on my hunti ng trips or how grateful some of 

the men on the honor roll should be because I had cut the Saturday classes. 

By somet hi ng of a coi nci dence t hi)ft y- five years l ater, Theodore Roosevelt 

SDd I received from Tri nity College/ i n t he same state , the honorary degree 

of Dr. Sci. i n recogni tion or work as f i eld naturalists and conservators of 

wild lite. Embossed on my parchment, i n Latin terms , i s approval of my long 

advocacy of hunting wild life dth CBl!l8ra and flas hlight. I have often t hought 

since that while I perhaps lost a possibl e honor as a student by reason of my 

devotion to the study of game t he loss was more t han COO!p8nsated for by the 

gai n of a l ater degree i n recogniti on of t he persistence with which I had 

pursued U:. 
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A CO?.t."ARISOH OF DIRECT .\ND CIRCU:.11:>TANTIAL EVIDEt"CE 

I shall nevor forget my f irst experience in a trial court case, not only 

because i t nzs 1!JY f i rst effort, but alB<l ~becauee of its i nteresting character. 

On t he o~casion in question, Mr . Di ckey asked me to assi st him in a contest 

over a probated wi l l in which hi s cli ent s alleged that t ~e doc\ll!l8nt had been 

f orged, thereby illegally depriving them of the i r share i n t heir f ather' s estate. 

I felt dert ain that J.lr . Dickey had generously called me i nto the case by r,ay ot 

encour agement. Alld I deeply eporeciated the opportunity and r esponsibility. 

'lhe test ator of the alleged will devised a valuable farm for. life to a wi fe 

by a second marri age, provi di ng that on her death the property was to po to her 

children. Accordi ng to these terms , none of' i t would go to t~e chi ldren of the 

first wife. The wi ll when filed 1n the orphans court r.as in :English and 

purported to have been signed by the testator . The sons of the first wife in 

consul ti.Ilg vn th Mr. Di ckey declared that their father was an aged Geman who 

could not wri te Engli sh, nor, they mainta ined , was the sienature attached to the 

• 111 that of their father. The widow when pr obati ng the will swore that i t 

had been found i n an old family bi ble and that i t was i n the handwriti l".g of 

her hus~d. Under the Pennsylvania l ar. , two attesti ng wi tnesses ~re required , 

but thi s had been construed to mean that i n the absence of such wi tnesses t o 

the will, two others f'emili ar wi th the s i gnature of' the te&tator could be called 

on to at test to the same. This wa.s done by tire friends of' tire f amily. 

Before the case was called f or tri al, a number of experts on handwri t i ng 

were consulted and ell agreed thRt the "111 could not have been written by en 

aged Gennan unallded by ~one. and iooreover, that the handwri t i ng evidently was 

that ot one under the age ot si xteen, whi le the si gnature was not similar to t~ose 

on deeds and mort-getes admit t edly si gned by the testator . A few days before 

the case was called in the Orphans Court , a jury t r i al was wai ved by agreement 

of counsel, the presi di ne judge bei ng aut hori zed t o hear the evidence and pass 

upon the questions of fact and of law. 



Memoirs_Box1_Folder12_141.tif

-2-

Mr. Dickey was of the opi n i on that t he circumst antial evidence in the case 

was co~clusive as to the for gery of the wil l , and he bad no doubt that the colll't 

would have no difficulty i n reaching the same conclusion. I agreed with my 

colle88U8 , but aaid I thought i t was our duty t o f i nd out who had forged the will. 

To thi s desi re r:ry associ ate offered no object i on , but he tho1.l8ht I nould not get 

Tecy fer in this investigation as the case was to be called the ne::tt day. 

I sent illmedi ately for one or our cl i ent s and t old h1m I t hought the nill 

had been forged by the younger .daught<-•r of the wi dow. In v i ew of the er,iert ' s 

assurance that i t had been wri t t en by a young person, she seetied to be the one 

most l ikely to have done so wider bar mother's instructions. To thi s vi ew the 

step brothers agreed. To detcnnine thi s it possible I asked to be supplied with 

any l"lriti ngs of the one suspected. Late that eveni ng one of the contestants 

called o.t my home, stating that he had been abl e to f i nd only an eJrVe l ope 

addressed to him by hi s stepsi ster. I.1mited as was thi s l'Tl'i t i ng, i t :f'urther 

confinmd my suspicions, tor in the name or the addresse4, Gustavus Dice , the 

cap i tal ' D' of the surname corresnonded exactly with the ro1s-.1se of the sw.e 

capi tal i n the word 'Death', used in t he will. Both ' D'H ' were la:t'ge, flourish-

ing and i denti cal 1n apperu•ance. ~ i :;, "en ro1::.,-•,,ed u, , "'>' ~ir~ed "':• ""'~"··tsions 
and rirac ,icull! e!1ded +' .e cuse at t: is j 11 cture. 

On o-..ir wey to the court house the next morning I told Mr . Dickey what I 

8118pectt.d, but he protested iigni nst 8IrJ attempt to dritg t !\i3 young wanan i nto 

tha case sayi ng that this imputation, 1f not established, would react an:l !'light 

spoil a perfectly good case. I called his attention t,o the fact that ne were 

not trying the i asue before a jury and t hat the court would not resent any honest 

effort on our part to nrcve who had forg-3d the 1'1111. Therefore, I asked 11 r . 

Dickey tha·~ when the case 11as called he per:ii t roe to make the openi ng argument 

and 1t I faile d in my of,"ort to show who the forger wa s , he could follow 1-:; up 

i n the way h e had ori ginally planned. 

On addressiil{' the court , I sai d that the plaintiff's counsel would make 

no openi ng argument as the papers before the court i ndicated the i ssue , and 
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accordingly we would call our f irst wi t nsss. Thereupon, I sumnoned to the stand 

the young woman suspected as the euilty one while my colleague looked on with 

misgi vi ngs. Ha!Ying the wi tneos a lead pencil end a tablet , I asked her to wri te 

what I would dictate. Than, I read the will slowly without shOlfi ng it to her. 

When she had f i nished writi ng I looked at the paper, and to the surpri se of the 

counsel on e i ther s i de I handed to the court this paper wi th the request that it 

i t be marklld ' Exhibit A' and that this would canpl ete the plai nti ff ' s case. 

The court after readi ng t he exhi bit , asked to be furni shed wi th the contested 

will. J.tter making n careful comparison of t he two papers, during whi ch he smiled 

broadly, th~ pdge handed the B8Jlle to the defendant's counsel, sayi ng t hat with 

the c&ee closed for the plaintiff, he should proceed with the defense. 

Thereupon, the defendant's counsel, an active practitioner for more than 

25 years, eX81111.ned the exhi bit. It was evi d&nt to him that the will and copy 

weN duplicates i n s:,elling , punctuation and the formation of the letters. As 

t he w1 tness bad not seen the origi nal wi ll for a year and wrote i t down at my 

dictat ion without agai n seeing the same, i t was evident t o t he most casual 

observer that the forger of the wi ll had just occupied the w1 t ness chai r . The 

defendant ' s counsel tol d the court thet thei r s i de would offer no evi dence in 

rebuttal but would leave the case 1n the court ' s hands for final determination. 

At thi s , the judge said that he was convi nced that the will and r egister 

had been forged and would file h i s opinion to that effect. '!hat night the yowig 

daughter, fearing prosecuti on for per jury or f orgery, eloped with the hired 

fan-ohsnd , fleeing to an adjoi n i ng state. Iler stepbrothers, however, would 

not have prosecuted her knowi ng that she was but t he youthtul du~e of an avari coua 

mother. Here was a caae vi vidly sh owing the di fference that sometimes exi sts 

i n the character and value of d i rect and ci rcumstantial evi dence. 

'l'renty years later, I chanced to meet judge Over who had presided at thi s 

trial, snd he s l ed "I have never forgotten your first case that ha'Opened to be 

tried before me and 1n which you not only conclusively pDoved that an alleged 

l 
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will was forged , but also who had forged 1 t ." 

I assured the judge ths.t i greatly appreciated his present statement , 

althwgh I regretted that he had not told roe this at an oo.rlier dat.3 when 

encouragement ~as at'ten needed by a youthful practitioner. 
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" A PIG !RO?! ST..l.':'E AUD :>I G!.~ STATEGl,IEN" 
A ~otest agai nst t he Election of ~. ~. Quay a s 
United State s Senator i n 1887. 

As t he t enn or Senator Mitchell approached the close an6. not ·hei ng & ., 
candi date to succeed himself , candi dates appear ed tror.i various parts of the state. 

Because the Democrats had elected thei r gubernatorial candi date i n t hi s Gibraltar 

of Republi canism and because our respre~entati on i n the Senate was weak or unfit , 

many Republicans hoped t hat t he next senator would be a l'lB.D of high character, 

proved abi l i ty, and wide experience . However, t hey were doomed t o di sappointment 

for without much ef fort , VattheT St anley ~uay, then ,- State 'l'reasurer and a 

reli able l i eutenant i n the Cwner on dynasty, was chosen t he part,Y nolll1nee at 

the Republi can caucus. 

Thi s selection caused protest throughout the state and elsewhere. On the 

mornine ot the day t hat the Legi slature a~sembled i n joint sessi on to elect a 

United States Senator , a psmphlet was lai d on the desk of each mooiber. It 

bitterly assailed the reput ati on and stateemanship of t he one about to be 

elected by the ballot of the members. 

Upon the readi ng of the pem,>hlet, 1:111ch con!'usion arose. One n~ber declared 

that he knt'llr by i ts stylo that the at t ack had been wri tten by a correspondent 

or a New York paper. Others mado random guesses as to its source or object. 

I was the author ot the pamphlet in questi on, and It was wri tten with no idea 

that it would affect the election but as a protest against a candi date whom I 

thought unfi t for the posi t ion. 

The references i n t hi s attack to Quay' s speculation i n \!all Street i n 

CODlpally with other state offi ci als and the use ot f'Unds from the state trea sury 

to replace heavy l osses in t he stock market had previously been veri f i ed from 

aut hori tati ve sources. Although t he state lost nothi ng by reason of repayment 

to the treasury by wealthy a ssoci ates ot the reti r i ng treasurer, the charges 

were too ser i ous to -:tarre.nt their suppres sion. The text of the pamphlet was as 

follows: 
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These charges were so seri ous that, published annonymously, they naturally 

created neep resentment among ,Senator Quay's friends. At the sa."lo time, while 

t he public was interested i n tho charges directed against the State Treasurer' s 

honesty, i t was circulated about in certain ci rcles that the feeling of t~e public 

W8!l that an untair attack had been made upon the incomi ng senator . Many felt 

that fflle.tever might be his shortcomings, he should not have been IISOde the victim 

ot an snnonymous attack. 

I had had in llli~d tram t h9 i nception or my ple.n to lay before the public in 

definite language these serious charges on the very day he was to be i nducted 

into bi s high offi ce, thi s very si tuation. I ~ad just as much di sli ke tor 

allllOJY!!IOUS attacks as the most meti culous observer of propri ety, and the obser-

vance at the rule ot conduct was to be met by my methods or procedure. I 

assUl!!Bd, and rightly, t hat on the circulation ot this pSl!lphlet on the floor of 

the Legi slature and its reproduction throughout the press of the country, there 

would come a challenge from the friends of Senator ~uay that the one who had 

been responsible for t his devastating attack on th3 character of the Sane.tor 

should make his name knolfII or go dmm i n hi story as a maligner of the most 

despicable character. 

These anticipated conclusi ons ter1fied my judgement and me.de possible the 

putting into effect at a plan that would settle for all t i mA tho questi on of t he 

guilt end i nnocence ot the Senator and , thereby, perform a great public service 

to the state and the nati -:>n. If my plans didn' l; miscarry, Senator Quay would 

either be vindicated or the result1Dg disclosures would result i n conviction 

and a consequen~ retirer:ient from the Senate . 

To bring this about, I wrote a letter to state senator Ruton f rO!!l Beaver, 

Senstor•~•s hOIIIB country, as follows: 

"Dear Senator : 

Since the publication of the 11 ttle pamphlet circulated in t he Legislature 
attaclcing Sens.tor i uay on the day be was elected to the United States Senate, 
I have noticed a vehement protest on your part 58ainst those responsible for 
the circulation at thi s attack, charging t hat the falsity of this v i cious 

.... 



Memoirs_Box1_Folder12_146.tif

attack was apparent t o the Senator's friends and the public at large because 
~t wa& QilllOnymity, the ~et hod of all vi lif1ers who did not doro make known 
their true i dentiti es. 

"AB the writer of t his ".lamphlet, I heartily agree •.,i th :,our condemnati on, 
even though it ignores the possi bl~ truth of the charges , bcc::use i n the mi nds 
of all fai r- minded nen, annonyt!lous charges usually carry their own condemnati on. 
In ordsr to meet such a s i t1<at1on, I make the following prooo::1t1on: 'TI~t 
u,on the di sclosure or rrry name, Senator '.,.uay will agree to bri ng a libel 
suit against me for a substantial !ll!lount , subject to tho folloning conditions; 
to wit , that in the tri al of this case, he may be called for cross- eX8l!linat1o::i 
as an adverse v i tneas and that my coULsels have the right to subject the 
plai ntiff to such a cross- examinati o!l as i s allowable when calling on 
adverse wi tnesses. 

In order to esPc.bliah t he good f '1th of this proposition, I shall ~rrange 
t o deposi t the sum of $10, 000 or othersum that may be agreed upon i n order 
t o ensure his expenseo and attorney faos , The b&J.ance, i f any, should gc to 
such a l ocal chari ty as Senator uay may suggest; for I assume that in case 
af this trial whtit he would seek~ ~ould be hi s vindi cat i on and not any 
monetary award i n addi tion to thi s . Therefore, I wi sh, if thi s pr opos ition 
i s accepted , that you cause to be publislled i n the public press the followi ng 
statement: 

'It wi ll be of i nterest to everyone t o know t hat steps are beill8 taken to 
bring about the di sclosure of the authorshi p of the pamp~let recently 
attacking Senat or Cl)J.ay on the date of hi s i nduction as Senator.' 

i rom such a statement I will understand that Senator Quay accapts the 
t erms under whi ch t his disclosure i s ~,a.de. On t he publicati on of the 3U8goated 
statement or of one of sinilar import, you wi ll receive a call f ror.i rry 
cour..sel. dhile not disclosi ng the n8M8 of his client during t his first conver-
sation, counsel wi ll let it be known when I a'!I sat i sfied that a binding 
agreement has been entered i nt o by Senator ~uay to accept oy challenge 1n 
the manner oaggested. " 

Fen- some dsys after having wri tten this letter and hav/ing defi nitely le&rned 

t hat 1t had -:>ee:i exami ned, I searched the newspaper s regularly, But I found no 

response in the papers on this subject, Consequently, from that day down to 

the present , no one except myself and an i ntimate friend of mine 11"ho mailed the 

cireul.ars to Harri sburg knows the i nsi de hi story of thi s affair, Nor will anyone 

ever know the true facts unless someday there 1s published i n my biography a 

history at this atratr. 
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(Duplicate) 

BECCIIES A CANDIDATB FOR 'lHE LEGISLATORE 

Jvv~ 
In tbe spring ot 1888, att er practicing law tar about tour years, I came 

'to the conclusion, attar carerul considerati on, that i t woul d prove an agreeable 

and instructive experience to serve as a 1001nber ot the L egialature tor a term. 

I telt that a period of servi ce i n the House, where I might becom, tamiliar 

111.til law making and the activi t ies ot the Del,lllrtment would, provided that I 

went there with the intent i on ot doing seri ous work and making the most of my 

brief opportuni ty, be of great subeequent beneti t i n the practi ce of l aw. lt 

would mean building up an acquai ntance , both legal and political, t hroughout 

the state. I also believed that the ccmnittee work and the opportunity of 

tollowi ng and participating i n the discussi ons otl the noor would familiarize 

me ui th the State Consti tution and the public problems of the hour. \That I had 

i n mine was , therefore, in harmony 111.th my purpose to c~ntinue the practice of 

the law without i ntermission. I had no intention of again seeking publ ic offict 

or ot followi ng any other course that would di vert oe froF'en profeosion. 

The party primaries were to be held a couple of months after I hRd decided 

to becare a candidate. I lived 1n the first of the two legislative districts in 

ti. ci ty ot Allegheny, now the northsi de of Pi ttsburgh. All the wards, t11th 

one exception, lay east of Federal street and were controlled by voters of German 

extraction , among wham I had but slight acquaintance. 

Prf!perihg to cake a start, I consulted 'll'ith my uncle, l.1ajor w.•. Kennedy, 

a re>1i dent of one of the moat po-;,ulo11s wards in the district, who had been a factor 

i n local polities for a long tir:-e. A8 other candidates had covered the f i eld 

pretty thoroughly, he was of the opinion that I had wai ted tco loJ18 ru¥i tl.at I 

would, by reason of the ls;tll start , be badly handicapped. Before I took any 

defin1 te S(ep, be advised lllEl to cell on Pete ~alters, a leadi ng end i ntluential 

German. Pete Ialters was the propri eter of a drug store on a street di viding 
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t he two l argest uards and had been for many y~ an advi ser to those havi ng 

pol i t i cal ambi tions. 

flal ters shared Major Kennedy • s view that I was too late i n announci ng my 

candi dacy , part icularl y as t wo candi da t es, Rebi son and St avi ng, had ccmbi ned on 

delegates 8Dd had already done so much wor k among t he voters that they fel t 

conti dent of nomi nation. The kindly old druggist, however , appar ently not wi shi ng 

t o di scourage ce any further , t ol d i:-.e he was ca.aitted t o only one of these 

candidates . Fur thermore , he s tated, tha-fj would make a cadtbinat i on wi t h the 

man t o ~hOill he had pr c~i s ed support, I could , i n hi s opi ni ons , wi n t he contest . 

Repzyi ng t o hi s outli ne of the s i tuati on, I s~i d I t hought too many 

campai gns we:r·e begun too soon and that effect i ve work, utter a l at e entry, would 

more than off set any posslble advanta3e reS'~lti ng from an early start. I also 

voiced objecti on t o any ef fort t o br eak up t he Robi son- St avi ng combi nati on , saying 

t hat i f t here were to be any overtures to thi s end, they rnigp.t , 1n my 0!)1n1on, 

better cooe to fnstead of frOl:l i::e . 

I urged these vi ev,s on my advisers wi th success. ,.nd they agreed to help 

set up e coJ;Iplete sl ate of delegates , leavi ng the choice of the second candidate 

to be non:i nated t o l at er consi derati on. The events justifi ed tr.e vie:i I urged 

on them, f or I r ecei ved , after T'l'/ delegates were announced, 3J! offer f rC!ll each 

of the two co.ndidates to join h1l?l es bi s runni tl{5 mate. 

But thi s only rai sed s.notber seri ous probl em. The Germans i n the di stric t , 

canpr i si ng a l arge majority of t he voter s , had f or year s been i ndi gnant over 

t he terms of the exi sti ng license l at, which had i lllt)osed hi gher license fees and 

reduced the numoer of liconses that could be granted. All i n t he previ ous 

b6ennilll electi on , the Democrats, wi th t wo Carman candi dates, had swept the 

district , I 1vas strongly advi sed to t hro".7 1n ray lot 1n th St avi ng, a county offi ce 

holder a11d i nfluential among hi s fellow Cel"mans : but I preferred Robi son. 

He was well educated, a good campaigner , and a geni al fello~. 'l'ha likelihood 

t hat he would make a better legi slator than Staving r.icuh appealed to me . I had 
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long observed that the legi slators fran tl>e large ci t ies 1 i ke P1 ttsburgh and 

Philadelphia were i nfi ni tely i nferior in mind and character to those representi ~.g 

the rural di stri c ts. '!here was the addi t i onal consideration t hat they were 

largely controlled by the ci ty or state r i n~a. It seemed my duty to teem up 

with Robi son regardless of the oonsequences, end this I di d. Fortunately for us 

and t he success of the party i n the dist r i ct, the situation was simpli fied before 

the primaries by Staving ' s wi t hdrawal. '!bus, Robi son and I went i nto the electi on 

with a f airly uni ted organization behi nd us. 

As the Democrats had agai n nOll'J.nated two Germa.ns, it was predi cted on all 

sides that we ;;ould have a hard f i ght , wi th the chances of success none t oo good. 

But I beli eved that the fact that it was a presi denti al year, nth Harri son 

and i·orton the Republi can nomi nees , would count strongly in our favor . The voters 

ware nominally Republi cans and i n a nati onal elect i on would not be l i kel y to 

cut their local candidates. 

The canvass was '(1gorously undertaken by myself and colleague,. Da ily , 

we made poli t i cal addrea3'Sin the various wards, whi le about once a week, there 

was an old- fashioned torchlight procession composed of our local su'!)'Oor tera. 

The JXl'OCtlBai on carried plenty of rod f ire, and the astute llajor Rush Tyler, 

a veteran of tho Ci vil ~ar and a moat caoab!e campai gner , vre.a i n commond. 

Duri .ng t he contest, tbs Pi ttsburgh ring looke& askance at our candi dacy; 

for it was t he custom to control the entire county delegati on. However , as 

i t was known that I was also arrft- uoy, t he arch enemy of the bosses , 

we were permitted to go ahead without i nterference. 

'!he forebodings of those fearful of defeat proved groundless . 'i,e were 

elected by 1 ,800 majority , almost an exact reversa l of the Democratic majori ty 

t wo years before. 
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A POLITICAL STORY 

A few days after rrry electi on to the Legislature. the Round Table and some 

additional fri ends gave a di nner i n my honor. The toastmaster of the occasion 

was a college roolllDZlte and felt privileged to say anything he wished about my 

poli t i cal endeavors. lie told how a few days before he had met tir. L.- one of 

t he dei'eated Democratic candidates and asked him how i t wac that he had been so 

badly worsted ffhen only two years before ho had been so successfUl. 

"'lliat i s easy tc explain" • sai d the disgruntled candi date, Dfc,r when 

Shiras and his friends ~ent into the German wards, it was pointed out that his 

great grandfather in 1800 had built the first brewery in Allegheny County. 

Thereupon. the Gex,r.ans flocked t o hi s support. 

"Then the s::me canpaigners went i nto the Presbyterian wards at the other 

end of the distri ct and told how a.nother great grandfather of the candi date; 

1n 181_9 founded t he Fi1st ?resbyterian Church , serving as i ts pasto~· for 50 

consecuti ve years. This t\ll'ned the religious elenent cgai nst tha bee~- loving 

German cundidates. " 

He concluded by oaying sadly. "Not letti ng your r i ~t hand knOl:l what your 

l eft hand did lllll.de it possible to carry a beer bottle o~e day and a Bi ble the 

next. You can' t beat such a combination. 

T'nis s tory created much merriment at the table, but the victim declared 

that the tale resulted from an overs~retch of the imegination on t h, part of 

tbe defeated candidate. 
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'!HE LBGISLATU!'lE AS A 'ODITI CAL "mAr m:o SCHOOL MID ITS PZRfO' "'T.L 

In eovernmn~t ooch State is a n:iniature or the Unitod States. For each is 

defined i n its territory, is a oovereign i ~ d0!:'l8stic l'\9.tters , and otherwise 

:reseribles the na tion or whi ch it i s a component ">&rt . 'i'he statos h1vo a c~iet 

executive -.tth cabi net officers or other State orric!els corrospcndi "R the:reto. 

I t he.a a euprer.e court Md subordi na.te Judiciar.1•, c lesislature co::ipoood or 

a house and senate, and a terri tory di vi ded into counti e s t~at bear the S!lmd 

relation to the c=onweal th t~at the states be.~r to the national govern:nent. 

Each State sends i ts allotted members to the national l egislature, ~bile the 

eeneral govern.."lllnt allc•ts ';o el\ch St ate , "'l8mbers of tho Feder 1l Judi ciary and 

other offi ci als connected ,it~ the executi ve dopartnant , ouch es di strict attorneys , 

narshals , revenue collectors, pootcasters, etc. 'lhus, we heve forty- ei ght states 

compl ete i n t hei r govertr."18ntal functi ons and a nati on equally complet e i n its 

tuncti orJt. 
Bef ore going to the stste car,1 t ol in 1889, I was tl'011oug}I ly k pressod 11f1 th 

the reeling that the average state legi slature was an aasenbly of 11011 ticians 

or man or rnediocrG ability am that , c~llectively, they represented a rather 

l ow strotU'II i n public life !'11th the result of tii sgove:rnClf,nt or extrem,gnnce in 

the 1118ll8gel'lent of state affairo. These views were unduly influenced by t he 

general chllr8cter of tho memtera norning f r = thff two large ci t i ~s nt ei ther end 

ot the state and by the tendency or the da! ly pross t o magni fy all thet was 

reprehensible i n the lsg1Gl nture and to largely i gnore t~e every day work or 

t hia body and the tai thtul di scharge or tho many duti eo inpossd upont t hose 

active i n COllllli ttee work or in the orderly management ot the attai rs of a grea t 

atate. 

-While I had some uncomfortable or di sconcerting experi ences as evi denced by 

tba bank bi lls, the grade-crossi ng bi ll , and the attempted i?npeac~nt or a county 

Judge, I was able to see in a very short time that t he calibre or t he me-bers 
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was of a hi gh order. Asi de from polit i cal ~utans.tons fran the larger cities who 

created a vacuum rather than a force for evi l , the :nembers from t he ~ual.l towns and 

c ountry di stricts were honest , able, and gennerally congenial. This grollp was 

made up of l awyers, former judges, bankers , morchants, physici ans, and educated 

farmers. ',Thile such ~en as thens, constituting a majority of the body, were 

susceptible to the curu:ing manoevers of the state bosses or the i ~si di ous uresure 

of poVierful col'J)orati ons, I found that :vllenover an issue affecting the public 

welfare ~:e.s !)l'opurl y C~lled t o thsir a ttention , these men would -promptly break 

away fro.':! unwi se l.ea<'cI'-shi p or ':'loul d dofy political coe::cion. 

J.B tLe le::1s1!\ture of ?ennsylvania had long be en depicted as an unscrupU::.ou11 

ane. an inefficient b rnnc!l of tl-e governr,ent , I have 11 ttle doubt that the leg-

i slatures of other states have been equally meJ.i gned. Nearly holf of Ol.ll' Uni ted 

States Senators , Ilongressnen, and many Federal Judges , governors and simil ar 

hi gh otf1~1als have se::-ved in the state legislat~res. 'The training and ths 

prest18e rthieh .mkbcilmd.L they obtai ned there largely accounts f or thei r subse~uent 

successful careers. A number of ?residents have seen sorv1ce i n the legislatures, 

Garfield and Theodore Roosevelt among others. I n later years, t heir career~ 

\ 11ere m1eh influenced ty thei r early entry i nto public life. Bx- Governor .1<..1.fred 

E. St:ti !JJI, !'e:.1ocratic ca'ldidnte for :>resident i n 1928, acquired r1.:ch of hi.s 

polit ica l fore as a leg1sle':or i n h is hO!OO ato.te. 
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<>0111e Bank Legislation •·1 t~se--5ctquela . 

Bofore the session opened I hod beon en trusted with the prcsenf2:lent 

ot two bills prepared by toNer Chi ot Justice J.gne" and dcsi,red by the 

Bank of Pit t sburgh, one of the cost 1RJ:1ous st11te ins titutions throughout 

the country , it hev1ng beon org~ n1£ed i n 181 0. th e purpose of one 

ct0asurc was to pe:rni t the renewal of s tate bank charters , the fomer 

etfltute t hereon having expi~d under a time limitation , ond the other 

pennitted estate bank t o beccr.ie natio~ol bonk ~i t hout cessation of 

business and liqui dati on. " i thout the passage of t he first bil l t he 

Bank of Pit t sburgh could not cottinue ond should tho se cond bil l became 

a law th1s bunk coul d tako ndv,r-tege of it loter· on, 1f it se<'r.2cd 

desirabl e . On r..y in ... r oduction of t hese ~ansures t he y ,ere refer red 

by the :ipcc're r to the Gom.a1 ttee on Banks of which I ·,us vicc- chni rcan. 

Arter h:ul expl a1nod to the ca:ic1ttee the purposes of th'8 legi slation 

t he t"fo bills ·,ere .:-eportcd out o.rtirw11tively , nnd went on the 

ca lfe:1dar. On the first nnd secot1d reading of the b i lls no objection 

" Rs :r:1• de t o them and it soemod they '10uld pass on third ond final. rending 

~1 t h out any trouble . 

BefoN fina l passage h o,,-evcr I re ce1 ved a tolcgr&.1 .fror:i !lor quette 

Michigon my st.u:re:1c r ha:ie announci n f the arrival of c son ond I l eft that 

evening tor t ho ""cl? t . 'l."oe two bank bills on third rcvd1 ng ~ro cRlled 

up duri ng my absence 1then obj ections v.·01-e i:i do by a fh1ltv1el phia r.:e1:1bor . 

'.1.'b.is cri t ie had not prcceeded very f ar when he was i n t e rrupted by 

J ohn Few the mi nori t~ l eader of tile Hou::e who in stentorian tonea 

which had previousl y l ed to b 1s being named ""'oghor n '1 pooteeted a ga ins t 
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any a ttack on the se m· asurea during the absence of thei r author who 

had been ca lled s way to gree t the tirrivnl or Geor ge the 4th. In 

conclusion he expressed e hope thut not u singl e vot e would be caat 

against this l eg1sl9ti on in view of the ci rcurn tances. 1'hereupon 

the obj ector sat doffn and with tbe rest of the House recorded a unanimous 

vote f or the pas sAge of the !l'easures . :ieoring about this l ater , I 

fe l t thst my absence hucl been more e loquent than my pres ence . 
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A Deadlock on The Bank Billa • 

• A. f ew dsya efte r the two bank billo wore sent to tho Sena te , and 

referred to the appropriate oomr.iittee; Senator ~em:1yer of Allogheny 

County ca l l ed on I:18 i t? the Hou!le . He then s.slced oe ·.vhet hcd become 

of his bank bi ll providing f or t he puni shment of bank ot f iciol s who 

received deposits a ·ter the bank "'18 '<nown t o be ·nsolvont 1 I told 

hiJ:I the t this sens te bill had been referred t o the Co=i t ;;ee on Banka 

s t the t i "'o I .,.q s acting chair.:ian and th-- t in tho opinion of the 

eo::u:ii ttee tho bill s~s e dangerous ono r s 1 t did not F. cc~tcly de fine 

whe t constituted insolvency, nnd ~oreover it ~ns unconstitutionnl in whole 

or in part becnuse it ntoompt• d to rcgul nte nutionol o: well as s t a te 

banks . As t.b.e :lOnator had not asked for a henring 'bcfot>e the COll1llli tte•• 

end in vie~ of our united belief that such leBi s l ation shoul d not 

re ceive s favonb l o repor t, I r eported it out r.i th o negative rec0011:1en-

detion. 11··e11 , " reoarred tho sem• to1• grutf l y , "1 will tell you "hat ia 

going to h oppen t0lllorro11 ClOrn1ng . ". 11'\hHt 1s thot ?" I asked ser-enel y . 

" , t t he morning seas 1on'' he naid "You l'rill rise 1n your pl~ee and ask 

the speokor to refe r this bill bnck t o the Co=ittes on Banks f or 

f urthe.- cons ide r ation" . Ruffled by thi s nssertion I made 1t plain that 

I woul d do nothing of the 1<1'11 . "Oh, :,e s you will ond I have the rneana 

of forcing th1 s r.ction . " "You !!ave·, , he c ontinuod two bank b ills before 

t he sen:, te co"!Wli t tee of which I nr.i a ro.oaber and t here they will remain 

until you h<\ve ny bilt referred boc!c to vour coi:t 1ttee and l ater 

reported out fRVOl""bl y. ' :,uch surprised by thio throat and its 

unfortu."lR tc consequences if co:t-ried out , I o.dopt"d " concili<\ t.ory tone 

ond. point ed out t11st the life of one of the oldes t ban!~a 1n the s t ate 

~ould bo o~oed qnct othe r 6w~uld be in tho same t1x a yeor or two 
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later. 'ill1a plea. hod ao e:t'teot and be _ago.in ~pea ~ the · 

prog:rau that r 1:1uat f"ollow. He re o.ro30 s c~c1al or whut ahould 

be done . I cirbt ;forcibly cflll the ut t<:ntion of the nou..;e to tba 

etfol"t of n well- known , on,,tor to fo::-ce 1.hrough umriu1 l euisl• tlon or 

other-,.-isc sacrifice two ::lcr 1 ; orioua ucaaurcs , thua t4i'ford1ng an 

unuaual opportu.-.ii ty tor an r.ud1-oa3 on the culpebili t y or cu.ch a bal"gatn1 

or I l.light a1lently acquieoe 1n orde1• thnt justice 1:1i ght be rlone to the 

benlca ir.volved. Thia l att er, course I foll01J1ed &.lttlough 1t ~ns mN \ 

U,Mtat1ng. 

Bxtraordinnry Conaoquoncea. 

Some :i0t: tha after l:ly two bill a • and ths t ot Sor.a tor 'owrlyer 

iled been enacted, an i ndictncnt 3 3 r ound ar,dns t ::'onator . •totarland 

ot Pb1la6elph1a . • roCllll;la te of Sena to:r ~ewjy-or i:nd the h el'ld ot a 

de funct ban ... tbnt ll••· recd~d .!epoaita after bccOllling 1n:.olvcnt . 'the 

a ccused senator fl~d t o ~nnacla where he .ro~aincd until nll donser bad 

peHod. ·-oll o·dn.; this cro:ic t ~ arrest ot Ser.ator Ceo~ · • folaiaatel'• 

a conap1cuoue p erty l ~"--~ r in t.bo state ·.nd likcwiae a cloa. friend ot 

Ne-r.1yer. Senator ilel L.'"18.to~ "ca tuen being grocaed t or, the ~rnatorla>. 

nomi nat ion tbe rollo'lrlng ye ar '-'•,d tnrough the t c tivity or hla trlenda 

the accut10d '9nator waa a cquitted on o teebn1cel1~. His l&.ter nomina-

tion aa governor r,aulted t:1 his d isaatrous defoat .lh1ch was wholl7 

charaod aca1n ~t his sc~ndalou3 oscopo tl'CD tho toll s of tho .o,a;,c r 

Act so tl111t for tne fir, t tine i n a quarlA..11' o.r a contury there waa 

a iienor•rat1c OovernoP. 

t.:e e t i~ .:>enator. eWC1yoi- on t he street one day , in our hon& town. 

I told b i ~ tbat I owed rh En apol ogy tor opposing b i• ban k bill , el n• 

1 t had proved a ::iueh better oeoau:re than r thought 1 t would-. He gaw 
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an 1nd1gnsnt snort an d paaaed on. Ae a f'i nal eequel to tbh 
legislation 1 t r.1a7 be etat.ed that tbe aupreme cour t of Ill1noh declared 
a e1o1lor bill unconsti tut1-onal 1n pert hoauee 1 t at tei:iptcd to 
regul ate n, t 1onal bank•• 

; 
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'IBF. IBGISLA'.rom: CONVENES 

A rn bel'ore lea't'ing ror Harrisburg, I received a po 1 te note rrorn t he 

general agent or the PennsylTani a rallroa4 atatit18 that his company 

iooJt pl-.aure i n iaauing an annual pua tor my u11e and aaldng that I call and 

recei pt ror 1 t. 

I •a• aware or the powerful 1nf'luenaa that t hill road had exerted on the 

Leghlature and or the auccesa it bad at • 1th in getti ng what 1t wanted and 1n 

deteat1Rg any legi slat ion i nimical t o i ta interests. For th1• and other 

I decided not to accept the pua. On t he day or my departure, I receind a 

reglatered letter. When I opened it, I learned that I had unwittingly r ect4,ted 

ror a Pennay1Yan1a paaa. 'llhen I shosed it to my rather, he took a pencil 

and ran a 11.ne thrOU{'h t he prefix "Roni', aaylng that it I were goi ng to use it, 

the edJecti 't'e was inoona1stent • 1th my atti tude toward my publi c duti es. I 

returned the peu and, as will be related later, soon hod occasion to be glad 

that I had done ao. 

on reachi ng t he cepi tel, I t ook a room ror the session at the Lochi e l House, 

a remoua old hostelry petronizecl by the more active me- bers or t he Legislat ure and 

state otriciela. Con.aequently, i t waa the headquarters tor important poli tical 

conferences. I was asked by the Speaker or the House, Henry K. Boyer, to 

oocupy a chair at his table , where 1n addl t 1on to Herry Hulm, the parliamentary 

"81'9 anerel prannent members. Daily contact with thi s group 

-1::al dud me to obaln 1ntorme.t1on ea to my future duti e~ whi ch I could have 

obtained 1n no other mamier. 

'Die Speekar waa a 111an or unusual atta1mnenta. lie was tall, well built, and 

d1gn1t1ec; • 1th a pcraonal1 ty t het m won the tr1endshi p end confidence or ell 

the asm'bers, regardleas or party lines. A• a parl111111entar1an, he had tew equals, 

partly the result ot having presided onr pre't'1oua seaa1ons. 

Ai'ter hi s 1nstella t1on i n the houae o · which I waa a t11e1:1ber , he asked t he 

1118mbors to indica te t heir preferences tar c011S111ttee asaignmonta. I had reali zed 
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tran the outset the importanc e ot gett1118 on oa:mni t teea that would have congeni al 

work to do and that had 80!n8 import!lllce. AB I was t'ree entangli ng alli ances 

and had noi ambi t i ons to conti nue in pu.bl1c otti ce, I was i nterested only in the 

ppp~ity to do acme worthwhile work. My t i r et choi ce was the judi c i ary general 

camdttee, canposed almost enti rel y ot l awyers, includi ng t he major i ty leader. 

To this committee bills ot izllportance that possi b!J requi red 81119ndl!lent and measures 

ot doubt ful consti tutionali ty were referred. Alt hough I was a new mftl'lber, I was 

appoi nted to i t , an honor due i n large part to t he tac t that no one e l se trom 

t be b i g delegati on traa AlleghellJ county had asked tcr a pl ace on i t . 

I then asked the Speaker to place me on the comm1 ttee on banks. He m iled 

broadly a t w, request, sayi ng that this COlll'lli ttee r arely 1119t and t hat i n some 

aesai ona i t tailed to asaeable for eTen a s i ngle meeti ng . That would not be t he 

oaae i n thi s seee1on, I aaeured him, ae I had two import ant banki ng measures 

which I propa, ed t o i ntroduce; these would naturally be r eterrecl to the c011111.1ttee 

on b8lllca. Accordingly, he appoi n ted me the ranking member •1th the power to cell 

the cOlll!li ttee together 1n the abeencl or t he chai rman. Two minor COlllllitteea, 

Geol ogi cal Suney and Federal Rel a tions, t he latter ot whi ch I was made chai rman, 

completed my aaii1gaments. 

FRIENDLY 'mEATMENT BY 'Im! L'EADBRS 

'lbe friendly atti tude ot the Speaker and hi s close associ ates could be 

accounted tor pertly by the tact t hat I and 1ftY colleagues became candi dates 

tor the Legi slature without t he consent or endor sement of Magee and Flynn who 

had l ong been the bosses or Allegheny County. 'Ibi s wee the only section or t he 

state not under the political control ot Senator Q;uay. The teud between these 

two groups had u:i stecl for years, but Senator Quay wi th all hie i nfluence and 

presltsa waa unable to this powertul. local - chine . n waa quite natural, 

tberetore, that 1n Harr1aburg where Quay was supreme i n all legislatiTe matters , 

I might properly be regarded as pro Quay or at least friendly to the QuaJ' 

or gani zation. 

I t was not t hen known t hat I wee the author or t he ennonymoua p8lll))hl e t 
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"'Ille Pig Iron State and P1~ Statemen" ill whi ch Senator Quay waa directly charged 

with speculating and l osing a large am 1n the State Trea8ury over which he 

prea1ded. Ha4 this tact become known, I would have been on the black 11st, 

and the courtesy shown me mentioned before, would have been 8111l)hat1cally denied 

me. 

GETS A SURPRISE 

A few daya after the conveni ng of t he Legi slature, I was seated at m:, 

desk wr1tln8 a letter. Suddenly I beoeme aware of an unUBual silence 1n the 

Chamber broken by a momber oppoa1te me calling my name while another member 1n 

Ule rear ~ecl on 'Ill/I back. Looki ng up I ea• the Spealcer standi ng erect w1 th 

hia gavel poi sed ill the air and looking intently 1n my direction. Then the pre-

a1dln8 atf l cer " '***''* repeated. wbat·he had evidentl y aa1d betoro: "The 

gentleaan tar Allegheny will pleaae take the chai r . " 

Th.1e requeat 081119 u a shock, for although not subject to atage fright, I 

had no liki ng for the formal duties of a presiding officer, as previ ousl y i ndicated 

whm I declined the prealdeney of the Yal e Kent Cl ub. Pulling m:,aelt together, 

I wall:Bd <\own tba alal e which u-ed 1ntern1nab1J long and mounted the steps 

l eadln8 to the Speaker'• chai r. ffl th a d1gn1f 1ed bow, he bonded - the ·ga , e l , 

and I made an awkward curtsy ill return. 

Gazing out over tlle sea of faces whore many were wonderi ng who l n thunder 

had taken tbs chair, I shoute4, "flle Rouse will please coma t o order, " though 

7011 could bear a pin drop so orderly waa the body a t t hat manent. @eking to one 

aide of tba chair where the parliamentary clerk was usually concealed an.d i n a 

poa1 tton t o prCllllpt tbe Speaker o.n oattera i nvolving t he rules or practices of the 

Bouae, I found tbta useful person absent. A momGnt later, I was attracted by a 

1118111ber ris ing and aski ng toi, recognl Uon. Not ll:no"1ng e t ther hls na1:1e or the 

count,. he represented, I t old h1m t o proc!eed, whereupon he N ad the title or a 

b111 he was then introducing, and the meaeure woe taken t o the Chn1r by a page. 
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At that moment I heard a slight noise to my right and there saw t he smiling 

countenance of Harry Huhn, the Speaker 's clerk and one of my daily companions 

at the dinner table. 

I whispered to him, "What in the world am I to do with t his confounded pa:per?" 

He whispered back that I should read the title of t he bill aloud and refer it 

to its appropriate comnittee, which_in this instance, I had no trouble i n determin-

ing. Thereafter, all went smoothly. Nevertheless , I was greatly pleased to see 

the Speaker approaching. As he took his place, he whispered , "You might have 

done worse, for we were giving you t he t hird degree . " 
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SAP&GOARD A.CWM>T HAST!' LEGISLATIOll 

In PennsylT8.llia and many other ate.tea, the consideration or enactment or 

legislation 1• eo eeteguarded that no member canner assert that bills ware 

called up or enacted into law w1 thout haTing due notice. Under the state 

constitution, when measures are tirst introduced, the titM is tirst read bJ the 

-1>er introducing the bill and read again bJ the Speaker when he announces t he 

0(8!dttee to which it hae been reterred. l'lhen reported out tavorabl7, i t is 

placed on the calendar and must be read d length three times on three separate 

da7s. On the second reading, 1 t maJ' be amended. On the third reading i t COllleB 

up tor final consideration and may be deteated or passed b7 a majorit7 Tote, 

although llllll!lll!ments may be made bJ goi ng into the OClll!llttee ot the Whole. 

Moreover, the proposed legislation must relat~ to onl7 one subject, whll• 

t he t i tle ot the bill IIIU8t clee.rlY' i ndicate its purposes. This 1'rocedure i s 

in strilc1ng contrast to lltt the slipshod and careless manner in which Congrisa 

legislates ae pointed out later. 

Detection ot the "Grade Crossing" !.!onstrosity 

There was one bill, howeTer, that did not attract attention until it was 

oalled up in the Bouae tor second reading on FebruarJ' 14, 1889. It had a 

deliberatei,. misleading title as toll ... : "A bill to insure public satet,. b7 

regulating grade crosaings in cities ot the tirst and second class. " This measure 

being 11Jlllted to Ph1ladel pn1a and Pittsburgh was or concern to compe.rathelY' tn 

-1>ers. Moreover, it was in line with the ettorts to do away with the many 

oasualties at railroad croaai ngs i n the larger cities; ther4H'ore, it was accepted, 

at i ts race Talue, as a wise measure. 

When the bill was called Up, I happened to read its provisions because the 

cit,. ot Allegheny that I represented in part was soon likelY' to be consolidated 

with Pittsburgh. It would, thereby, coma within the scope ot the proposed 

regulation. I diacohred almost 1llmedi atel7 that the measure should have been 
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entitled, ".A bill t o preYent the entry of new railroads i nto cities of the first 

and second claaa." Far the bill contained a section exempti ng erlsting rai lroads 

ma the other provi s i ons of the act. At the 881118 t1me1 i t required new railroads 

aeell:i ng entry i nto these cities to elevate their tracks at the nmici pal boundari es 

far a distance at ten or f ifteen miles, a t en enormous coat. Furthermore the 

bill did not gift to the nes aystaia terminal facilities within the business 

portion at tha toim. 'lbwi, it effectually barred canpetitive lines in the future. 

'l'bia a®- waa a good illuatration of corporation control of the Legislature 

and at an attempted deception 'b7 a cnmnlngly devised and apparently harmleaa 

Utle. The 1-diate beneficiaries of tht, act -1.d haft been the Pennaylvania. 

the Readi ng, the Plttaburgb and Lalm and the BaltilK>re and Ohio Railroads; 

the last one • 'b7 the "87 • -s represented by s:, f im as @eneral Counsel 

in western Pennaylvania lacept far the first road mentioned1 the other lines 

were inactive 1n pranoting the 1119aaure a t Harrisburg. 
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Defea t of the Grade Crosalng Monstrosity. 

House Bill, No. 52, was consldere<l the greatest corl)Oratlon 
grab ot the session. Owing largely to the courageous speeches and 
etrectl\'e work ot Mr. Shlras, the ta.xpayers ot PlttsbuW,h, Alle-

f~:1~Y tt~l
10~!d~t n~~-a;::itr~~~ 

enterprises an lmposslblllty. Neither threats directed against his 
own bills or spacious pleas deterred hlm Crom doing his duty In the 
hour when the publlc slept and the enemy occupied every post. 
The tollowlng communication trom one oC the county's reliable and 
zealous cit lzens bears testimony to the narrow escape the county 
had Crom ftrst being robbed and then Imprisoned: 

John Hood. Esq., Member ot the Feed and Flour Exchange. 

"As a member ot the .1olnt Committee Crom the Chamber oC 
Commerce and the Feed and Flour Exchange. sent to Harrisburg to 
assist In the defeat ot Rouse BIii No. 52. I take great pleasure In 
having an opportunity to say a !cw words In commendation or Mr. 
Shlras' valuable service while a representative at Harrisburg. Ac-
customed a.s I am to notice all movements that have had any bear-
Ing on the commerce or our City and State. I became Interested In 
ttouse Bill No. 52. purl)Orllng to be for the 'protection or lite and 
property In cities ot the ftrst and second class.' T his measure was 
In !act. a scheme to prevent the building of any more rival roads 
In the State. and further, to compel the cities to spend m illions In 
the behalf or existing corporations. In the language oC the Phila-
delphia Board or Trade It would 'as a law deny all new railroad 
companies practicable access to the cities or Phlladelphla and 
Pittsburgh. and the blll should be entitled a law to torbld com-
petition with established roads.' " 

" It provided that the cost oc constructing the necessary under-
grade or overgrade crossings 'should be equally divided between 
the railroads and the city.' and that the consequential dama.11:es be 
summarily dlvlded-whlch might cost MILLIONS OF DOLLARS 
IN T~'CES. New roads were to par all expenses, and besides be 
denied necessary terminal raclllttes.' 

!11r. Shlras, with the honest convictions that the Shlras tamlly 
possess. and with the kee n a ppreciation of the great Injury the 
bill would Inflict upon his constituents. as well upon the whole 
State. sounded the alarm the Instant the nature oc the bill wns 
detected. The cunning deception and gross lnJusllce or the bin 
fired his Indignation. prompting him to a vigorous ftght against 
the measure from Its discovery to the final defeat In the Senate by 
one majorlt)', While llr. Sblras was not opposed to the prompt 
abolition or all d:,ngerous grade crossings. but heart ly In favor of 
the same. he regarded the text oC this blll proposing the same as a 
-nere screen tor e. measure gotten up e.nd fostered entirely by and 
for corporation pur!)OSes. ACter Mr. Shlras' bitter denunciation oc 
the bill on the ftoor of the House (and he alone spoke against It 
on ftnal pas~age), the six large commercial exchanges In Phlladel-
nhla and the two In our city became aroused to the dangers that 

i~1~e!~eJ'°~e~e s~":i~:<!"'~~ si~l1.r,.a.s~~1~trg~~t1?,.~':r, cf~!es'e~~f ::g 
Common Councils or the City of Allegheny, therein the City's Rep-
r esentative~ were requested to vote against any features of the bill 
"Cndlng 'that "·ould In any way curtail the powers now possessed 
by the city or In any manner Impose any cost upon the city II: 

· changing existing grades. without the assent oC the city.' Com-
mittees from all these exchanges visited Harrisburg, and by their 
united etrorts, the pressure became too strong and the bill Called 
of becoming a law by Just one vote. Mr. Shlras· vigorous etror ts 
against the measure won the conftdence of the large ea.stem dele-
gations. and his zeal and falthlulness were so appreciated. (hat 
during the 'lll•hole struggle they manifested more contld enee In him 
than In their own representatives. His Independence, courage and 
ability were qual,ltles needed then, and should be acceptable 'to 
even a large constituency now. 

"JOHN HOOD.'' 
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A PROPOSED ILLEGAL ACT AND ITS FINAL 
ENAC'DAENT IN mAT FORM 

Illustrating some ot t he lleYious methods in legislation, I haTe another 

example in llind, 11111ch more rle.grant in its decept1Te toa tho the grade crossill8 

bill. Early 1n tbe session, Ur. E!mlanuel Wertheiaer, a wealthy distiller, 

residing in my district, called upon me cn4 asked whether I would i ntroduce a 

bill permitting the i ncorporation or distilleries, sayi ng that in this missi on 

he represented these i nterests throughout the state. Although bre,ring COlllpSnies 

could be incorporated, he poi nted out that distilling companies with a much l arger 

capHal were not pel'!llitted to have this advantage. In case ot death, i nsolvency 

or withdrawal ot a member ot a rinn, he showed that reo1"8'n1zation was necessary 

whi le the isauing ot securi ties and the i ncurring ot contractual obligations 

were greatly impaired. 

I told him I could see no good reason why di sti lli ng COCJ1)8nies should not 

hage the privilege or incorporating, particularly as the brewing i nterests 

enjoyed it. I asked that I be •hown a copy or the proposed bill amendiJ18 the 

general corporation act. I round on eDll!ling i t t hat the title was vitally derective 

1n t hat it did not llholr the nature or the amendment, whi le the body or the bi ll 

contained only the proposed amended section. Thi s departed trOl!l the usual 

practice ot setting torth the section as unamended rollowed by the new secti on 

containing the changes in italicized torm, so that the members would know just 

what changes were proposed. I informed •·r . \'iertheilller that I would not IIJ)Onsor 

the bill unless it cont'ormed to t he constitutional requiroments. He surprised me 

by saying that the bill could not be passed in ony rorni other than the one proposed 

because i t would arouse unnecessary antagoni sm. Aa I stood on my position, the 

propoaed legislation was dropped tor that ssssion. 

Two years l ater, 1.,'r. ll'erthehler r:as el ected t o the Legi slature trom Allegheny 

County-. Al.l!lost i11111ediately, he i ntroduced the bill in the tom i n which i t had 
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been presented to me. Aa a resul t ot aome akillt'Ul manoeuveri ng under the 

guidance of the state or gani zati on, it became a law and remai ned on the stat uM 

books until the adoption of the Ei ghteenth Amendment to t he Federal Constitut i on, 

all the great di still ing i nterests taking adv811tal:e of i t s provisions. 

In con884luence, for nearly t hirty year s , tens of millions of dollars were 

represented b7 capital stock illegally issued, but few seemed to be aware of 

the condition. '!be question ot the legality of the act was never raised i n the 

courts, whore it would have been praaptly overthrown as 1n plain and i ntenti onal 

contravention ot several tund11111ental provisions ot the s tate constitution. 
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.BXPRBSSIONS OF OOOD WILL BY 'l'HE AUTHOR ' S 
COLLliGUBS ON TllE JUDICIARY CENlmAL CCH.!ITTEE 

The year tollOll'iDg the conoluaion of 1111 brtet teni or eentce 1n the Legtalature, 

I waa unexpeotedly toroed into a campaign tor t he Republican n011l1nat1on to Congreaa. 

Regard].- ot part)' att1llettou, all m:, toll.ow -bere on the 1u41c1ary Cantttee 

endoraed, 1n written tom, IQ' oand14acy. 'Dit a 11U a JDOat unuaual proceedlilg b a 

cc:mteat bet.Mn oandidatea at a prillar)' election. Tbeae endora-nt are publ1ahed 

here, not beouaae they are ccanen4atol'J' trm a personal point at Yi••• but 

because tbai,e apreaelou at good • 111 - to indicate that the duties impoeed 

OD me in the Legl alatun ba4 been aatlataotorlly pertozwed. Therefore, they 

oonatUute a pert at record. 
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ENmRnm '"'HE CONTEST 

When the time approached t or t he biennial pr imaries, I d.eclared that I would 

not again be a candi date tar the legislature. This statement was made as a 

cef'1:rmat1on or-, earlier deolarat1on that I WCQld ller'TII but one term 1n the 

atate Legialature. This sil!lple not1oe ocoaa1oned a an-ies ot 1nc1denta wh1oh 

aey people would have regarded as ot no great lmportance. They were, howeYer, 

deet.1md to ahape 111uch ot my aubNquent oarMr. 

'Die publication ot t he story that I would not be a cad1date was 

c-ted on by po61t1oa l friends ot .Tudge ffh i te aa eddenoe tbd beoauae ot 

their 1nt'luence with t he voters, I waa afraid t o run again. I knew that 

.Tudge \Thi te was not responsible tor these aaeertiona tar reaaona already given. 

But 1n view ot t he tact that I had auppreaaed 111Dah damaging eddence atteot1ng 

the acou.d Jurist, whi ch bed been unearthed on my r eturn t o Pittsburgh, I waa 

greatly tempted to enter the f i eld to make clear t hat I was willing t o meet t ho 

1aaue. 

While deciding what mf.8h t best be done , I concehed t he 141ea ot s howing my 

at.ending with m;y conat1tumita by what would have all the earmarlat ot a bonati de 

oand1daey tar -Congress againat Col. 'ff\011188 M. Bayne. Col. Bayne , atta r his 18 

years at aerrtce 1n t he House had won a h i gh poa1t1on 1n his party , both 1n "/aah-

1.ng ton and at ho:-e . 'Iba time ... , aa a matter ot tact, lllllah too brief to g1 'Y8 

• a fair opportunity tor a s uocesarul oampa1gn agai nst Bayne, even 1t I coald 

heft defeated h1m unller any c 1rcU111st.ancea. HoweYer, I hoped that by setting up 

delegate• 1n IQ' legislative di s trict and Heuring their e l ection by a subst.antiftl 

NJor1 tJ' to make 1 t clear tor all time that I could have bad a second term 1n the 

Leg1sla~l"8 1t I had wanted it. 

'IHI COHTBST m m:~ UEPUBLICAN ?RIMARIES AGAINST COL. BAYNE 

nae twnt)r-th1rd Cong1Nss1onal D1str1c$, changed latel.7 to the t wenty-ninth , 

wu ccaposed at t he City ot Allegheny and all tb11 boroughs and townshi ps north 



Memoirs_Box1_Folder12_169.tif

- 2-

of t he Ohio River, contai ni ng P. nopulation of about 200, 000. The tnsjori t y of 

the voters resided in Allegheny. Con86quently, this grou;> dani nated i n the number 

at delegate• to the Col!.gl'essional Convention whi ch was composed of nbout 140 

members. 

A.a the first step in my plan, I consulted with ~'.ajor Kennedy who nreviously 

had had charge of my candidacy tor the Legislature. He was l!lllCh surprised at my 

motives but goodnaturedly gave way to my plan. It required but little t i r-.e to 

select t he delegates i n the first legislative di strict, for c ost or t hem had 

represented r.ie i n the other contest. In a dpy or tvo , i t became known t het I 

had entered the Congressional primaries against Colonel Bayne, but no one exceot 

intimate frie nds knew my purpose. As Colonel Bayne had only once before been 

opposed tar t he nanir.ation, t he newspapers devoted considerable space to t his 

unexpected development. 

The C0Dl!l8rc1al Gazette, for f ifty year s the Pepubl ican organ i n ~astern 

Pennsylvani a , and a paper or cOlllllallding i nfluence, announced that it would sup)>Ort 

Colonel Beyue 1n every possi ble we,y. The paper stated that it would regard the 

defeat or this Congressman toward the end or bis brillia"lt career as a great 

calami ty, One sr-&l paper or 111111 ted circulation was equally emphati c i n m;y 

support. Hut the other papere were neutral. and neither candidnte cc>tld ccmJ)lain 

oC not getting fair treat"Oent fral! t heee l atter papers. 

As I expected, the gtee.t majority or the manufacturers and corporations, 

thll t anners i n tbs rural dist ricts and the Civil "iar veterans gave e.lmost 

unquali f ied support to my opponent. This, however, <l id not distmrb me , as my 

C81!1pa1gn for delegates i n the ~1rst legislative di s t rict would not be t:!'QCh i nfluenced 

by the elements going t o Beyne. 

'lben straJ18e ~1ngs began to haopen. ~'rom all over t he di stri ct Ca"le 

a.eaure.nces or much popular support, composed or t he younger Republican element 

with s large number or local politiciane who, r or one reason or another, were on 

unfriendly teI'lllB with the old- tillle Congresemsn who i ncurred, as is ao often tee 

case, the enm1 ty or disappointed office holdns and thei.r friends. I t was not 
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witll .Tames G. Wyman, Vayor or Allegheny, announced that he and his 

administrati on would do everythi ng possible for me t hat coh3renee was given to 

the opposition . For i'lyman was regarded as the most pouerf'ul and successful 

leader 1n hi s city, expeci ally was he the cont rolling force i n t he party pri mari es . 

Thia 11188 fol lowed by an announcement f rom the Allegheny Ri ver Improvement 

Aseociation t h.et every member i n i ts ranks would oppose the nomi nation of Colonel 

Bayne, whom they charged wi th an habitual neglect or thei ; i nter ests. Thus , i t 

will be seen that many of rey unexpected supporters belonged to a class that di d not 

love rm mor.e , but Bayne less. The upshot •tit all was that t hree weeks before 

the prim~es, a number or di sinterested leaders deelar8d that i n all probability 

I could defeat Bayne. Thereupon, I was forced, wi th &ome reluctance , . to set up 

delegates i n every voting preci nct i n the di strict. Ot herwi se , I would be 

disregarding the wishes or many friends i n addi tion to maki ll{' i t apparent that 

I was not a bona f i de candidate , a tact whi ch I had hoped to conceal at t he 

beginning or my campai gn. 
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- -~ - g: (,~ 1-.. li .\A ~-1 
Sel ecting a Delegate i n t he Tbirl! ...Il'nm,1-nct 

In selecting the delegates i n my home ward I had l i ttle 

di fficulty except i n the third precinct , known as "t he rollill8 

mill di strict. " Here the votrts were numerous, but the per sonal 

popularity of t ha delegate was more important t han that of t he 

candidate he r epresent ed. 

I was advised t o see the superi ntendent ot a lead works 

a few squares from my houae. Meeti ng him one evening at hi s 

office , the matter was taken up and he strongl y advised the 

selection of one Willi am Kelly, who, he said, had never been 

defeated in a primary electi on. While he was extolling Kelly ' s 

meri ts my adviser stopped i n the middle of a sentence , his jaw 

tell and hi s eyes closed. A moment later he fell in a heap 

on t he floor . 

Greatly alarmed I sought assistance . On goi ng i nto t he hallway 

I saw a light beneath the opryosite door and could hear a type'lfl'iter 

clicki ?l8 in the room. Rapping on t he door, I was at once 

confronted by a tall, thin and elderly female to wham I spoke 

or the superintendent ' s sudden illness, poi nting to t he fallen 

f igure i n t he room across the corridor . 

Wi thout a word she ret•.i.rned w1 th me , went t o a closet and 

came out with a large dark bottle, which she shook vigorously. 

Then with great deliberation she removed the cork ant approached 

t he prostrate form. With her left hand she rai sed the head , 

and placed t he mout h or t he bottle to the l ips. A gur gli ng 

sound was almost i.lllnediately foll owed by s igns ot returning 

consci ousness . Thi s myster i ous femalethen returned the bottle 
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COLON'.:::L STO!lli C0'$ S "! 0 T"riR rn(TT 

A A •93k preceding t he primaries, everythi ng was runni ng smoothly, and I had 

fair bopea success , unexpected aa it was. Then c•une another change i n political 

curren 1.8, for I recieved an unexpected message f r om Colonel 'i11111am A. Stone 

stating that he would like to talk over t he polit ical s i tuation Cwccwx «1th me. 

Up t o this t m3, Col onel Stone. a former U.S . Di strict Attorney and the 

head ct the t raction i nterests i n All egben7 had . with his mnny polit ical associates, 

J'l!l!::lain3d neutral 1n t his contect. Far several years. Stone -aas regarded as one 

who dosired to ouccoed Colonel Bayne but a;,parently teared to cross swords with 

such a powerful opponent . fie was patiently waiti r.g a break ot some sort that 

would give hi m a chance. 'nlerefore. I tri ed to guess tbo object of the vi s i t . 

Stone opened the i nterview with the statenant that he understood t hat I 

would not be a cn·didate e.gain for Congress in case I were nomi nated and elect~d. 
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to the closet, made a curt bow and retre_ated • closing the door ~ter 

her. I wondered then, and have ever since , at her apparently 

i nscrutable conduct. 

Meanwhile my adviser had gathered himself up , again taken his 

seat, and was brushing off his clothes with a handkerchi ef , offering 

no explanation for what had happened, nor displaying any embarass-

ment. "As I said before" , he continued where he had abruptly 

left off, "William Kelly is the man for you to select." 

I hast ened to assure him that r would get William Kelly it I 

had t o adopt him i nto the family• and saying something about my 

wife not liking to have mb ati.y "out ~ter dark", or wi th sane 

such excuse, I left much more rapidly than I had come. Reaching 

t he street , I concluded that the superintendent knew a great deal 

about delegates, but that he had peculiarities not to my liking. 

So this was my first and only i nterview w1 th him. 
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I told h1DI that such was my resolve. He then asked i f' I would pledge my word 

to him t hat I would not run agai n . It I did this and agreed to support him as 

my succes sor. he s tated that he and oll his friends would support my candidacy 

and. thus. ensure ':!lY election. 

I told hi t:1 rather curtl y t hat I could i::e1ther pledge myself' not to r un 

again nor to support hil!! a t the end or my term. I n explaining t hi s . I told him 

that rr:, ref'usel t o run again was !!lade knolfll to the public and not secretly 

to any individual. Moreover. I asserted t hat I could not agree to support him 

on my reti rement fror:i Congress because I believed l!lY successor should be chosen 

by t he Republican voters and not by s:ny special i nf'luence I might posseaa in 

retiring t'rom t his office. 

Thia attitude seemed to surprise my visitor, and he lef't in apparent 

di sappoi ntment . 'Iwo days later carie t he announcem3nt i n the press t hnt Colonel 

Stone and his f r i ends had come outstrongly f'or Bayne. •twas not until later 

t!lat I learned how the change had been brought about . .\t f irst I merely 

concluded t hat t his ambitious gent leman concluded that he had a better chance 

to succeed Bayne i n t he near f ut ure than a younger candi dnte who l'lieht wi sh to 

conti nue on i n t he off'ice i ndef'initely. 

T"aen C811l8 another swi tch. Defini te word wao received s t rrry headquar t er s 

t hat Mayor ti:]1118.D. ond his adminiotrat ion had agreed t o r em•,i n neut r al i n the 

primar ies. Aa many of' my delegates in the City o£ Allegheny had e ither been 

put up by t he ~.ayor or were recei ving hi s ardent support . i t r equired many 

changes i n the delegates and much consequent t'ri cti on. 
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HAD TO GIVE UP HIS STOLEH COAT 

Notwithstandi ng t he action ot the maas tieeting, the utterances of leading 

citizens, and a press united in its condemnation of Stone•a dishonorable conduct , 

the l atter l"St"used to give up the nanination, sayi ng that he had gotten the 

nomination f a i rly and was not to be influenced by tbe ill-tempered criticiem 

of h 1.8 political enB!"lies. 

Thereupon , o petition was circulated requesting the Republican County 

Cooz:ii ttee to call a specia l meeting f or the purpose or declari ng Stone's 

nomination illegal and to call a new primary electi on to select a Congressional 

candidate. Pending the meeting and action of the County COlll!li ttee, I went 

to my sUDmer bane on I.eke Superior tor a short stay. Thia gave me a much needed 

chance to rest and to dec\1de upon my course should a new pr1m11ry be held . 

1'/hen Stone learned aut horitati vely that t he County Co11J11ittee was practically 

unanimous i n finding t he nomination illegal , be made the best ot a bad s i tuat i on 

by giving up t he naiunati on and stating he ~ould be n candi date at the primari es 

when called. ~ ile personally very much opposed to goi ng i nto another contest, 

I realized t hat the request or lllY friends could not be lightly i gnored . 

Moreover, I fel t i t was my duty to lead i n an effort to puni sh those 

politici ans who had so flagrantly betrayed their pe.rty. 

By thus tii:ie , I knew full well t he nature of t he ensui ng contest and that 

I should have arrayed against me a vast aura of money on t ne part or t hose 

try1D8 t o save themselves from !><>litical extinction and a verdict ot over-

whelming conder:mati on. To aver t this end , i n additi on to lavish expendi tures 

there would be brou6ht i nto play every political brick and every fol't'I ot 

coercion likel y to save the Joint conspiracy of Bayne and Stone to achieve 

t heir ends. Bad their been a direct orimary and a po':lular vote, I would bave 

had no 1:11ag1vings , but under the delegate systel:I where the nomir,ati on was 

made i n convent ion , I saw many di fficulties ahead. The new primaries were 

f ixed for September , precedi ng t ~e fall ~l ection by only e t ew weeks. 
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On my return trom t he .,est, I was glnd to hear t hat 'ayor ~yman and hi s 

administration had pr ootiaed n e t ~eir unqtllllfied support. Although I did not 

have much f aith i n t he r:iayor•s promises, I knew beyond ques t i on t ha t Wymon 

and Stone had long b <Jen bitter personal and political enemies. So, I felt at 

t his t ime t he breach would not be c losed as i t \Tould greatly impai r t he mayor ' s 

prestige 11' he joined hands wi th h is arch e ne!IIY• He would also lay h i mself 

wide open to t he charge ot corruption it he should 8111tch his supp<'rt now. 
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THE CLO.,INC D Y!i OF ""'E CA"PAICN 

Tllo weeks bef ore the primaries it became clearly a~parent that r:ry opponent 

based hi s hope of success on the lavish use of money ond every possible form 

of coercion. I t -s plain that the Bayne-Stone canbi nation had l ost hope 

of winni ng by f a i r !lllens end that, from t hei r standpoi nt , they felt Justi f ied 

1n saving th8!ll8elves f rom political oblivion by ony tactics, however 

despicable. It was not until weeks afterwards, however , t hat t he full amount 

or money expended by the oppositi on was revealed. But I was sati sfied t hat 

I had behind me the greet preponderance or t he voters, and i t d i d not seem 

possible to thwart thetr wi shes. 

Then C81!18 d i squieting rumors that i.Iayor ;1y1::1an was once more prepari ng 

to swi tch his allegi ance. I f these were so, i t would affect t he f idelity or 

many or my delegates i n the City or Allegheny who had e ither been put up 

for !Ill by the m~or or were otherwi se under hi s control. Detectives were 

empl oyed a t once , ard their reports showed beyound a doubt that the cit y 

admi nist ration, from top t o bott0111, was work1118 for tho Stone delegates. 

To correct this s ituation , I bed mAny or these del egates retire in favor of 

more fai t h1'ul substi tutes; this, or course, caused much fri cti on. 

On the day of the primaries word CAme nearly every hour to my headquarters 

t hat certai n or rrry del egates had disappeared from the polli ng ul eces, leavi ng 

me unrepresented. Aft er the close of t he polls and t he day follo-Ring, i t was 

learned t hat more than a dozen of my delegates , elected i n my behalf, had 

transferred thei r credentials either to t he losing del egate or to so"eone else 

favori ng Colonel Stone. 

Contests numberi ng more than t hirty were s t arted i n 'll'eci ncts whe:.-e I 

had been corruptly deprived or my delegates, e i ther by a tl'?lnsfer of credentials 

or by the sending of l'rJ represent atives out or town. 

When the conventi on assembled in the mayor's s tronghold, the City Hnll, 

a motion was made to send these ca nes to t he COllll?li t tee on Contested Seats. 
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Many atfidavi ts had been nade bearinc on the contests. besides the sUITll!Oning 

of more than a hundred 111 tnesses. When the motion referred to was made. the 

objection was raised to a hearing on the contest on t he ground that t he notices 

or such contest s had been filed one hour late. It was all eged that the notices 

instee.d of being presented at noon the day before. had not reached the 

secretary or the district c011111ittee until one p. m. Thereupon. Ceorge E. Shaw• 

a brilliant young lawyer and a successful delegate from my ward , protested 

against the effort to block a hearill8• He pointed out t hat at the previous 

convention. Colonel Stone had been naninated in violation of every fundamental 

rule governing the election or convention am that tor t hese same forces now 

ro raise a purely technical point ot io manent would bring about a l!!Ore 

corrupt na:unation than on the f i rst oocasion. The Republican party• he 

avowed• could 111 attord to have a convention again openly defy the wi ahes 

of a great majority or the voters. especially as none of the contested election 
but upon charge a ot fraud; 

cases was based upon a technicality; nor. he insisted• could so many contests 

have been tiled sooner. 

The chairman. however. decided t hat t he rule havi ng been i nvoked. i t 

was tor the majority of t he convention to decide whether the time l imit should 

be extended an hour. l'fhen such a motion was made . the fraudulently elected 

delegates were permitted to vote. t hus assuring Colonel Stone a majority ot 

four 1n the convention insteadof being defeated by nearly titty votes . 

Thereupon. on the request of one ot my floor leaders. t hose delegates supporti ng 

me were asked to leave t he hall so as not to partici pate in another fraudulent 

nomination. 

The retiring delegates found t he door leadi ng into t he hall~ay locked• 

with a policanan standing guard. On his refusi ng to open the door. a two 

hundred pound delegate of mi ne from t he borough ot Rtna t hreatened to throw 

the polioeman out of the window unless he opened t he door. This delegate 

shouted that the officer had no authority to put t he convention under arrest. 
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This threat suffi ced , and as the door sWUJ18 open, Chief or ?ol1ce Murphy 

and two l ieutenants were found on the other s i de of the t hreshold, tacitly 

showing how Mayor ll'yman had been exerting his i nfluence. As the delegates 

filed out a chee~ was bee.rd from the other end of t he hell, gi vi ng evidence 

that Colonel Stone was once nore the victor as the result of hi s utter 

disregard for fair pl ay or decency. 

NOlAINATED IN ANOTHER CONVEIITION 

After my delegates had retired from the convent ion t hat had nomi na ted 

Colonel Stone by strong- armed tactics, t hey assembled i n a nearby hall. 

Here the convent ion ~as formally organized and my contest i ng delegates 

declared duly elected , t hus giving me a large majori ty. 

On .notion, my name was presented as a candidate, and I was unanimously 

elected. Thereupon, I was sent for and addressed t he ga thering. .\f'ter expressi ng 

my great awreciat ion f or the tai th1'ul 1JUpport given me i n the canpaign 

and for the honor tendered me in t~.e newly organiUld convention, I declined to 

accept the nO!llination. In explanation, I poi nted out that it was then t oo 

late to teat t he legality or my opponent' s nomination in the courts. Were 

I forced to run as an indeoendent candi date , I stated, i t meant the election 

of a Democrat to Congress in a three cornered f i ght . This result should be 

avoi ded when the upholding of the tariff was a matter ot vital economic 

impor tance to ";astern Pennsylvania as well as to t he country at l a r ge. 

I concluded by maki ng t hree pledges: First, t hat Colonel Stone would 

be...---W opposed a t t he next election by a suitable candidate; second , t hat 

I would illl!ledi ately take steos to puni sh criminally or othernise those 

ooliticians who had been responsible for the corrupt cont rol of t he convention 

nominating Colonel Stone ; third, t hat i n behald of our party I would try t o 

bring about a better and more representati ve met hod or n0111i nating candidates 

a t the primaries. My express i ntention of punishi ng t hose ~ilty of f raud 

or coercion was greeted wi th prolonged appl ause. 
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A SUCCESSFUL RJ .FO!l.lJ 1lOVE"ENT 

BEGINNIMG OF T':E REIOmA MOVEMENT 

I was det emined to secure the puni shment of t he men guilty of fraud 

and corrupti on 1n the two pr evious congressional primaries, but I quickly 

di scovered that i t wa.s a difficult t hi ng to bring about. I had 81llple 

nidence of the bribi ng and coercion of my delegates and the purchase of 

?Olitical leaders pledged to ey support. But I found , i n the course of my 

i nqui ry , that t he exi sting pr imary regulati ons had no l egal standing. They 

were extra-legal rules for procedure developed and accepted by t he several 

politic- 1 parties. Co~-.equently, thore was really no l egal redr ess f or 

frauds 1n a primary contest. 

Reali zing t hat any direct attack i n t he courts on my polit ical foes 

was irapracticable, I decided to take a different line. Vi gorous protests 

were fomulated and sent to Postmaster General Wanamaker agai nst the 

ac t i vities of t he assi s t ant postnester of All egheny. This uort hy ' a contri bu-

tion to t he conspiracy had been t he nurchase and transfer of credent i als to 

defea ted candidates f or delegates. The protests were as effective as t hey 

were emphatic , and his r emov'll speedily followed. A similar procedure in 

the case of the Collector of I nternal Revenue for t he d i strict brought a 

sharp repr imand for bis i nterf erence i n the selection of party candi dates. 

The reprimand was shortl y followed by bis resignation. 

I was , however, much more i nterested 1n securing the punishment of 

V.ayor 11yman, •hose betrayll of my i nterests i n each of t he pr imary contest s 

was current ly believed to have been in consideration of a substantial price. 

AB he was safe f rom direct atta ck, for the r easons stat ed above , I cas t about 

for ot her ways of reachi ~ hi m. Definite i nfowation bearing out current 

reryort of t he mayor's corrupt i on i n t hn di scharge of hi s official dut i es 

suggested t he way . Deemi ng it i nadvisabl e t hat I, or my ooli t i cal advi sers, 

should press for an i nves t i gati on, I set ::,pself to t he task of buildi ng up 
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a reform organi zati on that would take the i ni t iat i ve . 

Distrust or Mayor Wyman and his met hods was so prevalent t hat t 1'ere was 

little di ff iculty 1n enrol line; some 100 prominent c i t i zens or All egheny i n 

such a movement. The work was largely i n the hands ot well known young busi ness 

men, wi th Robert A. Lea acting as tem.,orary chai rman. As i t was m:y desire 

to keep in the background, I and my advi sers saw to it that the membership 

contained none ot my more active supporters. The 1-diate purpose was to 

secure an audit ot the moyor•s accounts. So great was t he f eeling aroused 

by bis unsavory metllod•• t hat 1thout any urging tran us, t he associat i on 

pressed its demend tor the audit wit h t he greatest vigor on t he select and 

CCl!lllon council ot the city. These bodi es alone, by ;joint resolution. could 

authorize the inquiry. 

'lbs majority ot the councilmen were under the control ot the mayor and 

hi s pol i t ical associ ates, but the members i ncluded a number of men who were 

i ndependent i n their vi ews and , also, possessed ot great courage and i ntegrity. 

Anothe r groupwu 8\28Ceptible to t he i nfluence of a Movement such as ~e had 

put on its feet, part icularly as i had strong endorsements from the press . 

At t he outset ot the movement , I was requested the executive conmittee, 

because of my knowledge or local condi tions end because i t be l i eved I would 

present the tacts f airl y and without personal b ias, to prepare a series of 

bulleti ns outlini ng the pur ooses ot t he associ ati on. Thi.a I consented t o do, 

with the unders t andi ng that it should not bec001e known that I was the author. 

Continued pr essures f ran the association and t he pres s s oon resulted 

in the council's direct i ng an auidt or the Mayor's books. 

RKPOHT OF 'l'IIB AUDrrCl'IS 

Mter a careful examination ot t he mayor's r ecords, the audi tors reported 

that the Uayor bad obtained thousands of dollars by ill egal nethods. It 

was charged that he had been guilt y of many cases or extortion through 
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the imposition or fines which he pocketed as a part of his cor.ipenanti on in 

the trial or cases. For i nstance , i n di recting a raid against alleged 

disorderly houses , be would f i ne the defendant in a nomi nal amount and t hen 

charge each wi th all t he costs i nstead of .:2E,2_ ~ - 1'11s excess, t he l'ayor 

would retain for himself . As t he f i nes were small the defendants made no 

protest. 

In other i ns t ances, the docket • howed the defendant di s charged on t he 

payment ot costs , while the mayor pocketed the fines not disclosed by t he 

record. In sane instances, the fines were spli t between the city and mayor. 

After the pudi tor•s re1ort was tRken up for consi deration by the City 

Council , t he Pitt sbur gh Leader, 1n its news column, reported the situation as 

follows 
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Arter these disclosurea, I consulted with t he District Attorney of t he 

county who favored an il!medi ate presentment to the grand jury. Furthermore, 

I engaged one at the leadi ng criminal lawyers of t he l ocal bar to assist i n 

t he prosecuti on. '!be t etainer t hat I paid him was afterwards returned to me 

by the reform association. 

On the return of an i ndi ctment and the tria l ot t he case, great interest 

was mani fested throughout t he cOC1111uni ty, for it was t he firs t time t hat a 

mayor ot one or our larger cities had been charged with extortion and 

embtzzlement . 

At'ter a trial lasti ng nearly a week before .Tudge Kennedy, t he s i tting i n 

the r~e.rter s essions Court, the jury returned a verdict of guilty on all ooints. 

'!be Ccmnerci al Ce.zette , i .n an editorial , refers to t he ereat benefi t CO!'ling 

from t hi s successful prosecution , as follows: 

"Let it be underst ood tran thi s t ime on t hat every j ob and j obber wil l be 
shown up. ",lien men who ought t o be doi ng tir:le in t he nork- house or jail 
aspi re to f i ll important and honorable positions , let ther.i be t old i n plain 
English that t hey will not be permitted to take the oa t h of ot:ri ce, 
nen though they succeed i n having themselves chosen. ~!en who know t hey 
have been bl ackmailers, and who have condoned and t olerated crime for a 
consi deration, moy as well under stand f irst as last that they • 111 be 
brought up • 1 th a short t11rn in he courts it t hey persist i n forc i ng t hem-
selves into positi ons t hat they have nei ther t he ability nor t he honesty 
to fill. Once e stablish this precedent and 1 t will not be long untill good 
men wi ll COlll8 to the f J,i)Jlt and otter t hemselves tor t hese positi ons of 
trust. " 

A REVEALING IN'!'ERVI E'R 

During t he week foll owing the conclusion or the case, t he convi cted 

mayor remained a t l iberty by a renewal or his bond pending the motion for 

a new tri al. One morning the office boy tol d me, with an a i r or suppressed 

exci tement that t!ayor Wyman was i n the wai t ing room end would like to see me . 

A8 be crossed t he t hreshold I noticed his changed appearance. And as 

he sank down in a chair I moti oned him to take , i t was plain t hat he hnd 

co?Ue to ask for more~. Perhaps, I thought , he mi ght reveal t he r ecord or 
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or h is recen t treachery. In a husky voice and wi th t ears i n hi s eyes, he 

spoke ot his downfall and the s hame that had come to h i s wi fe and ch i l dren. 

ftAnd all thi s , " he said, "because fri ends t hat should have helped me have 

a pparently rejoi ced over my plight . " 'lbareupon I interrupted bu, by sayi ng, 

ft'l'he friends you refer to ware Co1181'9ssman Bayne and Col onel J tona, two ot 

your former pol1t1oal ell81111es. These two, haYiJ18 gotten out or you what 

they wanted, are doubl.7 pleas ed t hat you a re beaded tor prison. " 

At these r emakrs ot mine, t ho large and bulky f i gure cowered i n the 

chair. All he could say -s, " I want hel p t'1'om the one whom I hurt." 

This scene took ma back &01118 yasrs before when, near t he shores ot Lake 

Superior, I had trapped a huge timber wolf, the s l ayer i n its day or hundreds 

or deer. As I stood close by the trap, the sn1ma.l. with bloodshot eyes 

seemed to be appealing tor ma rch . 'lb.a mercy CS!!l9 i n the form ot a bullet 

t hrough its brain. In t r apping t he llayor I could not t hus sta11111BI'1ly d ispose 

ot him. Therefore , I f i gured on receiving i nfo:rnstion t hat could col!III 

only tr0111 b is lips . Before fixing upon tenns or s urrender, I a s ked him 

Just wha t be wanted me to do. To this, the !lfayor responded t hat he hoped 

I would see Judge Kennady, who presi ded at his tri al, a nd t hat I would suggest 

to the court which had already ihtimated a sentence to the peni tenti ary 

that Justice would be done it he were sent to the workhouse i nstead. Ot her-

w1 ee, the Cayor pleaded, he would l o se bi s r1gh t o f cit izenship, becor:dng 

a social and political outcast the rest or his lite. 

I then explained that t here were a number of t hi ngs which must be done 

before I could t hink of do1J18 what he wished. I asked him i t he would me.ke 

a clean breast ot his do1J188 in the two Congressional pr111Br1es and it, 

goill8 so, ha would resign from office lf ithout tslci ng an appeal to the hi gher 

courts. Be evidently realized t hat I could not be placated in any other • IIY• 

'lbereupon, he t old ma how he had rece ived ~ . 00 from a representative of 

Congree111X111.n Bayne on the cond.1 tion that he withdraw hi s support tram me. 
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And, he added triumphantly, he was not required to oppose Cl8 openly. Agai n 

I interrupted him by saying that what he told about the r irat campai gn did 

not apply to the !3econd one against Colonel Stone in which he had not on1y 

deserted me but actually supported my opponent in every possible way. ~What 

did you get for this?" I asked. Arter a ~Clll8nt's hesitation, he sud, "I got 

$15000.00 in cash for myself and '500().00 f ar certain police officials. In 

addition, I arranged fer the payment of a considerable sum of money to certain 

delegates of yours. " Minor details were t hen given which need not be mentioned 

here. 

When Judge Kennedy learned of the Mayor's confession to me and his 

a8'reement that he woulc! resign his office am stand for sentence without on 

appeal which mi ght mean a year's delay, the Judge sent hi m to t he v;orkbouse 

out of consideration f or what he had done and agreed to do. 

BRGINNillG OF A NEW REGIMK 

Wi th the Mayor duly incarcerated and hi s office noated, a special 

election was called for t he selection of a successor. , 1th the oppos ition 

badly demorali zed and the leaders fearing exposure a!¥i possi bl e prosecuti on, 

no oounter moV81!1ent was started against the election of my uncle and car.ipaign 

manager, William M. Jrennedy. Ria later induction into offi ce put an end to 

the old 'UylllaD l!ISChine. And all the time, Messrs. Bayne and Stone kept 

diecreetfy silent. 

It was thereupon conceded that at the next Congreasional campai gn I 

would have l i ttle 1f any diff iculty 1n d i sposing of Col onel Stone. But the 

question naturally arose as to why I should be such a candidate when I had 

or1g1Jlal.ly no desi re to go to Congress and had only been forced i nto the 

prBTi oua contest by a strange combin,~tion of ci rcunstancea. 

Most of m;y f riends and a good portion of the public took tbs vi ew t hat 

I should enter the contest once agai n as a matter of personal and noli t i cal 
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vi ndication. However, thi s question was sol ved by an unexpected event, 

to •1t, the nomination or my r nther as a Justice or the Uni ted States 

Supreme Court by President Harri son. This meant the breaki ng up of our law 

firm, with the head or it in ~eehington under a life appointment and myself 

headed toward the nati on' s capitol as a mEMber or Congress. To make a long 

story short, I wai ved aside any oos ei ble politi cal preferment and contentedly 

settled down to the practice of law. A1ld I determined , thereafter to sti ck 

to this resolve. 
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THE ATTEW'TED I:.il'i.ACHl.Ui!l~ OF J utOE WHITE 

mosi'.. int.erest .tng and exci ting ovent clu.riDG the writer ' s 

sernce aa a ae:11ber of the legisla ture was hi s e ffo1>t to ha.Ve J udge 

J • \1 • mu ta of the Co::ioon Plea a Court, No. 2 • r.or.:i.oved f'rora off!. ee 

bf impoadaoent, based upon the ch:u'Bea of maJ.feaaance in th& 

discharge o! h1s Jud1clal duties, dur.i.ll(5 the prev1.ous yec.r. 

I n 1887 t he legi s l a t ure pas sed the Brooks High Lioonse 

ui.w, wn1cl:l l.n addition t o requ1rl?ig the payment rumu.J.11.y o:f' 

$1,000. co also placed the grt'.nting or refusal of all license 

ap, l1co.t1.ona i n the hc'Ulds or th'3 judges. of' the Cocoon Pleas 

Court of each eounty • 

By the ti.t!l':l the legislature r.ad convened 1n 18d9 it was the 

generol opin.ion that t his new l .w.d been a c;reat success, not 

only 1.n the enrichment 01' the cow.~y treasury• but L1oro pa.1--t-

i cularly in the lal'!3e reductton o:f' the nunber of 1:lcensas 1113re tc-

f o t>e sran1:.et1 and in tho sclect.J.on of a bet tor claso of 11cer.ses. 

Heretofore nh.olcsale and re1.----.1_1 liquor licenses were g.!';;\."lted 

pract1calJ.y to all apvlica.~ts and on the :p,:.\yCJ.ent of a s::J.:>.ll fee 

'll'lth the result t.hat 1n Al l 65hen9 County and i n other counties 

having a largo pcpul.!!.-tlon t houaav.da of llcennss 110.re gror.tc<l , 

c.any of t.ter.i in realdentUl d1atr1cto, a..'1!1 others cro.1ded into 

the business and 1nduotrial sections. Such coopet1t1on brousht 

~bou t the v1dat l on of ~!';3.Ctlc~l ly every law regulat i.r.c the ealc 

cf intoxioanta. Under t he nefl .i.aw it Vl.:l.o necessary ror eac..1 

ap!'lic:mt to show that hla license was nece ~eary for the conven .. 

i ence or those living i n the ~i~ini t y, and under thi s p.rcvia1on 

the Judges usually refused a l i cense 1n purely residential 

di stricts 'besides g1Vl!'J8 preference to hotelB and l'eGt :i.ui•ants 

bear1Lg a good reput s.tion, or t o thosw dealero whose roput<J.t1on and 

location Justi f ied their selection. I r. Allegheny County the 
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licen.eco wer o :reduced about two-thirds over the pre'l/ioua years 

and l'lllile t h i e l'..at-uro. l y c:i.used auch resentment amoIJB the 

r e Je ctea. a.p_,l1c...'\llts e.nd Whil e there wez,e others lfb.o contended i t 

waa not a judlci e.l f unction of t he cour•t'l the t5rea.t a..es oi' the 

people was entlroly 1n accord '71th tho operati on of the 1a·;;, 

and i t ciay be note<". here that t he law renai ned on the sta t .... t e 

books with no '"1at e r:!.a1 che,nges until the enactoent oi' t.he Eight eenth 

Amendment t o the Federal Coneti t ut!on proh.1..b1t1:r,~ the ua.nu-

f act ure, :nl c transportation o! int oxica.nts. 

]2i ,!~~t1:,!1~ !iW..!0.£8 _ a!_-e _ li_!a£0-

tb.e annual eeeoi on of the License Oourt of 1889 in 

Allegheny Sowlty was p_"'Ssided over by J • -«• F . \'lhite, one 

of the ol d.eat a.nd oost e~perienoed OOl'lbera of the local Judic-

iary. Whi le at tho pt..bllc heariI)3s at t his session of t he cotU~t 

it was surmised r roi:i the acti ons of J udge Wh1te t."lat t he number 

of 11cer.ses to 'be £,I'a.ntod ~ould be me.t er1ally 1~educed over tha t 

of the previous year. Th.Ls proved t o be the case f or only about 

1 CO licenses Yrere ~ anted, but ur...a.t c3.u:::ed t he greatest sur-

prise was t he r efuia.1 of licenses to well- oana,sed hot els and 

restaurants or other suitable applicant s and t r-e giving cf l i c-

enses t o ner, appli cant s 01• to t hose leo.st worthy; sone of' ther:1 

being in reaident1a l sections. Except i n the case of extrell11sts 

the prose and the public 1in1t edly condenned J udge White ' s 

actions. I t was seen a t a gle.nce ~ t grea t f ortunes vrould be 

rolled up by t he few possessing a l icenoe and tha t the matt~r 

of publi c aocommodat1on 11'?.d been l argely i gnored. As the J.av:, 

gav e each licensed J\.ldge the a rbitrary r ight t o grant or r efuse 

a l icense there was no remedy avai l.able 1n meet.ll-1g this i.mexpected 

situation. After the License Co..irt ll.ad adjourned, it was di cclosec. 
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by t-he rooo:-6.s that neerly one- h.~lf the suocessfuJ. applicants 

'ha.ti. bee."l represented ,.n c ourt by a nophew of Judge White, and 

oail.Y were the auroiaes as to the l argo slze of thu t eoa nollected 

by this lawyer. U.?:tll thic disclosure the dai ly press had treated 

Judge White leniently, several giving eXpreaaion to t he belief 

that this Jud.;e who liad horotofor.e occupied an or..alted po~ion 

on tho boncll had boen unduly srraye,1 by his abhorrance of the 

liquor tro.fi'ic, and t hat he hA:1 taken e.dv.:'.nt·~c;e of an op_ or .. 

tun1ty to 51'7e o.xpraasicn to this belle! b) gront ing only n 

t en liconco~ and those mio orit ized h1r.l thoUGllt it ~ould be 

muoh better 11' ho h.'\d ..:;:-.:-.ntod no l1con&e3 o.nd thus st ood u:,:,on the 

i nterprat~.tion of tho l :>.w that he posssased the po'.Te .r t o Cl'..ke the 

count y ary. Mtel' it •.r.i.s fovJ1d tt>.at tl:le court had 1rn:l.ulzod 

1n rank dloorii:11r~t ion in the ~"'8.uti!l{; of licensee to thonc 

represented by e. relative of th6. Jucl{so cr1t1o1aa oott:. public and 

private bec.1ue 1• .opant , but .::.o no deo .nd '7.lo in.ado f or 1mpo,i.chmont 

pr oceed.1.nGs it lookocl as th.,ush the 1;1tua.-~1on wouJ.d gr ed.u<'-11.y 

qulet do;m . 

Ono 8.lturda.y 1n !hrch Tu>.011 I no.a s pondin..; tho dcy in ay lc.w 

office a.tter leAving IL,rr1oburg the ni.;;ht b Jfore I roe vic1tod 

of tho law f irm of Wilich the senior meobor wa s 

the attorney pro~iouely oontioned. Ho t old Je that d.1.ooonsions 

had :1r1oe:1 1r.. the nr::i ovo'i' t,b.o dlviaion of tho f oe.J 1n L1oenao 

Court natters. Ro &l le5ed that G n ote tor $5, 0CO•OO payable by 

Judge fihlte to his nephcff h.ed r-..sen c:-.ncelledj and the.t t his 

a.mount hall been do<luct o<!. !'rom the license t'ooc before e.p.,c,rti oned 

t.he f1m, and turther, t.hD,.t lA:t'GO sics oi' ciono~~~~ ot:1.er 

ouoceesful applicants t o the senior 11eaber of t he fir~ w:iore :..0 

had not appeared en the court reoord P.S counsel, but repr esent ed 
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them sscretlyi so far as the publ1c vias concerned his connection 

·• 1th these case s waa k!ioll?l by the court. 

Arter t hese dlRcl osures \'1'"3N caref'ul.ly considered I thought 

it my nuty t o prepa .-c a resolution of i.mpeachoent t o be presented 

1n the louex- House, imr:iodiately upon my retu:.'n to Harrisburg. 

As i n other states t ho sole power of 1mpeachment uas poasessen by 

th~ Howe of Rep1'8sent1ti'Teo, act ing in the capacity of a srand 

jury in deter.il!1ning Whether an accused public of'f'1.cial \'! .n appar-

ently g uil ty of t he charges presented and i f so satisf'ied the 

proce$clln3s ;wre t hen tranof erred to the Sene.te to be tried by 

tho.t body1 e • • ccnv1ction !'equir~ tho concurrence of t wo- thirds 

of the ..w.::oors pr eser.t • Smee the Leg i slat ure ,ms expected to 

adjour n .Ji th1r.. two weeks llttJ.e time 1w.s lef't for t he preparation 

of the a rtlclos of lmpe:-.ciw.ent, and their preaent &.tion nnd passage 

by the House . Should the lower bod:, a ct in the aft'iz,mctive the 

Senate, being a continuing bcdy could sit L~ extra sessi on t o 

pass upon the ch.azues preferred in the 1.:1:,eachment. I considered 

it a wise poli cy n ot t o give the pr ose or the public a..qy notice 

of my intenti on, for t ho chcmes were bound t o ca.use grea t excit e-

mo:!lt 1n the co;.u:iuni ty c.nd I shold be i ,portuned on all s i des 

by those op.,os.u-.s, er suppo:rtiz'.c the 9I"Oceed1Il,3s, end to no g ood 

purpose . To t he prepar.:.tion of the i lll!)eachmont -,apere I 5e.ve 

as cax>eful consider ation as uae possible unu~~ the clrcwnste.nces. 

On Wednesday aft ernooI\ lJay 1st. I l eft for Harr1srurg «ith a view 

of 9resent1ng the rcsolutlon 5.n the House the follov1ln6 ocrnini; and. 

believed s, that up to that tloe no person 1n pubJ.ic o:t• pi•tva t e 

life had ru1 ln.kling ot 'ilslAt I :i.ntendeb doi~• In thj_s v.i.ew I i7as 

some?t.llat m staken for a.t t,10 o' clock ,.n t-lle r.1orning, Hay 2nd I was 

r oused by a rapping on my bedroom dc;o~, and rising, I was confrontd.d 
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by Robert Si.upson, the Oa.pltol correspondent of' tho Pittsburgh 

Dispatch, He t hen oald he had just rcca1 voe. o. toloc ran fz•o,'l 

his paper stat.ins t hat at the uorn.ing s0ac1on of t he House 1t 

va.a my i n tenti on to l ntroc.uce e ver-J 1:.ipo.:-tant resolution, but 

t~ •• a t the publishers did not know the che.raot er of 1 t , end for h1J'l 

to f L'ld out c.t cnco , if ii:, i'rere possible, Simr:son and I ha.cl 

been friendn for oe.ny yea r s and I had im~l icit confidence in 

his 1nteGri t y , thus fe t:)11118 tllnt a..riy i nf ormation I gave hio would 

be ke pt 1n str1ctes·e, cor.1'1dance , I then explained t o h1a my 

intent.ions, e.nd t hat I believed he he.d earned the r ight f or a 
11 scoo!Jt II so J.ea.r to newspa.per!:!en, It wa s arranged tha t his ne\'ISpaper 

could i s sue a special edition on or after nine o : ciock th:?.t 

morniri.g, vm.en the House woul d be 1n seeeion and ·.,hen I e.;.pected. 

to i ntroduce t.hc l'eaol1.1.tlon on lts convan.tng. I n the concluding 

t~o we3ks of t he sessi on the Lc~i slature ~et o.n ~our e ~rli er. 

After the &pe:>.k<1r had taken his seat about f1vo r!l..1 i1utss el ,peed 

bef ore tht1 Houce was called to order. At Tihich time I rose and 

gave not i ce I had a. resoluti on t,o offer , A3 tho 1•ssolutior. was 

* being taken by a page to the Speeker in orde r t hat ho hight 

pr esent the ca.se t o the Ho1rne I ms hurriedly appr oe.ched by m•.jor i t y 

Leader And..--e,;1s , who a.eked -1e \7.1:l.at was the natUX"O of t he resol1..r.tion, 

as he hO.d just boe."1 ini'o!'l.1ed by ,11re tha t the Pit t sburgh Dispatch 

had posted t>. bul l e tin giving notice of 0.n extra ocllt 1on cont a ining 

" l'l account of the proposed 1r1psn.ch.'!lent 0£ Ju~e m11 te • Sine.a 

nothing could t hen be G~ined by concealnent I did :~ot contredict 

h~.3 informa tion. ·rh~ Speal::er a f t er personal:!..y e:WJ:lin~ t he 

resolution prepared t o 1:1ea6 ;,.:ie same , wherev.von Andrews en t ered 

an objection and asked that it b~ pa~~ed over under the rules. 
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This m s done, for t he cons1der~t 1on of every roaolution 

required. une.nioous consent excep ii on tho Llonday night calendar , 

t1hen re solutions could bo paaned or Nject l:3c'. only 01. a ..!r>,J -

ori t y vote . '..'he spe kor added tlwt the resolv.tion n i sht bo 

presented ace.in a t ".:.he 1:fonda.y evsn1n{; ee3s1on when resoluti ons 

• ere in o.rdfl!'• This development was not unex::ect ecl, al tho 1'8!l 
1 thoH_r_:;ht ouch of t..l-to b~ -s could be placeo on my shoulder" 

fo r not haViTIG t he a.nnounce1:1ent of the resoluti on unt1.1. I 

had sufficient ttme to r;et it bei'orc the Hou:se. I vrio not 

d1sco~ed, howevex•, f or I f elt t..lta.t i n t he f our days i ntcx-

ver>ins before the resol.ution cou,\d be consi dered t h.at I vrould 

b.3.ve t.he nseQed t im.o t o t ake a t est of tlentioent of t he aenb~r s 

and t o arrsnge f or t~-ie pr oper presentat i on of the subjoct. Wi th 

m.y O) naont the r esolution wa s g iven t o the on the floor, 

a> that they Clight become a cqu::\i nt ed with it-a object. I n t he 

middl e of the af.terncon c l~r0c nunbc~ of t he oAt~a edi t i on 

of the Di ep.1 tc.h. rc-ic.11.od Hc,rr1 sbur.3 so tho.t bofo::-e over..1:1,3 every 

ona i ntorc st eo. in the p1•opoaed im;,oaC:.L:e1.t prcc.:i .. ><ll . .;s :ud full 

1nf oroat1on on tho subje ct . 

A reduced re.csl:'lile of t he papor' s a.'l.'lOunce-'lcnt of th,-, 

proposed Llpe ach!:lent -f.cl lows: 
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Prepara tions for the Consideration of the Resolution. 

It seemed the part of wiadom t o recain continuously at the 

capital d ring the few days before it could be of fered again unde r 

the rules of the House. I consulted freely wi th o os t of the f.'lembers 

and f e lt sati!fied that t he resolution would pass if voted upon by 

two thi ds of the iouse . 'lhe l emocr n tic mu1bers lined up sol idl y 

behind c e , due portly for polit ical advantage . 11'he country mecbors 

who believed thoroughly in a new license laws, instead of being antago-

nistic took the position that Judge h1te 1s arbi trar. conduct had 

refl ected upon the wisdon of this legislation, whil e the city cembers 

from Pittsburgh and Philadelphia so subject t o control b y the political 

l eaders sh owed signs of breaking away from this domination regarding 

the actions of the court a s that of a fanatic . Doubtless this situat ion 

was s on d i scovered by the floor leade rs and chose represei ting the s tate 

organization. I'hey argued with :,e that it was bod politics to t y 

a prominent republican judge on the eve of the gubernatori al election 

wl?1. ::h ~,.r various other reasons was i nvol ved in ::iueh doubt . r.aking 

no hoad•"oy i n these overtures they devoted the intervening t i.:- to s oce 

plans for circl.llllventing it. On the second afternoon word co.me to r.io 

t hat udge h ite arrived at the Pennsylvania station and was i n 

consultation r:ith hi :,, c lo. e f'riend Jmes L. Orahat1 , then r<..presenting 

an adjoining dis t rict 1.n the City of llegheny. hen this vi s it became 

known majority leade r Andrews sent ffOrd t o GrNh~~ tha ~ the acr used 

Judge mu- t lenve town at once or he would defeat -che efforts of any of 

hi s friends to tRke Ct>re of h is intePests . 
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When i!onday, .I.lay 6 , came a.round I was sure t hat I had enough 

aupport lined up to carry oy :rooolution. At the a r ternoon 

ses s i on, ho:.-ever, lir• G?'S.h.::u:J. rose in his :-,lnco aboat 5.3r P• m. 

and moved that the House should take a -ecess until (. 3c , . 0 • 

The c c tion wae; seconci. ..'he object 1rn.s evidonrJ.y f or t he p.i.rpoee 

of de1oat11,u the reGular ovenin.3 seaa:lon by continuing t he ~fternoon 

calend.as•, t hc!'ObS preventi113 tho consideration of w.y or c.ll 

original r eaoluticne 1n order under the r ule of t he ilcusc :it 

each .ilo1.clay c vc:.i:n.:; rosu.1.cr soas1on. At ey . r equost uy fr1e.nd 

and colleai;ue, lion. Che.:!'loo ...,. Rohil".aor. hastened to his oea.t 

and de:u:mded a roll call on SD.id oot1on, t he sane beillG duly 

seconc.ed by et lee.st flve other ce;;ibere; but the decw.r..d l'f~S 

i 5Jlor ed by tho nreslding 01"1 icor , t.he Hon. Jlen~y Hall, and on t.b.e 

v1VA voce vote Jlr• Robi nson dor.iandod a dlvlai on t o detor.:lli.ne 

t lw sont,l...1ent. 01' t.ho Houoe . The request was also i -91or ed , and 

the House wa _ decl~r ed to have taken a. receoa , ,1ithcut e ither 

division or roll cal! , a."ld 1n the face of a detemir.e~ e.nd very 

ap:i,.arent request on t he re.rt of =:J2.nY r::ie.:ibers of t he House. 

By taki ng the said receos t lle conslaeration cf origi nal 

r eaolut1on1:1 vrae not i n ordc>:> a t. any t1De before the :1'1 .al 

adjoumment of t r.o l.eG1ele.turo, on Uay 9th, ~ 1a tiei;oton bcins 

the l ast ono, un~er t he rules of the llouoe for the!.:::' consider -

a ticn • 
....r. Robinson later told ae that. 1n a. co::verr.n.t1on r1itll ar. 

t • · M•o c1-:-.y o" ... Pittsbur-;h , the la.tter in• 
"al l a month la o.:::-, ..ul .... • .,.. 

f oroed him that 1 t had xen arranged t hnt J4r• Hall shoulcl t.e.ko 

the chair t.ba t a fte rnoon a.'1.d the,t a t 10 1!1.\.nutes to s ix l:tr• 

Graham nould !'.lake t ho ri:ot1on "OOVC refe rretl to, and the ~e 

was t o b:l put i .Cl:lled1a tely and decl.cu~c cc.rri ed on a viva voco 
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vote; tha t thi s program was adhe red to by hio in i ~oranco of 

~a pro:t,,er ur.dorstand1r'b of the oo.tter, an<l t bat he was sorry to 

have been ~ty t o procedure t h...t proventea hls fri end, Ur. 

Sh1ra s , f rco st eti~,· hir. ~0~1t10~. rt, • , , """' - ,,, ... .. o?' asco a .1.n...;,c; t he sentiment 

of the Houoe en the reeolutlor. . 

Sor:ie tubss uen t Di ocove r i e s 

Yiher, t..11e ofrort hac. failed to h,:we Judge '.rnlte lnvoctlgs.t,ed 

bf tho le&1, clo.ture , I \1011 t to w.y cu.::i..,or hcoe c.i I..:\ko !:>upcri or 

f or a few .:e ~~s , Glad. of t he opi.,:ortunity to f'l•cc. -.:iy ..1i nc. 1'1'04 the 

10 rry of the p=-ecoai1'b wcaks. 

On rv return I r concluC:ecl. t ha.,:, I sl..ould t clto sooe f urther 

steps i n the vind1-::a t 1on of my cov.r~c, even t.hour;...ri. I h..2c1 no 

ill1111tk iia te i ntention 01' rene;·ti ng cy c.t te.ck . 

Alt hough I ilaa &!.tisfied t hat t ho ue .. mc te.kcn by t..'1.c 

Republ i can leaders t o prevent an 1nve ati0o.ti on as a wise pol-

itical move in vleu of the apvroaohlr.i; zubcrnator1a~ electlcn, 

I felt neL•taln t h.! t t..'10 .:ie .. ns tal:on t o cover u~ tr.l s scanccJ .. 

had been cU:reotly 1,. stl.;:;a.t.ed b)l Juacc 'I/hi te ' e ,eri:onal f ~~nc:s, 

and that he iw.C:. been a 1,arty i n t he e:ir.ccutlon of the cchc:ne . 

Recalli ng that J udge ·,'!hl te ha.c. vii:1 ~d Iiarri sbur..-; t ile de.y 

followL~ t he i ~t roduc~1on of t .e 1 .peacbo\nt resolution and 

tha t he had. been l n consu:-:.a!.t 1on with ropro:•enta.t,lve Jaces 

L Graham, J. _r-e:r-sonal :frlenci., l l vill{, 11. dlct1•i ct e.dJ o!.nlng 

mine, I f elt certain that 1ncrio l na.t1~-6 corres pondence ~ad 

passed between t he t v10 . 

I cal ,_ed at ""e G:•~ao hoi.le one r0.-3P,t-Under this belt ef vu -

1 Conve ". sat i.on I sa.i 1. t o h J.r: 
and after 'l fe\'I mi nutes gener a . 

l t "You rece ived e couple 
w::..th more as ~urmice t aan I really fa : • 

"', .,,.., .. ,. ,. ,.v.•1".-~ t he TI8t)k I t,ried t o ha.VO hii:l 
of letters froo Ju.._;e .uu."" -

1nvestit:Satod• 
I would like to sc... t;;.,e;n. '' Apparently sts.rtled 
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by this requ~st he nade no deni al, saying t he letters co~ld not 

be shown t o !:le as t hey were conf1dent 1a.l. I agreed ,vl t.t"l. hio 

t ha.t 1.U1der ord.L.nr-J clrcu::istances t.1:le t he vre.s r ight , but t .1a t 

i n view of W.r.l!t had hap ened a t HElbr1sburg this correepono.ence 

waa mat erie.l 1r.. provinG a conspir acy between hL1self a s e. ..ieober 

of the 1upee.ch1ng body and the a ccused. U!lich being the case 

I ha.cl the r i cnt t o have .:i.:.~ of t hem indicted for such an oi'ienee. 

If the letters were ~nde mtt,o me, I assured him, t.hoy wouJ.d bo 

r eturned With a. pr omi se on my part t hat thi e co1·respondl:luce 

would not be publ1&...ecl untll after the Ju~e I a <iee\t.h, i l' a t all., 

for :-:iy sc,le pJr p•JSO \7as to be j n posaea ... i on o:r reco:i:•ds justifying 

my course i n t he h(>c;1sla'Lure . Thia th~at hacl an i mned.l.atod 

ef. ect and I was g lven t wo letters t!iat bore out uy su3:1lcions . 

In the f1r•at letter JudGe. White th.:lr..Ked Hepr-esent at1vc Gr<?.ham 

for t he pl an he ha d in mind of de f ee.tL1,3 t r-e 1nvcstig,~ti on, and 

he cont inued ·.:J:w.t he hopcu it would aL:cc..:oe;.. I u t !"!c 8(:)cl:ond 

corll!IUllicat!.on :rol lowlr.;; the parl1a.:ie,.tary t rick, prc-,ant.in,,; t he 

consl dera t lon of ~~'le 1opeaoh.:Jent re soluti on, t::.c ;;,.c,JUSad J uc,_;e 

e xp.re ased h1s hoartfel t t hanh& fo.r:• the aucc;, zi;fu ... w::u.ncr ln 11h1ch 
the p 
plan had been carried i nto effact. Photo.7a phlc co 1 .J G wore 

made of these letters and are 2 0,1 .l.n :,ossezai on. i'fhc:r. l Ater 

on J ud(;e \'l'ni te learne;d v,'hat I ho.d done he m.·ote ce e.t ler.;,3th 

saylnt; he hope"' t hat I would not stir the l!l-. i;ter up e.f;1...!.h and 

closed with t he assurance that he llatl never doubted OJ hcnaot y 

of purpose and t hat he desi red t o be a friend of cine ileroa.f t (.:)r• 

·l'hi s was such a c Ol!lplete Eurrent1or and 3uch 3, c lc~r .<ln1o;:1cn t'hs.t 

d t t h" t 1t softened ~-., hc:..rt ..:io far I had been j usti f ied i n oy con uc •• 

as t he f utuM was concerned. Thi s let ter i s also l n .:.Y po~so s~i on. 
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FRIEUDSHI PS OF' n!E ROUND TABLE 

I n those l .rgor cities 1n 'l'lhich the county oourt h ouse 

hap··ens t o be l oc.at ed, it is custocary f or a eobers of tho b!l.r 

t o have their offices 1n tho 1.c:iedlate vicinity of the courts. 

As a resul t of this l ittle groups take their lunc.1 in a. 

conveniently located club, hotel or restaurant , such association 

of ten cont lnuillG f or :ArJ3 yea r s . The litt le set of' wh lch I was 

one orig inally consisted of only five or six, r angi fl8 between 

t wenty- ti ve or tb.J.rty years of age . GradUAlly the aeabers 

i ncreased t o oore than a do ... en . The f irst t ow yea r s we had 

agganged for us a r oW1d table so suitable for va rying nw:ibers 

aiad 1n the do :mstairs d1nlrlG rooo of a new hotel, and here 

between twel ve and two o ' clo ck, the oaJor 1t y of the J ea bers 

caoe rei:sularly . L'.l.ter we all bec:.i.ce ueubera of a new club 

where the dining room. • .s on the uppor floor , and whero ue 

contlnuod t o gathor for core t han t wenty yea.rs , dea th 

occassi onal ly reoovina one .nd another taki nu his place. 

mi1ie 1n no sense a. sel e cted group it was nntural that it 

should be com. •. os¥d of those iaore or loss a.scociated in t he 

pra ctice of the lAw, or by reason of cor.gen1allty. 

As mi ght be expected oany of us possessed i ndividual 

ch.ar..t.cteris tics which eight or o.1.ght not be agreeable t o the 

group '\8 a Whole • Selfishnes s , e5otiso, undue prejudi ces and 

eccentricities 1n r.ianner or ape - ch was not unknown, but with the 

result of constant associ a tion our dispositions becaa o a oldcd 

ln better :.i.ccord, for no individual tra.s long per .:iitted to 

evidonoe , a.ey foible , oanneriao or othe r pecul i arity una cce pt-

able t o the rest. Even 11:hen sooe of the .:ieo~ rs were eleva t ed 
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t o tho local bench freedoo of expre ss1 n conU nued to the 

ver, decided advantase to the Jurist s , who so often prove 

to becooe brusque or dictatorial whon separated froo close 

contact nth oeobers of t.he bar• This rubbinn dotm process 

• 

soon resulted in ea.ch of us g1v.1.ng up peculiarities Wlfavor-

able t o the hamon,y or disposition of the group, and has, I 

t.hl nk, had ouch to do 111 th the sucoe as of can,y of t.heia 1n 

l.ater years. A slance a t t.ho careers of the various ae.:ibers 

after t wenty- rive 1oars of 1nticate contact therefore aD.Y beco..:io 

interestin:3. Of the fourteen that daily gat hered about the Round 

Table except When protes~1onal duties prevented, the fol .Lold. ng 

1 & t.'1.e rocord: 

Two Who had been yoUll8er associates 1_n t.he distlngw.shed 

law flr.::1 of Knox anc1 Reed had becooe aenior cumbers ; another 

becaoe gonerol councel for the Pennsylvania R:lilroad, trhl l e 

anot.hor accepted the position of proteoeor of law i n the Universit y 

of Pittsburgh, several of t.heo declining elevation t o t.ho bench. 

The reoa1n1ns nlne , all of Whom entered public lite a.re desig-

nated by nuaerals and not by n.aoes . 

1. United States Di strict Attorney , Judge of t he court of Co::ll:lon 

Plea s and later a oeober of the Federal l51atrict Court; 
:, 

2 . Tblrty years a o::iber of one of the Courts of Cocoon Pleas; 

3• Legislator and ooaber of Congress; 

4 . T-;renty- five years a Judge oft.he Orphan.8 ' Court; 

5. At.t.orney General of the United States, 1n t.he cabinets of 

McKinley and Roooovelt, United Stateo Sano.tor a.nd lat or Secrebry 

of t.he State. 

6• Judge of the Court of Comoon Pleaa o.nd lAter presiding Judge 



Memoirs_Box1_Folder12_199.tif

of t he State Superior Court; 

7• J l.ld8e of the United St .te a Dis t rict Court ; ,. 

• ' . 
, 

8° Legal expert and chai.roan of the Board of CoW1ty Appro1sers, c.nd 

9• A ce=iber of tho le~islature, Judge ot the Court. of Co!!l:lon Ple.:i.s 

and Chief J ust i ce of the State Suproce Court . 

T!us brief' su.::i::iary would seeo t.o lnd1cato that t lle 1.ni'luence 

of the rlound Tabl e had helped play ito part in prepar1ng the 

cecbers f or a useful and d1vers1f'1ed public service. 

However, the 1n1'luence of the Round Table i n keopi ng alive 

the o.eoorio s of the past , and in t he weld1116 of l ifelol'l6 

friendships bas bsen oora e ::itee:ied by cost of us than public 

honor, so tle.Jt in.J i n co~pa.rison t o enduri ng ties betneon one ' s 

fel l ow !Jen. 
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j ,a;;;:;....;C:;.;O;.:.NT;.;;.::;.E;;;.ST::.:E:.:D;...;::E:I,E=-C::.:T:.:I:::O:::U__.::::CAS= E:.....:::O:..F..,;C~O~n~JJi.::::•:::I~~v~s~.--.!!li~Om::,:~-:I~.T::.... -=n~r..,;\1H:!!!.,!I~C:!:!Hc...T~HE~ 

AUTHOR PARTICI PATED 

I!!vents lead.1.rys up to the CAse 

Followl.lJo tho no::J.11uit.1on of cruid1dates by the Ci tizens' 

party, and the o . .doraeoont of the sn.::ie by the De::iocratlc organ.. 

lzat.1.on of Al.legheny county, objections were f l led to this 

endorse:ient by a Decocrat holdi~ office under the Republican post -

master of Allegheny city , and a. hearing on this i s uue ms fL;cd 

a t Hru"Tisbl.lI'G, where such m t ters wore deci dod by the Dauphin 

county court. 

I was requested to take charge of t his oatter, and vrent t o 

Harri sbwu, where I e~~od t'lell .known legal counsel to appear 

1n our behaJ.f. 11h1le i n tho court rooo, awaitin.; tho call of 

the caoe , I '\YaS much interested 1n a sil!lilar i s sue then being 

consldored by t :ie Jud8es. At a Deoocrotic Congressional 

conventi on i n the 10th dlotrlct , Wi llian Connell, a Ropublic::m, 

was endorsed over George Howel l , tho Deo~~r .. tlc aspirant . Tho 

evidence showed plalnly thAt Conn.ell had deb..uched this conventi on 

by a laviah use of coney and by va rious coercive methods. So 

evident was this that the court ru.nounced before adjouri.nent 

that tho Deoocrotic no::2iniatlon received by Connell was fraudulent . 

the court f a iled, however, to give the nomino.tion to Howell, so 

that ho was forced to run on an i ndependent Do..1ocrat1c ticket. 

When the Citizens' party case tr.lo called, tho court with 

equal prooptneoa held that the Deoocr~ti c ondorseoent wao legal, 

and di s.::ii ored the proceedl.ngO• 

.lftor the congresci onal elections I found that Hovroll, the 

independent Deoocr"t1c c.ndldate, had been returned olected by 

a oojority of c oro t!:.an 500 votes ovor Connell, and bad been 

duly sea. tod. ThoI'O,l:pon Connell be1:,an a contc at a__;aillst his 
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successf'ul r i va l on the ground of 1'ra ud or other irregularities. 

1'his contest was designedl.y referred to the Conmi.ttee on ~lections 

No. 3, coa pQsed of six Republican meobers friendly to the contestant 

who had served in two i.,rev1ous teros , .mil e the o inority was 

aade up of three sout hern Deoocrat s froo South Carolina, ll1:,s1ssi-

ppi, and Texas, whose appeals for honest elections wez,e sure t,1 

be ree;arded as a Joke by the Republicans of the House . 

Active on this coo.mittee was a Pennsylvania H• 

Burd Cassel, and a close personal friend of the contestant. This 

camber, wll~~ I knew very well, began solici ting votes a.oong the 

Republican me:.:1bers before the case had been decided by the col.!l.-

mittee . In speaking about the oatt er to me, he said, it would be 

a nice t hing t o g ive the "old can" h is seat for a Christ.Das 

gi ft , and that he was going to see "Uncle Joe" about hastening 

a f avorable report from t he comi.ttee . I t old ny s olicitor that 

I could not promise t o vote for the aeati?lG of Connell, a s his 

De!!locra t i c opponent had been f a irly elected and would probably 

have received a majority of 5 1 000 votes 1f he had not been deprived 

of the regular party nomination by the unfa ir aeans used by 'the 

Republican candidate , since the Democratic candi da te for g overnor 

had carried this Congres:..i onal district by a majority of a bout. 

6 , 000• In concluding this interview, I said that I did not 

e xpect to take the floor when the contest cal:le before the House , 

for my motive o igb.t be 1!llsrepreaented owln5 to Denocra.tic sup. ort 

I had received in ey own case. 
I n the course of a few weeks the election comml.ttee, by 

stric'ly part y vote , awarded the sea t to t he contestant; and 

bei nc a privilege issue, it was put on the ~lendar for i mwedi ate 

consideration. By this time it had become known 5enerally that 
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Mr• Connell, the mlllonal.re coal baron, had spent over 

$ 100, 000 i n present1ng his ev idence before the co.c:w.1ttee, 

callin some 6,000 witnesses wi th a viel7 to muddling up tho 

contest; while his op .. ,onent, a country school.ce.ster, ua.s unable 

to SU!IIJ:lon wholesale evidence of this k ind on a ccount of the !)l'O• 

hibitive expense. The co . .ll'.littoe , on finding that a nuobor of 

fraudulent or otherNise illegal votes had been casi , did not 

attempt to deter.::ilne for whom such ballots were roat , but 

merely essuoed t hat Ho17el l had been the sole beneficiary of t hese 

illo._;:il b:\llota, and in t iii s way the majority of' the oom ittee 

found tha.t Connell had been electe d by a little over 200 votes. 

Such a oethod of' procedure .,as of course preposterous. 

~he delnte on t..~is contest lasted several days, the speakers 

beinc divided on party lines, and it was ev i dent that the cese 

would be decidod i n the sar:ie partisan Tiay unless so::iethin,:; could 

be C:ono to thwart this wrons• ,1,·1nally I asked John Dalzell and 

several othe r party leaders to prevent the unaeatins of the duly 

e lected Veoocratic candidate , sayir,5 that it was a fa rce f or us 

t o protest against the unfa ir methods in the Sout h, and at t he 

SD.l:le t ime try t o convince the publi c t hat a millionaire candi -

date had been defrauded of his seat by a country schoo!E'.aster 

in our own state. Ea.ch of t hose replied thet the com .ittee 

had heard all the e vidence and it rras therefore a s.2fe rule 

to abi de by their f inc.lngo, and that, as a ne11 me:iber , I should 

not run counter t o this custon. 

,1hen one hour remained baf ore the t aking of tha vote, I 

could stand it no lo?16er, and under the tioe lL,itation rule 

covering the concluding nrguoenta, I took tt.e floor• Up to 

this ti.::ie little general 1.J,tereat v,aa bein(:s taken 1n the argu-
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oents, tor with the large Republican naJority, and no a w arent 

split in the part y lines, the result seemed certa in• On 1t 

becoolng mnifest that I was speaking in op1.osi tion to t ho 

comoittee ' s report, I was asked to occupy the o i ddle aisle, 

r.hile the leading partisans on either side grouped themselves 

about .-:w. As a result of thi s exci tement I felt s ooe concern, 

but under the tioe allowance hoped t o be able t o e~la.ln why I 

i ntended to cast my vote f or t he sittin5 oember. l'lhen oy 

tine expired it wa s renewed repea tedly • . Thus I as a ble , under 

many interruptions, to present my views, and to take good 

naturedly personalities, altho\.18h, of course , I was far from 

satisfied with t he oannor 1n which I was able to oeet and 

parry the queri es designed to eobarre.s s oe i n every poss ible 

way. 

Ten o inutes before the vote was 1;aken, and just after I 

concl uded speaking, . ayna Parker, a meaber fro~ New Jersey, 

c;ioe to my desk ~J.yi!,5 t.hd.t t i>...e New Jers e:,· dele3,-j.t i on was going 

t o vo te solidly for Ho11ell• I t.lier eupon beg_;ed Parker to t ake 

a few of t he remaining n lnutes i n behalf of the sitting member , 

and 1'1hlle he hesitat ed, Wm. M• Lanning of New Jersey said he would 

speak, and d i d so effe ct i vely, for his regular i t y could r..ot be 

questi oned• It nay be stated that the epeaker's pr obity and 

judicial faimea a was evidenced a few years lat er men President 

Rooseve l t ap:,o1n ted h1.:i a Federal Judge. 

I now quote from the Congressiona l Record a porti on of .. 
t he de b:lte 1n the contested election ca se, under date of February 

9th and 10th, 19041 
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CONTESTED-EIECTION CASE-COllNEU.. VS. HOWELL 

J4r • .muscou... l4r• Speaker, by direction of the cocru.tt.ee 
on E1ectiona No. 3, and i n pursuance of a notice given last 
week, I now call up for present considera tion the contested-
election case of Williao Connell V• Geor5e Howell , from the 
Tenth Congressi onal district of Pennsylvania. 

The SP"'dAKER• The Cl er k will report the resolutions . 

The clerk r1;,ad as follows: 

House resolution No 195. 

!!el!o1.v~d, That Hon. George Howell uas not elected 
a Representative i n the ~ifty- e18hth Congress 
from the Tenth District of the State of Penn-
sylvani a , and is entitled to a seat therein• 
Se_!o_!v~d, That Hon. William conru;ll wa.s duly 
elected a Representative in the liifty- ei6hth 
Congress from the Tenth District of t he State 
of PennsJ lvan1a, and is entitled t o a sea t 
therein. 

l!r• DRISCOU..• The time to be equally divided and to be contr oll ed 
by the gent le::ian from llisvissippi on his side and by oyself on 
this side . 

(The two days debate on this subject is oo1tted 
except a.a it rela tes t o the author 's participation 
therein, whi ch follows:) 

}Jr • .t1cLAIN• Mr. Speaker, I yield fifteen minutes to the gentle::ian 
from Pennsylvania (Mr• Shira.a) . 

llr. SHIR.AS. Yr. Speaker, I have exa.o1ned the maj ority and 
minority reports 1n t his case. I have also looked over the 
evidence that was considered material, and I oonaulted a t 
a considerable length of time with the oajority of t he aeobers 
that composed the Republlcan caJor ity 1n this co..l!littee. 
Not withstanding the consideration given to the report of the 
ma Jori t y, I find I am. unable to agree 1n the reco::l.!Jenda.tions 
cade by ::iy party colleagues. In the first place, pe?"l!lit me to 
say t.nat I do not que ct1on for an instant the sinceritj of the 
gent leoen who compose the majority of this col!IClittee. Anyone 
who listened to the rem rks of the gentleman from I owa(llr. 
Birdsall) and the cha ircan of this comoittee , the gent looan from 
New York(Mr• Driscoll ) , must be l.Ilpre osed W1 th the f act that these 
men believe they a re right. 

'l!hey are also t o be credited with the f ~\ct that they had to 
deal with one of the most d1ff1cul.t. cases in point of extent of 
testioony and nw:iber of witnesses of any case that has been pres-
ented here for years. 

Now, I do not question their sincerity; and, Wlder ordinary 
clrct.Ustances, I ta.ke it, it i s the duty of lleobers of this House 
t o iol_ow the SU5Sestions and rococraendations aade by the majorit y 
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of the colllI!littee tha t has e .xaoine d a case of this kind. WW.le , 
theref'ore, I do not que s tion t.he s i n cerit y of o::, fellow-ciembers 
who wrote the majority report, ne ither do I questi on vecy 
seriously their J udge!:lent up to a cer tai n point . When you coc e 
t o exaz:une the cajority report down to a certain point , i t Will 
be f ound substantially right , but when they becooe i cipregna ted 
wi t.It the geros of ,.aliunde siso" they seoo t o act , a s it a ppears 
to me With ut ter disrega rd to the law that should contr ol 1n a case 
of t h i s kind. 

In a f ew moments I ah4l.l ref e r bl?i efly to the que s tion of 
aliunde evi dence; but bef ore t ouching upon that point I want 
to say to o::, Republican col.League s t.hat this 1a admittedl.y a 
close case from the standpoint of the aaj ority . There a re 6 ,500 
witnesses and 2, 500 pages of tes timony, and doubt less thousands 
and tens of thousands of dollar s were spen t . And what was the 
result? The majority find a plural i t y of 22, votes 1n f avor of 
the cont estant out of a t otal of 28 , 000 votes cast 1n that district.. 
They have b ken the position, neoesaarily, t.hat if there had been 
a change of 11 2 vot e s 1n that dist rict Mr• Connell- the contestant.-
wou l d have been defea ted. 

Now, gentleoen, you crust rem«nber that whi le that is con-
ceded by t he oa j ority of the co!:lOit tee representing thi s s i de 
of the House, the Deoocra t s do not concede that the resul t was 
so cl ose . You oust take t.he s ituation as it exist ed there ; and 
there are equities i n the ca se that seem to me to throw a great 
dea l on the sit uat i on. In the firs t p lace , we are t old that we 
ought t o fol i OW the cia. jor ity of the coCl!!l1ttee because of the 
g rea t voluoe of t e s t i moD3 taken. Now, gent lemen, let oe tell 
y ou those a re wooden guns pi led up there . I f you have lis t ened 
to the depate up up t o the present t i ce you must have been 
sa t isfied of the f a ct tha t the case rests upon a vecy few pages 
of test ioony and several very s i mple propositions of l aw. 

The t estioony reli ed upon he re i s subr.tantia l ly quot ed in 
the JJ..Lnority report . I f any 1Iember Will take the t wo repor ts and 
s o of f qu iet ly by hioself f or an hour a nd anal yze thi s case, 
he wi l l cooe t o a concl usion Without the neces sity of look1JIG 
i nt o the tes t ioony further; or i f he has lis t ened t o the debate 
of yesterday , he oust in the same way have rea ched a concl usi on 
as to how he should vote . · 

Now, the i dea of any Republican here t cyi ng t o hide behind 
t hat !!las s of test i nony, and saying, ,.I aia unable t o delve into 
all the dep ths of thi s case and cooe t o a concl usi on , and I 
can sat i sfy o::, con s ci ence by f ollowing t he l e ad of t h is cof.llJ.ittee,• 

i i s , i t seeos t o me , fall acious. Booe gentleoon on.thi s rd.de under-· . 

1

1 

take t o throw the respon sibility on the cocm1ttee i n that way . 
They say t "I beli eve the members of t he committee t o be honest , 
c onscientious oen. They have 5one through thi s CAss of tes t i -
mony and we can not do better, under t.lu:! ci rcUilstance s , th.an foll ow 
t.heir conclusion. • 

On that point I wi sh your a t t en t i on . The det ermination of 
this case does not requir e the consi deration of the te stimony t o 
any grea t extent. The tes timony upon which the i s sue here t urne 
has been repea dedly read and ref erred to on both s ide of the 
House . 

Ur. DRISCOLL. Does the gentleoan mean to say that a ll the 
oat e r i a l evidence has been rea d? 
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.Mr. SHIRAS. All the cateri al evidence, the evidence t hat you 
rely upon, has been ment i oned, and its character analyzed and 
presented to the House . 

L!r. DRISCOLL. ~e could not do t hat 1n a week . 

Ur. SHIR,\S . When you co::ie to consider the questions of lal'I 
i nvolved here, if you are i nclined to give due weight to t hose 
questions, nine- tenths of this teetiJ:1.0ny oust be ruled out 
absolutely • 

.i.ir. CABSEL. Has the gent l e aan read the b:c i efs cf the contesta?;.t a.nd 
contestee in this c.'.\se? 

Mr. SHIMS• I have read the report very carefully throe or f our 
times and havo consulted with !)l'.'act1call y every member of the 
majorit y of the comoittee ex cept nr. Driscoll, whom I tried t o see 
several t imes. I say the report-

llr . CABSE:I.. I am speaking of tho bric:Os which set forth the case 
as preaented by the two COOI:littees. 

11r. s:arRAS. As I have a lready said, I have not attempted to 
read all the testioony i n the case, because I have taken the word 
of the raaJorlty as well as the o i nority of the c otl!:11.ttee that 
the sate.ri al evi dence on Which they rely has been presented. 

I thi~ i t can be ahomi that the grea t eiass of t h is tesu-
oony oust be nued out• not only because 1 t cones under t he 
head of aliunde proof, but because this aliunde evidence n 
can not be applied, owing to the f ailure to connect i t up with 
the vote& thrown out; and when you cooo to consider the matter, 
therefore , it wi ll bef ound that a thousand p'.l{,es of this testi-
mony ~ot be properly considered. 

,low, let us look at another fea ture of t h is case . The 
Tenth district of Pennsylvania 1n 1902 was Democratic. The Dem• 
ocrat1c candidate for governor carried it by sooe five or six 
thousand r:iaJority; and befor e the election every Republican ,1ho 
k:Bew anything about t.~e state of the c3 se in t hat d istrict 
knew t hat there \"aB very little question that the Democratic 
Co?l3reasi onal candidate would ~ rry that dis trict, although 
ord.1narily a Republican district. 

Consequently, the Deoocrats knowill8 this , and knowing that 
they had more than a fl.{;hting chance , there was every rea son 
1n t he world why they should put forward a represent~tlve 
Decocrat to lead them to the victory uhich would surely cooe 
to the!!! in th.:i.t dis trict when the votes were cast 1n 1902 • 

Mr• GI LBERT• \'ibP.t were the changed conditions tha t led people 
t o think it wouJ.d go Democra tic? 

11r. SHIRAS. There \vas a series of labor strikes (;?'owing out of 
t..~e coal buoinoss t here, and Mr. Connell was one of the lea d-
i n~ coal opera.tors, and it was na tural under those conditions 
\Q e~pect repri sals. 
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The c otmt y of Lackawanna gave t.he ~.,,nocra tic canclldate 
f or governor 'between five o.nd s i x thousand caJority . Now, 
tile Dottocrata, knol'1lng that t h is was coming , san their dut y , 
and they therefore expected to nol!l.inate a De::iocratlc candi date , 
because they expect,ed t o elect their candidate. 

Mow what happened? Ttie kind frt.ends of the contes t a nt went 
into a Deaocrotlc convention, disr upted it, and, with c very 
sraall olnorlt; of the convention ap:..arently, got the beoocro.tic 
noolnati on. Although ho i a co:rLlng here to- day chaI'61ng a fraud 
against t he De::iocr3cy, he !'8Ceived and fi led a Deaocro.tic cert-
i f i cate or nom.lruti on in Dauphin County. tlr• Howell, t1ho had 
the major ity of the convention, a lso received a Democra tic noni-
nati on, am that was 1'1led in I>auphin County. A con toa t arose,•· 
and the courts of Fennsylvan1.a~dec1ded that the noalnati on given 
t o Mr. Connell wao llle5al and threw h1o off tho Democratic 
ticket. 

Mr• 81/.,.;iSON. Do you oean ho clai oed to be the Deaocrat ic nomi nee? 

ldr. SHIR.Uh Yes. 

Ur. GILBER'l'• What proportion of that convention voted for !!r. Connell? 

Mr. OLllSTEI),. •. 1111 my colle.36ue peroit a question? 

Ur. SHIRAS. Yes. 

Mr. GIL.BERT • \'111at proportion of the Deoocrats i n that convontion--

.ur. S.lilRAS• I have yielded t o my colleague, !!r. Olrastead. 

Ur. OLJS:EDe. • r understood you t o f ind r ault wi th t he Deaocratic 
convention for noru.natlng or atteopt lng t o nominate a Republican. 

Mr. GILBF~. As a ooir.ocrcit . 

Hr• SHIRAS• I say Mr. Connell went to a De~ocratic convention 
and was nominated. 

11r. OL'..ISTED• Let me ask my colleague if he h1ose1:t' was not no::iinated 
by a De:::iocro.tic organlzntion? 

r.tr. SiiIR..S . Yes, and the threo ether Republican Congroasoen i n 
Allegheny County also recelved Citizens ' noo.inat ionp. Lfr. Dalzell 
h i o seli received a Citizens' nomn.ation, although he d i d not receive a 
Denocra.tic nooination. 

th>. Oll!STED• Did you receive Deoocratlc support and uere y ou 
Elected in that nay against the regalar Republican nominee? :i:a 
not that a f a ct ? 
Hr. SHIRAS. That ls not the fact, air, as stated• I ran as an 
avowed Republi can, and, a s i s often the case, received s everal 
party no::u.nationa . 

Mr, KLUTZ• The Der:ioc?"-..1.ts did not vote for you, cl.id they? 
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1.fl,. 01.HSTED. A good many of them did. (LaU{Shter, ) 

llr• Sllll¼S• As tlUe matter 1s beconlng a. little persoAAl , perhaps 
I had bettor ref er briefly to tho pcl itico.1 sltuatiol'l i n Alle .. 
gheny County. Wo have not any Domoc.r-at1c party in Allegheny 
County practically, for they have joined in the f13ht for good 
governI1ent; we have t ,10 Republi can parties there . I f the Deoo-
crats had r-<.1n a Deoocratic cand1d.,te 1n IJY district ac;ain.et two 
Republicane, he 'lfould not receive probably oore than 4,000 votes 
out ~f the 30 ,000 votes cast . 

:r.ix'• GOWiELL, To l'Cl1oh ;;>arty do y ou belong? 

Ur. SHIRAS• Do not interrupt oe . You a.re on tho f l oor today as a 
courtesy heretofore given foroer meobers . You oust not oart1-
c1pate in tlloss proceedings, especially as they noncarn your own 
interests. 

\'/hen the voto was t.J.kan the!'e I had 14 ,500 votes; the other 
Republican had about 14, 500 votes, so there was but a very SOAl l. 
difference between the two, but the vote that was cast there for 
me represented the untracmeled, nonoff1ceholding vote 1n oy 
district. I think I sot practically every fa1rolntlcd Republican 
vote 1n that distri ct 1n that particular oonteot . (Laughter, ) I 
wi ll tell you Why I think so. 

l!r, OLllSTED• Then there are 14, 5CO t ram::ieled Republicans in that 
district? '1-,aughter. ) 

Ur, SlilltAS, No; but there are DD.ny officeholders in that d1atr1ct, 
Federal State, and county ( laughter) , and two or three thousand 
rela t i ves , How, I got few of those votes. 

Mr, CASSEL• What has becooe of the parties that ncal.nated you ,:i:t 
that t100? Have not they 5one rock into the Republican party? 

.Mr. SHI .R...S. I a:s not 801?16 1:eck into the ped1(9:'oe of Allegheny 
County politics. No one can understand theo, and I c~ not 
expect the gentlolllM to unde~ then. 

Mr. GILl3ERT • There is no contest about your seat • 

.Yr. SHIMS, The gentlenan indicates that I did not represent 
the Republicans in my distri ct, 1.'ltioating that i f I did I would 
have had a J.e.rger oojor1ty. 

Mr. OIJSTED• Uo; I think i t aiaply shows tha.t you have becooe one 
of the offi ceholders. 

Mr, SHIRAS , You look a t i t froo a different point of View. Now 
let oe tell you gent l eoen about that district, My Rei,ublican 
opponent ran on the 11 or~iz.at1on" Re~lloc.n t icket, on the saoe 
t i cket as Governor Pennypacker, on the so- called II 

t: tra.1gl1t 
Republi can ticket , " Governor Pennypacker carried the Twenty-
Ninth Congressional district by 20, 000 oaj0rity, and my Repub-
lican State t icket in t.ui s Congress1onAl c.1"3tr1ct. Could he have 
been oore badly defeated? 
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Mr. KENNEDY. 'l:he same thing occurred over in Lackawanna, did it 
not? 

Mr. SHrR..\S. l au being tl.1'\"erted rro1n what I wa.a saying. 

Mr. GILBERT . Uow tri ll the gentleman answe r oy questi on? \12:w.t 
proportion of the Democrats in the convention 1n this congresa1 onal 
d1str1ct were 1f f a vor of the nom1nation of Ur. Connell as the 
Deoocre.Uc nolllltee? 

Ur. THAYER. Th1rt,y"'t•o out of 192• 

Ur. SHI RAS. Now, gentlemen, you do not want to hear o e on what 
the Democrats of Al.legb.eny County could, would , or should have 
done, or my political pedi gree , but it is simply a questi on of 
f a ct, ,.Who was elected?" and you can not see who has been elected for 

- the COlil.nlttee on Electi ons has so lim.t ed the inquiry that not ' 
over fifteen of the witnesses whose t estimony waa taken 1a mater-

Ull to th ... s i s sue . 

J.lr. S I BLEY. Let me call your a t tention-

Ur. SHIRA.So Let me g ive the rea son, because I do not want to 
make a s tateoent and then have to analyze it before I go on. 
I s t a rted t o say that the result of this Deoocrat ic convention 
was th.at not only was !Jr. Connell~s nomination throi'lll off the 
Democro.tic ticket, but Ur. ,Howell, the ad.:!itted Democrat , 
and whoo the Democrats knew had a chance of election, wa.a also 
thrown off the Deoocr a t1c ticket. 

The SPEAKER. The t ine of t he gentlecan hao e.xpired . 

14r. McCLAW• I wi ll yield the gent leoan ten o1r.uteo moro if be 
desires it. 

u.r. SHIRAS• nie c ontroversy that a rose 1n this Democratic 
convention, 1n 11h.1ch the contestant desired to carry off the prize, 
is not material., or ol.18ht not to be , excep t for one phase. 
ETeryone here llho 1s oandid Will admit t.bat 1f lir• Bowan ·had been 
before his district on the stralght Democratic ticket, it would 
h..tve ~ven him f our or five thousand Democratic oaJority , 
and he \Vould have certainly gotten 1t but for t he extraordinary 
and peculi a r methods of procedure of t.b.c>.t Denocretic c onvention. 

~erefore I sa:,, gent lea en , the question 1n this cont roversy 
1s as to the alleti;ed Deoocratic convention, with A. Republican 
c:mdi date, and a.n a ctual Deaocratic candidate. I take it tha t 
all Republican !le ::1bers here who are ln f avor of ~1r play well know 
that Yr• Howoll got 461 najorHy , instead of the 4 , ooO or 5, 000 
he crd1nar1ly would !Jave had. J; is dH'f1cult f or this com:nttee 
t o show tbnt all these votes were intentionally fraudul ent. I 
t ake 1t that all ~¼ publican he~bers here who a re in favor of 
f a ir play will be 1nt'3I'8sted. l take the posi tiou that in the 
consi aeration of this case t.."loro i s r..o doubt tha t t he comnittee 
bs.s f a i led to fully understand tee subfeq,uent effect of this 
Democratic convention \1hen f10 uril'l8 upon the oaJor1 ty that Howell 
would have had. 
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Mr. CASSEL• Do you ooan t o oay that t.ho car:c.1ttee, 11h1ch llas g iven 
t wo weoke' c::ont1nuou.s work 1n going ovor th1e oV1denco and testi-
mony, f our weeks al!Joat, c on:.ioncins t. to o ' clock i n tho oomlll6 
and cont.lnul..ng until 5 o ' olock, ac.d Giving throuc;h tl!o1r report 
their conolus1ona that they have arrived at, that t.hey do not 
know core of it th.an you, when you oay that you have not be~n abl.e 
even t o read it? 

Mr. SHIRAS. I have ooen tryizl8 to 5et to the very propos1tlon, 
boca...iae the bulk, perhaps, or t hie t estinol".y, showing what you 
di d , is what. has led up t o oy general pror:,osit1on, viz, 111:l.other 
you h.:lve est.J.bl13!:l.ed :.he fact of !:ir. Connell. beir-43 entitled to e 
se.3t under t..1is evidence. How, •hAt do you do? You find 461 
plure.llty 1n favor of the Doa oc..--atic cand1d~te, and you cll.£ln8e t be.t 
to 223 in f avor or the contestant. How do you dot.hat? Up to 
a certain , oint th.e cooalt teo <lld not co ast..-.uy . It ehowod, I 
think, good Judgeoont ftben 1t took U'O the case of these tl:u,ee 
precincts, which they char.3ed to bavo been, on th3ir fece , full 
or fraud. To take t.heaa up and with ooretul Jud(;ement proceed 
to deterJlino how they wou.ld 3et at the fraud and w..at effoct tho 
fraud had on the general result. 

But they did not t.?'03t 1 t f airly. In the f'!.rst place, they 
found 50 i ll.egal vot es of per sons ,,ho had not pa.id their taxes, 
50 i l l egal votes of persona m o !W.d not re..;1otered, and those, 
to aooe extent, were tachn1calJ.y 1J.lei.:;al votes, but 1nsto-.G. of 
taking those votea out of Old ~•orge t..lie Socond and i'hird wards of 

'!Tinton, and even cba1'61r.g all aoa1nst .ur. Howell, what did the~ 
do? They tl:rrew out tbe enti ro 797 voteo, thou.3-'1 Ur. Howell hAe 
454 oaJorlty. 

¥1"• UcCLAIN• Kay the gent.leoan allow oo t o interrupt hie for,• a 
mol:l.ent Just to 84.) I w111 all.on hl.o as I:1Uch tine as ho mmts and 
he can proceed a" he desireo. 

llr• SHIRAS, Now, t aat, gentlel!l8n, i s the starting point of this 
ce.se . Here a:ro dietrieto t.be.t cast 797 vot e s t '1at. @Ve 11.r. 
Howell 625 votes and 17 2 tc the eonteotant., and an adz:11::a.ton 
that p-rt of theae were tcchnlcal.ly illegal. ba.1.lot s and not frau1.-
ulent ln the wor st sense. They threw out t.c ee 797 votes, and they <b 
not. sh.ow in the evidence t.11ten 1n Old Forge and 1n the Second Wld 
Th.ird wards of Wint on that any sin5le one-mark me-that a single 
one of those f'ra.uduJ.ent voteo hAd been roGt for llr• Hovell, but on 
the contrary, the only evidence of i llo5n.l voto G casi. was that. 
they were cast for the oonteotant. I a that not correct, I ask 
the gent leoan f rom How Yor k? 

.14r. s·IIANSOlh You cean that theI'S was no fraud on the 1::nllot box? 

Kr. SHIR,.S• I say 1n the proof they did not atteopt to prove an:, 
of those i llegal votes had been cast. for ID'• Howoll. 

Ur. SWAliSON. ~ey were s!.mply people Ylho voted not being properly 
registered. 

11r. SHIMS. There may have beAn f ,use i cpe1•s-,n&.tions, but I ao 
not defending that; I am analyzing how they sot at the question 
of the aepa.ro.te fraudulent votes or aeeUt1ed i l 1oga1 votes--
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Ur. GILBERr! They cas t, that vote t o Ur. Honell l"lithout any 
proof-

14r. SliIRAfl• They found nothiJ18, in ny judg;:len~ which should lead 
to the throl"IUJ.5 out of the ent!.rs precinct s . The result of· that 
was t.hat !ir. Howell s till had r:i-'l.jor1ty and t hen they went back 
and by a.Uunde : rooi'- here is the dan.'.)e rous point 1n their process, 
by a.Hur-de proof - they found t hat 3'2 of those 797 votos had been 
cast for .Ur . Connell . now. ?lb.at was tho result , gent leoen. of 
th.at finding? I t vias this : .t\here viere three • reclncts with 
797 votes and wi th the l a rge maj ority of 454 for Mr. Howell whi ch 
were absolutely t hrov;:1 ou.t . They de s troyed this entire vote . 
ye t f:>tmd Ur . Howell elected by 8 .oa.J ority. They then go back and 
go over t he e r.ibers, you ciJ:1.t a~•, of t J1.e destroyed vctec a'l.d 
find 32 for llr• Connel l , and turn that .Denocra tic d i strict. 
whi ch s -ive 454 oajorlty for .Mr. H0'1'18ll, over to Yr. Connell by 
a unanioo~s vote- 3.:! for Connell, nothing for Hov;ell. I t sael18 
incredible. 

I.lr. S ',"lAHSON Which gave that majorl ty? 
Ur. SH.IRltS • ..Yes. 

1.tr. DRISCOLL. Wi ll the sentleaan yi eld f or a question? 

Ur. SHIRAS • Certa1nl.y. 

Ur. DRISCOLL• Is not t..>iat the ordiu.acy pr a cti ce, that wohn a 
d.i£trlct or poll is thrown out f or f raud, to 5 0 back and prove 
votes cast for both partie s by evidence aliunde? \7a.s tha.t not 
done in the Fi fty- f i fth Con.'.)reas i n the case of Wise v . Young 
and 1n ma:n:y other cases. 

Mr . SHIRAS• I do not think 1t was eve r done •mder conditions as 
they existed .!.n t h is ca se . 

Mr. DRISCOLL• No two conditions in elections a re exactly alike , 
but where we throw ot:.t voteo of certain dlot r icts because of 
fraud, the practice f or both paz•ties is t o go b-'\ck t>.nd prc·,e the 
votes cast for their candi dates allunde • 

.Mr. SHIRAS. Now, I want tc ask e question in return. I s l t net 
a ra ct tha t tbose three d i s tricts cast 797 votes, m ic .• t3ave liz'. 
Howell a major ity of 454 vo t es, and by U?.ro'l'lil:Jg out those 
precincts it still left a .-naJority of 8 , and that the action of 
the coi:u:ti t tee i n f lnding those 32 vote e put the .result i n f av or 
of Mr• Connell? 

Mr. DRISCOLL• Vlby, yea, but-- (Applause on the Deoocr a tic side. ) 
Oh there i s net hi.ng t o chee r about thi s ; we are dealing in f a cts 
here • We s tated it ye ~terday ov.rselves, and it is not necesaa.cy 
for a :.Iugwaop fron Pennsylvania to state it over again• I 
siopl.y say, is it not the i uvarie.ble ru1e? Did not, ltr• Howell 
have the same chance t o go back and prove his votes in those 
d.totricts? Di d ha not bavc the saoe cp:,ortun1ty to prove theo 
if he wanted to? 

I.Ir• SHIRAS• Now, gent leoen, I a n t!",rin,:s t o tfl.lK about the 
equities in this case . 
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.11r. NORRIS • .1&83 I ask the 5entle!llJ:l a qnost1on? 

i.u-. 8HIRA8. Corta.1.nly. 

Ur. NCJUUS. In your JudgJ:ient was the coo:::uttee Justlfiod in 
thl•ovring out the th.ree precincts? Do you UGre·e vith thee in 
that,? 

Kr. BHIR.\S. I do not ~e •1th then on that point. I do 
not criticise thee very harshly. but I do not ~e nth them. 
What I think they ouc;ht to have done 1s . having fotmd n'bout 
125 1:rreg u.lar votes. s ome tecbnicaJ..ly in•egular and some absolutely 
fraudulent. they sho~d i-.a"ll:e deducted thoce votes . ever.. if they 
deducted them all froo Hooou. That wouJ..d have been b9.d enol.J8h. 
but to throw then all out 'Y<.1.0 unfair, 111 my Judgoent. 

Ur• CASSEL. In the report of t.lle St.cond Wa.ro of Winton, t84 vd. es 
were cast :tor Howell and 178 votes were declared and proved fraudu-
lent. 

Ur. SHIRAS. Mio found t..e.o fr-.ludulent? 

Mr. c.iZPll,. :ih :t · nr:ro Shoun fre.udu.lent by tho evidence. 

Yr• SHIRAS. Now, \10 find the case stands i n this way. That misn 
they took the disputed districts thi s great nuober of votes. 
amountins to nearly 8CO, ~e!'El thrown out of the three procincta, 
mak.1ng a une.ni.'.lous vote for Com1ell of 32 to nothing. Toot, if 
sustained.. Tw....l.~\ elec~ Con.'1011 by 24 cajority. Now, t hat doos not 
look like nuch of a plurality to coce into the House 111th, with 
thous.'.'.nds of paseo of testi:noey at an e.xpenae o:f thousands of 
dollars . shol'ling only a plurality of 24. 'i'Tell, '\!hat does the 
co.nru.tt.ee do? Thay h.1d a taat of "aliundela!i' , and they th.en did what. 
t o oy o1nd, is th~ one i llegal proposition that bars out oost of 
this test1l!lony. !he tcstloony was t.,.kcn s..ltowing t hat 1;700 illegal 
votes were casti $'es, upward o:f 2 , 000. I f I am incorrect I wish 
the chairman would correct :io-
1!R. DRISCOLL. Two t housand and t wo. 
Kr. 5.HI RAS• • thouoan.cl and two ; and Ylhen the co:in1.ttee ca!"le 
to consider these vot.es t.h.oy were o:f the opinion that there were 
a nuober of fraudulent vot.lla, and under aliundc proof they 
attempted to show thnt a great number had been cast :for !Ir. Howol l, 
a.r.d t1.10wiands of ~es of test1:101..y wer!:l t.:1.kon upon thr'.t. brunch of the 

~case. l do not say i t wa.::i urong t.o t..".ke the t estimony upcn ~t 
pOL"lt, but I s:J.y tl:l.a.t Ylhon the c.-o..m ttee oace t o 118ke the report 
they really- barred out the to sti _ony and have p1--evented 1 te consid-
~rotion by the House. i'hey found, I repeat. tllat there were 1 , 7co 
i llegal votes; and ~ t · did they do? i'hey file a report i n mic-h 
they say t.b.at 11a t least 200 votos"--t.bat is the language of the 
report.-"at least 200" of these votes tfElre cast for Howell . 

When they cawe to make the report, you i'lnd that in I'Uund 
numbers they deduct 2CO trom Howell. Lot me ab.011 you nhat t.hat 
means. Ur,on v..n 1nvestl.gat1on or tlle attitude of the .11embero of 
the co::inittee we find that they -:an not tell 'l'iho the varioua 
parties 'l'lare, .-nat their names ,;rere , or where t hey were located. 
I s thJ.s not most extraordinary? In my cund it is the tu1'llil,g 
point 1n this case . Not only we as Republicans can not know, 
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but the q,pos1t.1on is poi1orloso to paoo upon tho t'ilO questions 
that arise 1ll eecll of t.b.eee 200 caseoa ;;".:;.a the vote ill-0gaJ., 
and 11as i t co.st f or .fir• Howell? I t ls the introducti on of t h i s 
bJ.d precedent that o.rouaes 111 the oa.in cry o;>. oat.iou. 

~"• havin3 ~ed that th.ere were 1, 700 illegal votes, 
and bellevl.ng t.het at le~st. 200" of tlle::i a:>~ cast !'or tlr• 
Howell, they prooptly chazuo then up and take froc. his coi.ll'lt 
200 vctoo t.bat are not i dent11'ioJ. by 11,..'\.0e or votin..; l)r()C1not . 

Mr. JC;:mEDY. flh,y, they were paosed uron by tho oa.jority of tho 
co t teo. 

!tr. SHIRAS. I would like to -!lsk the s entlOClSll a question. Does 
t he gent loQ.Sll no~ to S...")3 that hia coaai.ttee paoaed u • .)()n theso 
200 votes and has e5ot then ontered on t hs record, 1n t ho cinuteo, 
as 3cc voter:; froo certain procl.ncts? .-\nd by a vote of the 
co::ioit tee dotemined that they were i llegal? 

Mr. XE?Il~Y• Tile comm1ttef3 passod upon 200 • In my judaeoont 
there are a thouaand. 

• I did not o.r •• w tho report. 

Jlr,. R.w..~ of fe.xas. Tile co..uitteo did not paso on ti>e 200• 

Ur. SHIR..8• I :ic not say.l..r)8 there wero not 200 illegal votes 
there . I C?:l not saying t.hat they o\JGht not to be deduotod, if 
y ou can P"'°''° ~1:1, 01.1t I r,.,7 you ht.ve to do 1t 1n a lo~al 'flay. 
Let sey i.o t he co..ilxlro of the r:1.9.Jorlty ot this co.::mitteo t..~t 
\lhen they had a vot that thoy wanted t o deduct froI!l ur. 
Howll' s count , o~ .of th8 gent lemen llhoulc have s-.ld, ''m;,. 
Cba1r::ian, I u.ove y ou th.at the vote of Jolln &11th, lllog:11 by 
ta.lee re51st.ration or non~ynent of taxes . Which vote the avid• 
enoe shows has boon cast for 11r. Howell, shall be deducted froo 
his coLIIlto" ~ t ab.ould have been put to a vote of the entire 
cotlOlttee, and i f t.ho coD!lllttee afflr~tively by i ts oaJori t y 
s truck t.hat out , the Republicrul.8 and Deoocrots voting upon it, 
then that vote shoula have bClen taken tro.:i t.._o count of .i.ir• Hovell• 

a.it what have you done? You have sL-p:l.y cooe to tJ;e conc1ue1.on-
all of you, as 1nd1Viduals-thAt there were 11at loatlt .::00·1 11lege.l 
votes out of t , 700 th.At were cast for Mr• Boool l , and you have 
deduc+.ed theo 111thout i dentlfving theo by the n..-..oe of tho voter 
or voting p recinct , a thi.oG I ., never heard of, even 1n the ,.solid 
South. " Now, \lll.J.eeo the of this ooanlttoe o ... :-. ~rl:J "hat I 
oay hor- that they have t.:ucen 200 votes that ;-..":.l,y oan not ~dent1fy-
1t sea:ie to IJl8 that 1 t showa the d.D.nSeroua oll.e.r,.._ct,e:,;• ~f tile a1.1 .. 
unde evi dence, and 1t 1s upon tllat that this 5ontlel!l.:ln ( po1nt1I}6) 
relies for obtalninS h is seat. 

J,ir. CAS; EL• 1,1r. Speaker, let ui:, a.ns \'l'(ir tbe.t Just here • First , th-
moabers of the 1111nor1ty say that theP..e '-1.uest.1 ns v,or-e not diocusaod 
by the .cia.Jor 1ty who o1gned thl.s report. 'J!he .:l!'.Jority ropor-t 
•as siGilbd by the majority r.iec.bere or tnls cocuittoo , and it 
was not sub::littod to the .:unoritY• ffe pe.ssou a re&olut1on b~ 
vote of the co::nitteo st#rt.lno that lie tho~t that Ur, Conne~l 
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was entitled t o his seat . !rh.e r.1ajority than prepared this report a?ld Signed 1 t . 

Mv. SHIR.At . Let me a sk the gantler.ian a queat1011-

Ur. J OHNSON. J4r. Speakor , 17111 the gentleoan let rae nake a 
s tat ement rl(§ht he1<e? I do not want t o take a..'1Y or his t1oe • 

.ur. Slila.s. I w.111 yi eld to the gentl eman. 

Mr. J O!ilt"SON. i'h.e. ma,1ori ty of' the committee furnished the tl.tno~·1ty 
of the colllr.l.1t tee the namos of the th.1rty- t wo voter3 ,"lh.ose test 1• 
mony was established by a.llunde evidence. We are able to er..nru.ne 
theo and see f'or ourselves Yb.ether there is anything upon which to 
base 1 t.. '.rhey do not !"U.rn1sbr;. UfJ any of the Us t of the 200 rum 
that they say illegally voted f or Mr. Howell, and oo can not ex.-
amine t.hat, and the House can not . 

I.Ir. DRISCOIJ,. Lire Speaker, I ttvuld like t o ask right here the 
gent.J.e~ :from South Ca rolina a question. I s 1 t truo tha t tile 
majority f'nrn.1Dhed the IJinority thoaa thirty- t wo naces? I s i t not 
true th.at I asked one .ae.::ibor to .f'urnish the ?l81lea t.hat he had 
ex.lll:11ned to the rest or us, and also to the comoo1"s ·>f the 
mi nority? 

llr• J OIDiSCN. &y I w.ko another s~tecont? 

Ur. SHIJlAS. Hr. Speaker. I have 1;0t yielded to the sentlanan ':. 
troa Ner1 Yo!'k (!ix'. Dri scoll~ . 

14r,. JOHNSON. U,ay I ans?10r tho G-ontlecan' s question? 

The S?E.aKER. Does the gentleman y i eld? 

llr• SHIMS. Yea. I Will yield to t he gentleman r ron Sout h Caroluu. 

Kr• J OHNSO?l• ~ e naJor1ty of the aoI!Wlittee dl.vlded up t.his work. 
That i s th<3 reaoon t.."l.ey do not lmow ::my more c..bout, i t . One I:lall 
e xamined one part of the reoord and u.nother oon anot her. I 
eJUUilined all of i t . 'l'AO.t 1 s the diff er:,,nce . (LaU&litcr. ) One 
meober of 1.he ooiallit toe l'.lho ma.de up the lis t of t.iw 3 2 allunde 
vot es handed ~t Use. to the ronli:ing aeo~r of the ninority of the 
committ ee, and the majorit y of t..lie cor:imit teo adopted h1o vork. 

ltr• FOSTER of Illlno1a. Lat ae ask this queat1on. l :: there any 
e vidence 1n the record ahor11.ng tuat the 200 votes thus thrown 
out were oast t or nr. Howell? 

Ur. J OHNSON. We do not know l'lhoee votes those 2CO were ; the names 
are not given. 

Kr• SHIR.AS• Now, I e.llould l.lke to ::ako this ?'eply !'o t..r1e 5!nt1e-
l:Wl t roo. P81'.nsylvan1a (Mr• Cassel) . HR haviil8 admi .:.ted th..1.t. he 
and his five collee.5uca on the oo..llll.1ttoe paa::;cd upon these 200 
~ot esJ suppose that on the question of cbargiI',6 up those vo t es 
fo r J.ir• Howel l. or taking theo a.'f!a.y froo hio tho:-e had been a 
d1 vis i on aoong those slx ;;icmbors or the com.1 t t-se ; suppose the 
vot e had been 4 t o 2 , than, if the Del!lt,cratic meobers bad come i n 
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and votod on tl:lat 4uootion, thAt vote would not !"..ave boon throl'm 
out. 

In other tiords. there !m.O only n ::i.lJ ori t y of a L'\.'\Jor1 t y 

votin8 upon that quostion of str.'.liiII..:; out 'Z.hooo vota::i. 'ale 

result is tho.t tho ooonittee 1toolf dooo not hr.OTT mat t..'IJ.ose 2'- 0 votes 

~presont. 'they c,;,uld not agroo and have not agreed ~n tllat p~i nt. 
hose voteo a.re o1 ply float1r-a 1:a tho ....!r, ~t:..out r~ or r..:lb1-

tation . llo one can .1.dentify t.hoae votors. No oomber of the 
co::i 1 ttee 01~ anyone oloo can do so . 

JJ.r. CJ\S~. I bol.levo thllt I &peak truthf'ully l"lt.on I ac.y th.at 

a t leaat f'our ot the eh. ::."3cl>or s of' tho oaJority of t.ha com:u.ttec 

after h:\~ 5011., vvor t he t..a nM.nony tho one ei do Md or:. the • 

ot her, ,1ere in f ~vor of' putt in.J into t h ie r eport c.nyflllero f roo 500 
t o 1,000 of th~eo peor le. 

Mr• SlllRAS• Lt woul.cl 1.ot have been ony worse 1f you had done so. 

llr• CASS£L. i'le •ore e.at o1f 1ed, a.ni:l rup_ oxd the r.iaj ority of the 
cooaittee would be • 

Ur. SHIR.\S. I ao amply a ak:i!l.::; f or fair pl.ay i n t.his co.ttor . 
I Sf.J.Y th..'\t unlec:; you ahow '\IChoeo votes those 20C >:1ere , they otl{;ht 

not t o oo t!lrown out. I t seeoa t o oo t h i s io onJ.y ordinary fo.ir play. 

Lir• DRISCOLL. Wlll the .;entlaoan c.llow oe to ask ono core queo-

tion- tho.t t.s all? 

llx'. SHI R.\.b• Cert'\L'll.Y• 

Ur• DRISCOLL• It thoee t.hree diatr1ots-the Beoond and 1.lurd. 
wards of Winton and the first district of' 0l.d Forge- are t.b.r,:nm 
out, how doos th.:lt ilonve - th.e vote? " 

J.!r. SHinA.S• It leaves t..lie vot e8 1n f :J.vor of lir• Howell• 

llr . DRISCOLL• Uow, i s it not true that lb'. Howell dir.. :-iot try t o 

prove a.liunde any of the votoo cant tor h1u or a.n:y of' the 1 11.osal 

vet. es .lle_;od t o ?uvo beon co. ... t f or .J.r• Connell? ~t i s true , 

1 c i t not? 

Ur. SHIRAS• I w1ll C!D.ke a.practical a.-isilor to that question 1n 

t.b.is way: It was conpotcnt pcrhD.:;:e , for llr• Howell. t o provo b., 
a liunde teeti:::.ony tmo mole 2,ooc votes, and it oould havo ?~et h1n 

61 o coo or .• p.: 000• That aort of ... , ... ,ocood.1~ on the other ru.de 
9 • ,. ~, 6 (• • te t f ''alt 
cost the contestant probably 9 50, 000• .>uc.n o. con a o -
undois:iw r.oulo. bo 3 rarco , and tho prlzo would c;o to the bl..Ggost 

puree . 

Mr• CRISCCLL• I f you bi:!vo 'read the evidonce, have you any doubt 
that at 1e.1ct, wo '17111 , \0 111.o.;o.l votco, boc~uto tba t nu. .. ber 
wo1..•.ld be sufficient , wcro ahotrn by evldonce all.undo but c ::i~tent 
t o ~~vo been cant f or~. lioTioll? Hav e you iJ.'J..y doubt ~bout ~nat? 

. ..r. SHI~-~• I d.:.u. •• ot ,1ui .. c c...tc:: t.10 •• rpO!'t o'!' t.'.:o ._;1,. t lo .:1, ' c 

,. t.:.o ..• 
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' lilt• DRISCOLL• I a there not al1unde evidence sut.fici ent to show 
t.hat at lea.st 10 of these illegal. votes weI'8 ca.at for llr• Hoitell? 

Jla• SH!RAS. I do not think ao, upon the evi dence. 

ilR• DP.lS COLLe !ie.va y oi;. exa.::nned it? 

UR. SHIRA.S. I havo cxaoined tho testimony on which the supporters 
of the cont e etant rely. 

llB. DRlBCOLT- You mwe not read 1 t ful.l3 ; you have not read the 
Whole of lt.. 

14Re8HIRAS• But you have not 1dentif1ed the. voters. That is the 
rea son I say t hat this evi dence shoul.d have been barred out. 

lfR• FOS'l:ER of I l l inois. Ha.a the gentleman any doubt that a t 
least 20 of thaso votes were cast for Mr• Howell? 
IIR• BH.IRAa• Net the le:1at. 

llo'I\ I "Bant to call. a.ttentJ.on to another point. In these 
dsputed qist.rict.s only 32 votes have bean proved for ~ . Connell, 
llere 172 ro;,e .returned. TTere the rsst of the votes returned f or 
Mr. Connell , Ylhere 172 are returned, l egal. or illega l? Uliless this 
question !a d.eteI'!ID.ncd, 1 t seena to o.e you rove not proved any-
thing. The danger that arises i n a case of this kind i o clearl.y 
shown in respect to these !?00 votes . No-:-r Ur. 8peall:tir, I have 
taken ·1ore t1.ne than I e~cted. Th1e ls ai.Jply a question of 
askinu for fair play. I de not relieve it right to delegate 
our consciences 1n a clooo cnoo llke tb.1s to the oood.ttoo ~d 
all on thel!l to de ter::li.no the '.1hol o quootlon of lan a....d. of f a ct• I 
have no hes1t.at1on 1n coming to the a> nclusion that 1t 10 uni'a.ir 
t o the sitting lleober. un.felv to the Tenth Congressi onal district. 
unfair to tb.e State of Pennsylvania, and unrau- to the Rapubl.1can 
pa.1,ty to unseat Ur. Ho 1ell• (Loud apple.use . ) 

!h£ Eoll_~l]; ~.'! ~!&£0!:.t!l 
A few moments e:f't.sr llr• L:mning snd oyself • on the ~ublicsn . -

side , had oonclu<led our· P3Darit.s the spoah.er dlre.~tcd thst the 

r oll be c.::.ll ed on t.iie .:iotion t.o aaard the seat to th~ non t,estrurt , 

llonnell. 
As the neobers voted, 1t Goon ooce.me a.p1,,a:r•ent that the 

large Bepubl1ca.n o.ajority -:tould lle gr.satly 1>educed 01, ':riped put.. 

'l'he vote ms as .follows: Connell 156; Howell V~8, so t."~ t e 

change of four votsa ,.ow.d h~vepennlt ted the s1tt~ ~tt:::tber to 

retain his seat. 
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Bef ore the roll call a rul!llber of Republicane abnent.ed theo-

selves, Tlhilo a half dozen ooro sat i n their oea.ts nnd w,roly 

answered 11present 11 Villon their !!.OJ:le::i were ca.lled. Had e a:::all 

fraction of ti:lose who rofU::icd to vote , as evidence ci&aa.tiaf action, 

given their support to Ur• Howell he \Vould not h"'ve been oustoo. 

Dur~ the coni'ueion foll owing the a.imou..>1cei'lent of the 

resutt.,. J ud8e i'l~lter .! • ow.th of Council Blu1'f'a , Iowz., cane 

to me and cc.id, " I have been in Cor.gress a number of ye:!.ra, but 

t h is 1s the :firot t ine I had ree son t o be arlb.c,ood of my vote• 

He.d you opened t.b.e a ttack at the beBinning of the proce-:id1nge, 

i nste d of a'G the ond, it ,1ould have given oan.y of us a chlmce 

t o get our bearings. I had definitely pled8ed t\i' vote t o ID.~. 

Connell. ana had not oou!'age enough to shift at tho laat nonent . " 

There were other 1<epubltcano rlho did not f eel th1c TT:),y, for 

General Grosvenor, the doughty old mr horse fl>oo Oh>.o, pv.rpoae1y 

paaood cy seat that he eight shot15 out , nfione dAy you \7111 regret 

ha.vlnt;_; voted for that DenocraU ,. I anerrored that I "nae r.ot 

voting for a Deooc~t, but for Justice. " 

It. cay be s t.at.ad that my at,t1tude in this ccntest mis 

a pproved by p~ot1cally all ey constituent s and the other voters 

i n the 'ldJoin:t.nG d1etr1ct s . La.tar I .receivod assurance of a 

renoclina tion by the p~t1ee tho.t had prev iously sup_.orted ...ie , 

whi le a oassago cane fro::i the !¼publican orc;.::-.niza.tion that tb.ough 

1t Wlderstocd I was not a cand.14'.lt.e for rc-cloct!on, it oo~d 

certain that 11' I vere I would receive the support of the .t~pub-

l i can l eaders mo did not wish t o soe uo aucceeded by rrzy f orcor 

opponent, ';i. H• Graham, _ vhose asaociat1on with Governor Stor..e he.d 

br ought him 1nto popul.<i.r d1cfavor. On the othor hand Goner<>...l 

Gror;venor, by reason of a f act i onal ro11 had l a ter been refused a 
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t ,,.,ination f or Co~sa, in bis distr ict, and in his rooontoont 

trlod t o get the Domocrat 1c non.insti on, m1 ahich hu fa1l od, thu s 

showi ng Ule.t his p.1rty :fea lty tms only s .1n deep. 

1d;f t ·o distlnt;uiahed collo~ucD rrho had boon olect.od oa the 

Citizens' t icket at the ti.lJle I wo.a, votod for Cor.noll, Sl'<lfl..ng 

to ::io, 1r. cxpl.anatlon, tnat tb.ey hoped t.o receive the regular 

Republican nooinat1on noxt tl..J.e , !:hlch n1611t bo Joor,.zrcllzou li' 

tb.ey Yotod f o1• a D-01:iocrot . These hopos, honovor , nere b.l~stcd, t or 

having beool:18 "regular" they 718ro caot e.s i ae hy tho polltloal 

bosses a s onoa no lOll.Gel' to be f e a rd. I cite t.hoao l nst-mces as 

indi cat ing t:.bat blind partl~ahl.p, or pollt1c:i.l t LJ1cil.ty , does 

not appe..11 to the elootorato at hooe , 

As e. sequel to tbla part of the narrot1ve , i t :J::ly bo statod 

t hat when I declined to be a candidat e , uy persona! t rionct 

and polltioal associat e , Btophen o. Porter, l~der 1n t.."lo Cl tizona' 

part y movewmt , waa given 'i;...o re5ular Republican nooinat~on f or 

Co11gr0sa, over cy old rival, rr. H• Grahrul, and ,-:ao olectou by 
was 

20 , 000 .cajority. ;Jr. Port.or ~~eJl suoceasivoly re- eloctod by 

the people untll he served sooa t .10uty- five Je...J.'..,, attu1n1115 the 

h18,h i,oz1t1on of Clw.1.r,:10.ll of the Coi:nitteo oit 1ore1:,.1 _,.ela.tiona. 

Thia result i ndlc •.to& ho\'l tho te~r.:i.ry roi'or:i novo.:1eat 1n 

Al.J.egheny County t>roke the poll ti cal. s..~<'.JUCO of UC'\.?"l:f f _f 'c.y 

ye1J.r :3, and flO.Ve t o t.il.a votors the op ... -or'tuHit,Y to oo:..ect c....n.-

rlia.atos etandi.ng h1t;h 1n tho :popul.ar este~ . 
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_;_;.---- CHAPTER 
The Contested Election Case 
the Author Participated 

..,.- I J 

of Connell vs. Howell in 
( 

{J 
Following the nomination of candidates by the , itizens• 

party,and the endorsement of the s&1De by the Democratic organi-

zation of 4llegheny cow1ty, objections were filed to this endorsement 

by a Democrat holding office under the Republican postmaster of 

Allegheny city ~ahd a hearing on this issue was fixed at Harris-

burg,where such matters were decided by the Dauphin county court. 

I was requested to take charge of this ma.tter,and went 

to Harrisburg,where I engaged well known legal counsel to appear 

in our behalf. While in the court room, awaiting the call of the 

case,I was much interested in a similar i~sue then being considered 
a 

by the j udges. At a Democratic ~ vention in the l0thedistrict, 

Williaa Connell,a Republican,was enddrsed by-tttrS-C-on'Yen-t~on over 

George Howell,jhe Democratic aspirant. The evidence showed plainly 

that Connell had debauched this convention by a lavish use of money 

and by various coercive methods. So evident was this that the court 

announced befo2e adjournment that the Democratic nomination receiv-

ed by Connell was fraudulent. The court failed,however,to give the 

nomination to Howell,so that he was forced to run on an independent 

Democratic ticket. 

When the ~ itizens• party case was called,the court with 

equal promptness held that the Democratic endorsement was legal, 

and dismissed the proceedings. 

After the congressional elections I found that Howell , 

the independent Democra tic candidate,had been returned elected by a 

majority of more than 500 votes over Connell,and had been duly 
seated. Thereupon Connell began a contest against his successful 

J 
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rival on the ground of fraud or other irregularities. This contest 

was designedly referred to the CoIIDllitee on Elections ~o . 3.composed 

of six Republican members friendly to t he contestant *ho had served 

in two previous terms. while the minority was made up of three south-

ern Democrats from South varolina, Yississippi and Texas. whose appeals 

for honest elections were sure to be regarded as a joke by the Re-

publicans of the House. 

Active on this committee was a Pennsylvania member.h. 
\.;t..,' 

Bird Cass el/ ,and a close personal friend of the contestant. This 

member,whom I knew very well,began soi iciting votes among the 

Republican members before the case had been decided.by the commi~ 

tee. in speaking about . the matter to me,he said. !t would be a 

nice thing to give the"old man" his seat for a Christmas gift , and 

that he was going to see •u3cle Joe" about hastening a favorable 

report from the committee . i told my solicitor that I could not 

promise to vote for the seating of Connell,as his Democratic op-

ponent had been fairly elected and would p»obably have r eceived a 

majority of' 5 , 000 votes if he had not been depri• ed of the regular 

party nomination by the unfair means used by the Republican candi-

date,since the the Democratic candidate for govenor had carried 
Congressional 

thisAdistrict by a majority of about 6,000~ In concluding this inte:t>-

view,i said that I did not expect to take the floor when the contest 

came berore the House, for my motives might be misrepresented owing 

to Democratic suppor t I had received in my own case. 

In the course of a few weeks t ne election commi(tee. 

by s ~rictly party vote, awarded the seat to the contestant;and, j"t., 

being a privilege issue,was put on the calendat'for immediate con-

sidera tion . Jjy this time it had become known generaily that Yr. 

Connell.the millionaire coal baron.had spent over 1 100 , 000 i n 
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presenting his evidence before the commitee,cailing some 6,000 

wi tnessew with a vieVI to muddling up the contest;while his op-

ponent,a country school.master,was unavle to summon wholesale ev-

idence of this kind on account of the prohibitive expense. The 

committe,on finding that fiumber of fraudulent or •iherwise il-

legal votes naa oeen cast , did not atte.wpt to determine for whcAe 

such ballots were cast,but merely assumed that Howell had been 

the so.Le benericiary or tnese 1.L.Legal ballots,and 111, this way the 

majority of the collllll.iltee found that Connell had been elected by 

a little over 200 votes. 

::;uch a metnod of procedure was 0 1 course preposterous. 

The debate on this contest lasted several days,the speakers being 

01v1oea un ~arty .L1nes,ana it was evident tnat the case would be 

decided in the same partisan way unless something could be done to 

thwart this wrong. Finally I asked John Dalzell and sevt ral other 

party leaders to prevent the unseating of the duly elected Demo-

cratic candidate,saying that it was a farce for us to protest 

against the unfair methods in the south,and at the same time try 

t o convince the public that a millionare candidate had D~en de-
\,...~""-~• 

frauded of his seat by a country schoolmaster. Each of these ,..... 
replied that the committee had heard all the evidence and it was 

therefore a safe rule to abide by their findings , and that, as a 

new member,I should not run counter to this custom. 

When one hour remained before the taking of the 

vote,I could stand it no longer,and under the time limitation 

rule cover ing the concluding arguments,I took the floor. Up to 

this time l ittle general interest was being taken in the argu-

ments,for with the l arge Republican majority,and no a pparent split 
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in the pa.rty lines,the result seemed certain. On it becoming mani-

fest that I was speaking infpposition to the committee's report,! 

was asked to occupy the middle aisle,wlt-ile the leading partisans 

on either side grouped themselves a~otdid me. As a r esult of this 

excitement l felt some concern, but under the time allowance hoped 

to be able to explain whY I intended to cast my vote for the sit-

ting member. When my time expired it was renewed repeatedly. Thus 

I was able, under many 1nterruptions,to prsent my views , and to take 

good.naturedly personalities,although, of course,l was far from sat-

isfied with the manner in which I was able to meet and parry the 

queries designed to embarrass me in •very possible way. 

Ten minutes before the vote was taken,and just after I 

concluded speaking, Wayne Parker , a member from Bew Jersey,came to 

my desk saying that the New Jersey delegation was going to vote 

soliily for Howell. I thereupon begged Parker to take a few of 

the remaining minutes in behalf of the sitting member, and while 

he hesitated,Wm.ll.Lanning of New Jersey said he would speak and did 

so effectively,for his regularity could not be questioned. It may 

be stated that the speaker's probity and judicial fairness was 

evidenced a fe,; years later when President Roosevelt appointed 

him a lederal judge. 

I now quote from the Congressional Recore a portion of 

the debate in the contested election cas e,under date of Februa ry 
9th and lOth, 1904: 


